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IMPORTANT NOTICE

The board of directors (the “Board”), supervisory committee,
and the directors, supervisors and senior management officers of
the Company confirmed that there are no false representations,
misleading statements or material omissions in this interim report
and accept joint and several responsibilities for the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of the contents of the report.

All Directors of the Company attended the board meeting.
The financial statements of the interim report of the Company

were unaudited, but were reviewed by the Audit Committee
of the Board of the Company.

Name of Chairman of the Company Gao Minghui

Name of chief financial officer of Pi Jianguo
the Company

Name of head of accounting Zhao Qiongfen

department (accounting supervisor)

Mr. Gao Minghui, Chairman, Mr. Pi Jianguo, Chief Financial
Officer, and Ms. Zhao Qiongfen, head of accounting department
(Accounting Supervisor), have declared that they assured for
the truthfulness and completeness of the financial statements
in the Interim Report.

There is no appropriation of non-operating fund by any controlling
shareholder or its related parties of the Company.

There is no external guarantee provided not in compliance
with the required decision-making procedures.

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

COMPANY INFORMATION

Name of the Company (Chinese)
TS B R AR AR (D B R A A

Abbreviated Name of the Company (Chinese)
B R

Name of the Company (English)
SHENJI GROUP KUNMING MACHINE
TOOL COMPANY LIMITED

Abbreviated Name of the Company (English)
kmtcl

Legal Representative
Mr. Gao Minghui
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CONTACT PERSON AND CONTACT INFORMATION
Secretary to the Board
Name

Mr. Luo Tao

Correspondence address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC

Telephone number
86-871-6166612

Facsimile number
86-871-6166288

E-mail

luotao@kmtcl.com.cn

Securities Affairs Representative
Name

Ms. Wang Bihui

Correspondence address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC

Telephone number
86-871-6166623

Facsimile number
86-871-6166288

E-mail
wangbh@kmtcl.com.cn
BASIC INFORMATION

Registered address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC

Post code of registered address
650203

Business address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province

Post code of business address
650203

Website
www.kmtcl.com.cn

E-mail
dsh@kmtcl.com.cn
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PLACE OF INFORMATION DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT INSPECTION

Designated newspapers for publishing
China Securities Daily,

Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

Designated internet websites by CSRC

for publishing annual report
http://www.sse.com.cn,

http://kmtcl.com.cn and http://www.hkex.com.hk

Interim report available at
Office Building, 23 Ciba Road, Kunming City,
Yunnan Province, the PRC

SHARE LISTING

Particulars of the Company’s Shares

Class of Shares
A Shares

Stock Exchange
Shanghai Stock Exchange

Short Name
Kunming Machine

Stock Code
600806

Class of Shares
H Shares

Stock Exchange
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Short Name
Kunming Machine

Stock Code
0300

AND
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OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION

Date of Incorporation
19th October 1993

Place of Registration
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Date of First Change of Registration
29th March 2002

Date of Second Change of Registration
1st December 2007

Place of First Change of Registration
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Place of Second Change of Registration
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Business Registration Number
530000400000458

Tax Registration Number
530111622602196

Organization Code
62260219-6

Appointed Auditors of the Company

Appointed Auditors in the PRC
Zonzun Accounting Office Limited

Address
4/F, Guoxing Building, 22 Capital Road South, Haiding District,
Beijing, the PRC

Appointed Auditors outside the PRC
KPMG (Hong Kong CPA)

Address
8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road Central, Hong Kong
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1.

MAJOR FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND INDICATORS

Major Accounting Information and Financial

BB EEE Indicators Prepared in Accordance with the PRC
Accounting Standards (“PRC GAAP")
Bl BE: ARK
Unit: RMB
AFEHRL
AREHR TEEHR LEEHRERE(%)
As at As at
30th June  31st December
2010 2009 Change (%)
BEE Total assets 2,191,496,538.25 2,024,433,625.56 8.25
ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ(ﬁiﬂ%?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ) Total shareholders’ equity 1,277,989,734.01 1,217,014,036.12 5.01
FER LM ARIRRR Net asset per share attributable to
FRIFEE(T/K) the equity shareholders of the
Company (RMB per share) 2.41 2.29 5.01
REH rRERLE
(1-6AR) TERSE LERHER(%)
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
30th June 2010  30th June 2009 Change (%)
EERE Operating profit 94,049,676.19  110,677,461.34 (15.02)
T Total profit 93,090,677.82  128,656,857.32 (27.64)
HEREMARRRAFFE Net profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company 82,218,942.04 116,106,525.94 (29.19)
FER EMARRRER Net profit excluding non-recurring items
MBRFEC T ERENFHE attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company 83,034,090.65 97,925,492.51 (15.21)
BEAGRWE(T) Basic earnings per share (RMB) 0.1548 0.2186 (29.19)
Mk R R ERED Basic earnings per share excluding
EREkkET) non-recurring items (RMB) 0.1563 0.1844 (15.21)
wEsRRE(T) Diluted earnings per share (RMB) 0.1548 0.2186 (29.19)
MEFFEENEE(%) Weighted average return on net assets (%) 6.54 1039 JHD3.85EENE

MEEPEENRERETE
BREEFHEEN
BereFain)

it

Net cash flow from operating activities

Decreased by 3.85
percentage points
43.63

97,973,798.93 68,211,707.40

Net cash flow per share from

operating activities (RMB)
RARMR2010F7 A28 KB EEEBEHE

ERE[2010]1305%C Em A BB RN
BB EERREARNDBERATNERR
BeEERANIE)  AEARRRAR

%Eh424,864,883%1%

REFESFER - 2

%531,081,103/% °

BeEBEEAE

EMNEERBEXRAZEMHRE M ERY

EZFEEJEI\]’

7 DA 8 B % 0 IR OB AT A

- A AR ESIR A EENRE
531,081,1035T & - BA¥&( EF F 80

TRETT TEPHE -

0.18 0.13 43.63

Remarks: On 2 July 2010, the Company received the Letter of

Approval from the Department of Commerce of Yunnan
Province Concerning its Consent to the Bonus Issue by
Capitalization of the Capital Reserve by Shenji Group
Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited (Yun Nan Sheng
Shang Wu Ting Yun Shang Zi [2010] No. 130, under
which it is consented that the total share capital of
the Company increases from 424,864,883 shares to
531,081,103 shares.

Pursuant to the PRC GAAP, if the bonus issue by capitalization
of the capital reserve is conducted during the period from
the date of balance sheet to the date of approval for the
financial report, the financial indicators shall be calculated
on the basis of the adjusted number of shares. As such, the
relevant indicators mentioned above were calculated based
on the adjusted number of shares (i.e. 531,081,103 shares)
and the number of shares at the beginning of the period (i.e.
the number of shares for the corresponding period last year)
was also adjusted retrospectively.

I
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RITERESRMN(AMRBITESLD 2. The return on net assets and earnings per share

AEEREEERBRARADEIFNERG prepared in accordance with No. 9 of Rules for
ENFEEWRRERERKE ! the Compilation and Submission of Information

Disclosure by Public Offering Companies issued
by China Securities Regulatory Commission are as

follows:
FEEREE(%) ks ()
Return on net assets (%)  Earnings per share (RMB)
mEFY ERSsRKE HESRKE
Diluted
Profit during Weighted Basic earnings earnings
WA the Reporting Period average per share per share
BERDAILARBREAZFHE  Net profit attributable to the
ordinary shareholders of the Company 6.54 0.1548 0.1548
N EEFHERRRE Net profit excluding non-recurring items
RRFE LHXHX%E’H‘T‘J attributable to the ordinary shareholders
of the Company 6.66 0.1563 0.1563
FREHBRBENESHE 3. Non-recurring items and amount
By T BE:ARKE
Unit: RMB
kx|
FREMBHER Non-recurring items Amount
ERBEERERR Loss on disposal of non-current assets (259,940.42)
B BRI Z M E M EIMIAME H  Other non-operating income and expenses other than the above (699,057.95)
sy 2% Impact on income tax 143,849.76
&t Total (815,148.61)

BEEBSHENFENWEIESHE 4. Major Accounting Information and Financial

BB KER Indicators prepared in accordance with the Hong
Kong Accounting Standards

Bfy - Fior BE:ARK

Unit: RMB’000

RREHRL
RHEEHR TEEHR LEEHREH (%)

As at 30th As at 31st
TESHEE Major accounting information June 2010  December 2009 Change (%)
MBEE Current assets 1,489,047 1,316,188 13.13
mEBEE Current liabilities 839,169 727,230 15.39
BEE Total assets 2,180,359 2,011,470 8.40

REER (P PERF#ER) Shareholders’ equity (excluding

minority interest) 1,267,832 1,206,856 5.05
BRFEE(T) Net assets per share (RMB) 2.39 2.27 5.05
LERS AREHRLLE
RREHR (LEESR) BHER)ER(%)

Same Period

Last Year

As at 30th (As at 31st
EgHEE Major accounting information June 2010  December 2009) Change (%)

BRARDEREAFENE Net profits attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company 82,219 116,107 (29.19)
ki) Earnings per share (RMB) 0.155 0.219 (29.19)
FEENEE(%) Return on net assets (%) 6.49 9.62 EA3IBEELE
Decreased by 3.13
percentage points
BRETHELNBELREFE Net cash flow from operating activities 90,900 66,086 37.55
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BRSNS ERER 5.

Difference between PRC GAAP and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards:

By Tx BE ARK
Unit: RMB’000
EERELARRORRELS
Equity Attributable to
the Equity Shareholders
of the Company

FRRANARRNFEANE
Net Profit Attributable
to the Equity Shareholders
of the Company

THH L8y HARY B
Current Period  Prior Period Closing Balance Opening Balance
hEEHEATHER Based on the PRC GAAP 82,219 116,107 1,277,990 1,217,014
REASHEANAR Adjusted in accordance with the
Hong Kong Accounting Standards:
REGELENRE R Gain on investment in jointly
controlled entities (8,869) (8,869)
HEEH Amortization of goodwill (1,428) (1,428)
it Others 139 139
ERETEATNEE Based on the Hong Kong Accounting
Standards 82,219 116,107 1,267,832 1,206,856

= REBHERRER

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

(-)ROEBEBBERR (1) CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL
Bfs R
Unit: Share
AREDH AREHER(+ -) ARED4
Before the change Change during the period (+, ) After the change
B8 e TR R 0ESER it Mt 1] (%)
(Capitalization
Proportion of capital Proportion
Number (%)  New Shares Bonus Shares reserve Others  Sub-total Number (%)
- BRERKRA . Shares subject to selling restrictions
1 BRk 1. state-owned shares
10 BEEASR 2. state-owned legal person shares 153,596,550 36.15 38,399,137 38,399,137 191,995,687 36.15
3+ EHMERR 3. other domestic shares
A BREAREA Including: domestic non-state-owned
B legal person shares
BRERAKE Domestic natural person shares
4 JNERR 4. Toreign-owned shares
e BNEAGER Including: shares owned by
foreign legal person
BiafARR Shares owned by foreign legal person
- ERERERERR Il Circulating shares not subject to selling restrictions
1 AREEER 1. RMB ordinary shares 158,552,483 3132 39,638,121 39,638,121 198,190,604 3132
10 BRLmoNER 2. Domestic listed foreign shares
30 RAEmENER 3. Overseas lsted foreign shares 112,715,850 2653 28,178,962 28,178,960 140,894,812 2653
4 Efp 4 Others
= Rhey I Total number of shares 424,864,883 100.00 106,216,220 106,216,220 531,081,103 100.00

i EFRIAERR

2010F7R2B AR NI EREEmKES
FE[2010] 1305 EmE RS EBRREE
M EEERREIKRNBRATEARNTE
SEMPBANIE)  REARQRBRABE
424,864,883 2531,081,103% © &+
& KRKdH ARMA24,864,8837C  E A
K #531,081,10370 ' EH D BHEARRQ

B -

Approval for Change in Share Capital:

On 2nd July 2010, the Company received the Letter of Approval
from the Department of Commerce of Yunnan Province
Concerning its Consent to the Bonus Issue by Capitalization
of the Capital Reserve by Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool
Company Limited (Yun Nan Sheng Shang Wu Ting Yun Shang
Zi [2010] No. 130, under which it is consented that the total
share capital of the Company increases from 424,864,883
shares to 531,081,103 shares.

I -
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(D) RRMEBREZEFABR

1-

(2) SHAREHOLDERS AND BENEFICIAL HOLDERS OF THE

BRRBEMSRER(HE2010F6A 1.

COMPANY

Number of shares and their shareholdings (As at

30H 1k) 30 June 2010)
Bl @
Unit: Share
HEDRRRLH35885F (AR : 35766F + HER119F)
Total number of shareholders as at 30th June 2010
35,885 shareholders (including 35,766 A Share holders and 119 H Share Holders)
ATERRERER
Top Ten Shareholders
BEERE EAGRE
RREH RRHE BIRLAI%) KRE%  SEHAEE  RERGEE KRR EE
Increase/
Decrease Number of Number of
Total during selling shares
Nature of Proportion number of the Reporting restricted pledged
Name of shareholders shareholders (%) shares held Period shares held or frozen
HKSCC Nominees Limited BNEA 2546 108,181,983 PNl
State-owned legal person Unknown
THRR (EE)ERRTAT BEEA 2508 106,578,219 106,578,219 A
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. State-owned legal person Unknown
EHEI#RARREEARAAAT BEEA 11,07 47,018,331 47,018,331 il
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding State-owned legal person Unknown
Group Co., Ltd.
RREELT it 2.50 10,630,000 il
Kunming Jinghua Co. Others Unknown
HEATEASRBRAERLR- i 1.08 4,591,840 A
HM-BEH Others Unknown
China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co.,
Ltd. - Dividend - Group Dividend
hEEERT-RBRONRREY it 1.08 4,573,523 il
BEREES Others Unknown
Agriculture Bank of China - Zhongyou Core
Growth Equity Securities Investment Fund
HEASRBRNERAR - i 0.63 2,693,256 A
- EAA - 0051 - FHO02E Others Unknown
China Life Insurance (Group) Company -
Dividend - Individual Dividend - 005L - FH002 Hu
HEASRERAERLE i 0.61 2,583,144 A
~E5-LERBER- 0050 - CTO01E Others Unknown
China Life Insurance (Group) Company -Traditional
- Ordinary Insurance Product - 005L - CT001 Hu
hEERBT-EERXSFRERISRELS it 0.56 2,400,012 Sl
China Construction Bank Corporation Limited Others Unknown
— Huabo Industried strategic
Growth Securities investment Fund
HEXTEEASRBRABRAA-HL-EASL i 0.49 2,088,843 A
China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd. - Dividend Others Unknown

- Individual Dividend

Interim Report 2010 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited
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AT AEREFRGRRIFRER

Top Ten Holders of Shares not Subject to Selling
Restrictions

BRRERSKME
RERAMH ROHHE ROEERHE
Number of selling
unrestricted Type and
Name of Shareholders shares held number of shares
HKSCC Nominees Limited 108,181,983 BN ETINE Y
Overseas listed
foreign shares
ERBELRF 10,630,000 ARBEBKR
Kunming Jinghua Co. RMB ordinary shares
FEAFEASRRBENARLR - DA - BRI 4,591,840 ARBEBK
China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd. - Dividend - Group Dividend RMB ordinary shares
EP%%iﬁﬁ*#%ﬁiﬁ/&\ﬁiﬁﬂx?&ﬂﬁ%&ﬁ%@ 4,573,523 AREL @K
Agriculture Bank of China — Zhongyou Core Grouth Equity Securities Investment Fund RMB ordinary shares
FEASRRRHERAF -S4 —EADA— 0051 — FHO02)E 2,693,256 ARBEBKR
China Life Insurance (Group) Company - Dividend - Individual RMB ordinary shares
Dividend - 005L - FH002 Hu
FEASRBBRNARAR —ER—E@RMEM— 005L — CTO01E 2,583,144 ARBEBKR
China Life Insurance (Group) Company -Traditional - Ordinary RMB ordinary shares
Insurance Product - 005L = CTO01 Hu
PEERBT-FEAXSRBERESREES 2,400,012 ARBEBKR
China Construction Bank Corporation Limited — RMB ordinary shares
Huabo Industrial Strategic Grouth Securitions Investment Fund
FEAFFASRBENARLRF - DA —BEADA 2,088,843 ARBEBKR
China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd. - Dividend - Individual Dividend RMB ordinary shares
MIEEMUERBREERAF 1,900,000 ARBEBKR
Zhejiang Hua Rui Ru Shan Equipments Investment Co., Ltd. RMB ordinary shares
ER ) 1,847,161 ARBEBKR
Wang Yan Lin RMB ordinary shares

bl B R BB B R B — BT BN Y A

ﬁﬁ‘i‘%ﬁﬁﬁ%i'%i#fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ?ﬂfi/\ﬂ&ﬂﬁ
RoBAERBRR BT FE@EEBER -
ETﬂiﬂiﬂﬁ@%i'%i#//iu@HXHX%ZFﬁXE
BETE@EBERKBN ETATRERAE
REFHEEHBERIEOREN—BITH
A BIT0Z AR R - 'ﬁ@%i‘mi&i—mﬁﬂxﬂx
ReBBEEABBAER QA THEEREK
ErnBERRETEARBRBREREE AR
BRI R 2 R BT AR R -

Explanation of the connected relationship or acting in concert
relationship among the above shareholders

There is no connected relationship among the top ten
shareholders of selling unrestricted circulating shares, legal
person shareholders and state-owned legal person shareholders.
The Company was not notified of any connected relationship
or acting in concert relationship regulated by “Information
Disclosure Management Procedure to Changes of Shareholding
of Listed Company” among the above holders of selling
unrestricted circulating shares of the Company. Among the
top ten shareholders, there is no connected relationship
among the holders of selling restricted circulating shares.
The Company was not notified of any connected relationship
between the holders of selling restricted circulating shares
and the public shareholders; and any relationship among the
public shareholders.

0
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Br Eai i EE 2 E ERRESN - 1A20109F6 8
308 BEFBE(RERTEISEEYTT
EBIDEOERC AHABITESFNRRIEE
WEASEERERE25R(2005FEF]) )
RE BEMBRREIFRETREDFTER
EZHEMBEE BB DFAERIEI)
FI6(WEHETE  ARARYTEEREMAL
A NRARIEEITIRA10%E A _E#EZE -

AIOBRT HARBRMDESRA L
E5%)RMEOBREREIF IR REE
(REA)ERRDA - FERH BRI ARSI
EHHNER  LEEAR(EE)AEREER
AR ERN BB EAR  EEET
EREEREBARAETRAR - IFRNH
BRIABEAEAR o« i IR AT R0 K
AR IR REIFEENBER °

ot

1) BEPREZD(REA)BRDAAEHRNG
ZFREZFHK - KRB AREEEARQT
HERE R EBB AR FERA10% 815
W e

2) BREXHEEE) BEFUBESHAET
AL (EHEEFREZTRAB)IRAR
AR BER N EE RS ARREM
FEREB(RFRPERDIDEXVESE2
3R Rz RERARBELIE - AR
EEBE(GES LRGN )E336EMRTE -
AINAFTIEE 2 B 2 SR -

3) R-ZE—ZTENA=1+H REEMES
BEAEARQ R SREREREE(FER(GE
HFREEEDIEXVED) R - BER
MR/ SEE(RIERME)PEE TR
BCEHSRBAEEHYEXVEHETRD 3
MAEARBIREBRHAHNERIAR
(BHERB(ESFMHEGEODZLEZEHH
BEWEANEFELEEKNEERAED
BREORE) » SR B(EF REEEG)
E3521{ERE ML BN AR BRTFHER
MeERSAR « SIREBGRESTRA A
GARNRNRBBRGATNESIAR

Other than the substantial shareholders disclosed above, as
at 30th June 2010, there were no other shareholders whose
shareholdings exceeded the amount required to be disclosed
under Article 60 of “Administration of the Issuing and Trading
of Shares Provisional Regulations” of the PRC and Issue
No. 2 of “The Content and Format of Disclosure of Information
of the Listed Companies” (amended in 2005) and the register
of substantial shareholders maintained under the requirement
of reporting; and under Section 16(1) of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance under the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, the Company was not notified of any interests
representing 10% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Among top ten shareholders, there are three shareholders
holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares. They are HKSCC
Nominees Limited, which holds the overseas listed foreign
shares; Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd., which holds
the state-owned legal person shares; and Yunnan Industrial
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd., which holds state-owned
shares. All of the shares held by these shareholders are not
pledged, frozen, mortgaged, nor designated.

Notes:

1) HKSCC Nominees Limited holds shares on behalf of clients.
The Company did not receive any notification that any H
shareholder held more than 10% in total share capital of the
Company.

2) Save as disclosed above, the Directors was not notified by any
person (who is not a Director or a chief executive officer) who
owns the interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company and shall be disclosed to the Company
in compliance with the requirements contained in Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO"),
or the interest or short position that shall be included in the
prescribed register in accordance with section 336 of SFO.

3) As at 30th June 2010, none of the Directors and the Supervisors
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests or short positions
which the Directors or the Supervisors are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required
to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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AT ZEREKHERRERBERRER
#

Number of shares held by the top ten shareholders of
selling restricted shares and the conditions of selling

restriction
By fg
Unit: Share
ERERERBTLTRIER
Trading of selling restricted shares

BEENERE g b
Fi ERERERRERE HRERGEHE ALTRZEE XZROHE PR E R

Number of
Number of additional Conditions
Name of shareholders of selling restricted shares to of selling
No. selling restricted shares shares held Date of trading the traded restriction
1 hBRKR(EB)EREFELQR 106,578,219 20109125318 liEEE ]
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. 31st December 2010 Committed to
hold as stated in
the agreement
2 EHAIXREBRREBEREEAR 47,018,331 20109128318 iEE ]
Yunnan Industrial Investment 31st December 2010 Committed to

Holding Group Co., Ltd.

BHBEER—REARBEFRK A
108K

BRREER-—REANER

hold as stated in
the agreement

Strategic investors or general legal persons as top ten
shareholders as a result of placing of new shares

HERRELR B WEFRALILBH

Commencement of Expiry of
Name of strategic investors or general legal person agreed holding agreed holding
LR (RE)BREEAF] 20065123 1H 20109128318

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd.

1st December 2006 31st December 2010

EHEIXRRAEREERREEAA 2005412 A31H 20109128318
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. 31st December 2005 31st December 2010

2 ERERRREBRESHASERR
REEHARBEBEBER R ERZEH AR

2. Controlling shareholder and beneficial controller

There was no change in the controlling shareholders and
beneficial holders during the Reporting Period.

.
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“EECEESNaARAEEAERER IV. DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT OFFICERS
(—)ES - EESNSREBEASRREE (1) CHANGES OF SHAREHOLDING HELD BY DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
HEHARAIESE  EF SRBEEAER During the Reporting Period, there was no change of
FRAREAEEL - shareholding held by directors, supervisors and senior
management officers.
)ARES -ES - SREEAESETH (2) CHANGES IN DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
1B MANAGEMENT OFFICERS
HE EENES SEEL 2EBHREE
Name Capacity Change Reasons
Bz FNITES  BALESZEE BEAE TR
Sun Kai Non-executive director and Resignation Job
member of the audit committee reallocation
EE WITES s -
Ye Nong Executive director New appointment
E2A EMITES s -
Guan Xin Non-executive director New appointment

(Z)FBIABEATNES EE - SRE

BAENER

2009 ER R FEERABMEERL
EETARRENEESSNTES ' @
fREEEIRARENEESTSHERTE
Fo LB REENIHEARESREX
BE — % Bl: B2010%6A238 B M H
2009F EMRAGEBIECLBRLE2011
FI0AMEBABEEE SR -

HIBEE/E

EE. B 1960F1MARLE LS
&~ TH26E0 - AKX FF4RLIE - 2000
2 AE 200245 AL LR5 # PR & B 434l 26
& - LSRR bt & : 200245
AZE2003F N2 AEHEEKRERARES
RFEIEE - 2003F12 A E£2006%F6 A
HERIEEER R  2006F6 A BN A QT
B TRLEE  FBKLE - KEal
BUSIBT R EIZ 20114108311 °

(3)

PARTICULARS OF NEWLY-APPOINTED OR
DISMISSED DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

The by-election of Mr. Ye Nong as an executive director of the
sixth session of the Board of the Company and the appointment
of Mr. Guan Xin as a non-executive director of the sixth session
of the Board of the Company were considered and approved
at the 2009 annual general meeting. The term of office of the
aforesaid directors by-elected is the same as the term of the
current session of the Board, i.e. from the date of approval
obtained at the 2009 annual general meeting convened on
23th June 2010 until the expiry of the term of the current
session of the Board on 31st October 2011.

Biographies of newly-appointed directors:

Ye Nong, male, born in November 1960, holding a post-
graduate diploma, engineer. Mr. Ye currently is the vice general
manager of the Company. During February 2000 to May
2002, he was the manager of the Technology Department
of Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) and the vice president of
Shenyang Machine Tool Design Institute. During May 2002 to
December 2003, he was the manager of the Quality Control
Department of Zhongjie Machine Tool Co., Ltd.. He was the
manager of Production Department of Zhongjie Machine Tool
Co., Ltd. from December 2003 to June 2006. Since June 2006,
he has worked for the Company as general manager assistant
and vice general manager. His tenure of appointment of vice
general manager will expire on 31 October 2011.
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B 5 1968F5A A LR A
BFE . SR KERD © 199058 A2 Tk -
200542 A £200948 A FF T /L 15 # /K i%
NERAAEBEHFSBAIN K - BHIE -
WBEEEA ZEFeWE - BlAR  IFk
LG HEKR(SE)BREEARBREKIEE
AEE  2009F8 H £2009F 11 A E L5
BR(EE)BRETARBLCENIERY
B A HEER  2009F 11 A ESELES
K (EE)BRETARSIBLEE - K
EREZE20114F10A318 -

Guan Xin, male, born in May 1968, holding a post-graduate
diploma, senior economist. Mr. Guan started his career in August
1990. From February 2005 to August 2009, Mr. Guan was the
director of securities unit, general manager assistant, head
of financial department, secretary to the board, vice general
manager of Shenyang Machine Tool Co., Ltd.. Meanwhile, he
was the director of the Strategic Investment Unit of Shenyang
Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. From August 2009 to November
2009, he was the general manager assistant and the head
of finance and investment unit of Shenyang Machine Tool
(Group) Co., Ltd. Since November 2009, he has been the vice
general manager of Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd.
His tenure of appointment of vice general manager will expire
on 31st October 2011.

(O AFEIRR (4) COMPANY STAFF
1 HEEREBR 1. Areas of specialization
HEER AE
Areas of specialization Number of Employees
— BIBR 1. Staff
TEMEE T A2 No. of existing staff 2,569
EAETA Of which: Production worker 1,664
BERMAER Skilled technician 393
HEAB Sales and marketing 62
HBAB Finance 57
EEAER Administration 102
R A B General services 35
NEGREBAER Early retirement 191
i
“EBRABR Staff pending for duties 60
N Others 5
2. YERERBR 2. Education level
HEER AE
Education level Number of Employees
VPN 2. Qualifications 2476
Hep it Of which: Postgraduate 13
RE University graduate 362
AE College diploma 404
+H Diploma 372
= BR High school or vocational school 690
R AT Junior high school or below 635
= BBWAER 3. Title 494
He 5 Of which: Senior 43
Gy Intermediate 118
i Junior 333

I
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H-EFERE

(BRHEFRIZEBASN - AT &1 iR B D AT 0% B &9 Bt
BEEREARRRTESH ELFEEN
M |mEK)

() BEHNERECERRNNWED T

ERAPBESERN REHA RAE
BEEWAARET55,990F T © /FFH
AR®82219F T REFRHBMAR
#:662,304F T A1 A R #116,107F 7T 48
Lo 2 Bl E FH14.15%H0 T £29.19% ©
(REEBZFER  REPR - 2FE
BEEIWAARET749,851F L » FFH
AR#82,219F L B EFRIEHARE
660,504 F T AR 116,107 F LB L -
DRI EFA13.53%F T F%29.19%) °

N B TE R BR R UOBR TR AR EE AT IR
GEEHFTETTERE - KX gaEEm
BEESREREREREBTIRL
R ZIBEREETEFE SR A 2010
FLFEREBRREERLOARE
36,161,049.027T « FEWBR FUF B A
R #36,161,049.027C « B E R BB LR
D AR #36,161,049.027T » & 3 T 1%
AR #36,161,049.027T © F 8 42 %8 3%
AR #36,161,049.027T » 715 %1 1% 10
ANER#¥5,424,157.3570 » JFFEEMAR
#30,736,891.667T * & i FT 15 B & E R
D NR#5,424,157.357C © BiR A D B F
1N A KR#30,736,891.667T °

20105 £ F - BIREREHBER SRR
BEHEBARNTNERE BN ER
DEFE RELER MFBEENE
B #RERNKEHERRRRENBSERN
HAKEETP I EEARKAFTE B
REMHRRANERERBR - 2REER
BREFEHRES - L¥F RERKATA

TEMSELANFERERNZET > 217
EER-—ARFEROEY  TRARER

EmmEBHRHIERNOER  EARK
REMTSELNEHBE - HLFAF -
BERZRELEMBEINEROMA -
WHAREMmMSHFABHR  BPHE
mlEeE - BEMBEMEMNERKE ML -
HRXEHBRETRE 38 REFR -

(1)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

(Unless otherwise specified, the financial information mentioned
in the following discussion and analysis is extracted from the
financial statements prepared by the Company in accordance
with the PRC GAAP)

OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Under the PRC GAAP, during the Reporting Period, the Company
recorded a turnover of RMB755,990,000 and net profit of
RMB82,219,000, respectively as compared with the turnover
of RMB662,304,000 and net profit of RMB116,107,000 in the
same period last year, representing an increase of 14.15%
and a decrease of 29.19% respectively. (Under the Hong
Kong Accounting Standards, during the Reporting Period,
the Company recorded a turnover of RMB749,851,000
and a net profit of RMB82,219,000, as compared with
RMB660,504,000 and RMB116,107,000 in the same period
last year, representing an increase of 13.53% and a decrease
of 29.19% respectively.)

During the Reporting Period, the Company changed its
accounting estimate of the provision for bad debt in respect
of the accounts receivable. The change of such accounting
estimate is only related to the proportion of the provision
for bad debt of accounts receivable and has resulted in a
decrease of RMB36,161,049.02 in the provision for bad debt
in the 2010 interim report, increase of RMB36,161,049.02 in
net accounts receivable, decrease of RMB36,161,049.02 in
loss on impairment of assets, increase of RMB36,161,049.02
in operating profit, increase of RMB36,161,049.02 in total
profit, increase of RMB5,424,157.35 in income tax, increase of
RMB30,736,891.66 in net profit, decrease in RMB5,424,157.35
in deferred income tax assets and increase of RMB30,736,891.66
in undistributed profits at the end of the period.

In the first half of 2010, the stimulation effect of the policy for
encouraging the domestic demand rolled out by the State to
cope with the financial crisis still continued, further assuring
the recovery momentum of the State’s economy. Although
the current environment shows mixed signs of economic
development and there are still uncertainties as to the operation
of the international economy, the global economy may generally
keep its track to recovery only if there is no relatively material
extraordinary circumstance. During the first half of the year,
benefiting from the aforesaid favorable factors, the machine
tool industry in the PRC experienced a rapid growth. The
market for products under common production was in short
supply while the growth of the large machine tools slowed
down. In the meanwhile, as more private and state-owned
enterprises tapped in the industry, the competition of the
domestic machine tool market has been intensifying. Customers
have higher requirements for the products in terms of their
functions, precision and stability and desire a shorter, more
frequent and faster lead time.
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HEFEIRZIO TS ERFIRE - A6
s BINERGTEREZER - oA
EHERMEBER  BARASERBK
Fo F¥FERAFEERARES23E
7T ALIER51.29%  E—FRIEERE
BRABNEMRE @ 5T TXH27408012 7
FIEFRFTERNHARMTE: BEREF
BMERITFEREAZEEE @ BRFE
BREFEM AL A BIE M - IRIER
RANEERER  BRETSABLEHE
B atEE2EEEE RALEETEXK
FAGEST R - JEF TE AL T H 8 88 IR E
KICERTE LIE -

20105 T4 - FEIMKR T ATEMSH
BEBEMHZ  IEGNSERREEA
B REIZERBERD  NEHE 28
e - EEERIE RITAIF Azl - AR
BATR  RERRELE INITIERE
BRI AT IIE -

1 EEIE: BEURETS  BIA
RIRsE—THRER  BMITHFEMME
REFEMBEFI W ERE + iR & HK
hiRMERRSETIE VERS
FREE -

2 HETHF: MMEBBABIREMIE
RRREROBEMTIIE  BREEER
bR EEHTERLE  FERE
BE o R E BRI S AT BIEE
B HEREEASNDDEE - E—
TRATNEERER  NF2FEE
REZ2EW -

Facing more keen competition in the market, the Company
took the missions of market expansion and securing orders
and contracts as its top priority. As such, the Company has
reinforced the establishment of its major marketing channels
and enhanced the quality of its after-sale services. During the
first half of the year, new contracts secured by the Company
amounted to RMB823 million, representing an increase of
51.29%. The Company also completed the trial production of a
new product, XH2740 gantry boring and milling machine tool,
by further strengthening the effort and pace of adjustment
of product structure. Besides, the Company was in active
to obtain and implement the major projects of the State
and endeavored to become the national technology center
while resumed and enhanced the production capacity of
horizontal boring machines by adopting effective measures.
By improving the internal control and management, promoting
the awareness of product liability and upgrading the standard
of government governance and operational efficiency, the
Company successfully obtained the CE certification of the
floor-type boring machines.

Looking ahead to 2010, the competition of the machine
tool market in China will intensify. Against a more complex
economic environment, the Company will endeavor to identify
the overall situation and seize opportunities to make further
advancements by adhering to its objective of “focusing on
technological innovation, striving to achieve adjustments and
transition and emphasizing on both the scale and efficiency”.
The Company is committed to achieve the following major
milestones:

1. Marketing: continuing to explore new markets and taking
securing contracts as the Company'’s top priority; stepping
up to maintain the position of floor-type boring machines
against keen competition and enlarging the market
share for gantry milling machines; and strengthening
the formation of the sales group and after-sale services
so as to enhance the customers’ satisfaction.

2. Production: deepening the implementation of the high-
quality projects specializing in the manufacture of CNC
floor-type boring and milling machine tools with a view
to effectively securing the presence of the brand name of
“Kunji”; continuing to maintain on-schedule production
and adhere to the principle of standard manufacturing
as well as reinforcing the control of the manufacturing
process and the check point management so as to achieve
a balanced production structure for a further increase of
the production capacity of the horizontal boring machines;
and committed to maintain an accident-free workplace
for the year.

.
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A T1F - HE 13 8l B & AR Bl o
D BABEBRRRREKRERAR
BiER  RIEQARMAIFTE D 2
RNHEmMBAENE - MEEMGHE
AEEL EREMNREME - AIE
HRINEEEE - B RBGEED
FRROMAFERREN

EETHF: £E—FFELERER [
FHERERRAEL  JERS2
BEEEH - RILABBREZERIMIN
HEEEE  BILEMZERM -

BT E : BRI ZMEEARE
K BEAMERIEAR o

MBI NERBEILRABEMK
AZEBREBER  TERAESHIM
B - DN HEE X A AR I I R 2
R BEMESARRR - 2EEST
RBVEBIKFRRATTA

ANERTE  E—FREIMTEH

MEE - BE - RFHNERERLF
BEIRRRR - HEHE THEMBIME - N5k
BTHMRGEITIF  MUPELEEE
B mit AETEABREOEZRMA
A e

Technology: committed to becoming the national
technology center and dedicated to promote the
implementation of the State’s key technological projects;
and strengthening the establishment of the capacity of
technological innovation and the efforts in developing new
products of the Company, accelerating the adjustment
and transition of our product mix and enhancing the
stability, reliability and appearance shielding quality of
our products with an aim to upgrading the Company’s
integrated competitiveness and competence of sustainable
development.

Quality control: further solidifying the foundation of
quality control and transiting to the excellent performance
management model; raising employees’ awareness of
quality; strengthening the control of internal process
and coordinating with the quality control function so as
to guard the press for product quality rigorously.

Technological renovation: actively and prudently
accelerating the implementation of the heavy equipment
plant and cast base construction projects.

Finance: Centering on the establishment of the product
cost accounting system, perfecting the cost control and
management, promoting the internal control system
construction, preventing and controlling the risks exposed
to the Company, and improving the Company’s overall
management level.

Human resources management: further perfecting a
more scientific, objective, and fair appraisal system and
remuneration management system so as to motivate our
staff; enhancing the staff training system and optimizing
the team building and human resources reservation in
respect of management, technology and production.
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)RR EEREBRHEERR

(2) MAJOR OPERATION INFORMATION

FTEEKSTE - EmBERE 1. Business segment or product information
By - ME: ARK
Unit: RMB
EELON BEREX BENBER(%)
Operating
Operating Operating profit
PIERIER Business segment or product income expenses  margin (%)
BRERBEERNIBER Sales and processing of machine
tool products 649,571,316.71 436,587,077.25 32.79
SRERBEEREE  RRRRE Sales, installation and technical
services of highly efficient compressors 103,588,558.09 91,898,710.41 11.28

EFRXBOMSRLER EXEE 2.
BRHOEERNHA

Analysis on the changes of the market and the
operating costs of the major business

By T M ARKE

Unit: RMB
TERE Bt XE O BARLA EEHEE%

For the six For the six
months ended months ended Change
ER 30th June 2009 Proportion  30th June 2010 Proportion (%)
B Raw materials 264,610,745.01 62.20  294,701,625.59 55.64 11.37
ERTA Direct labor costs 30,152,022.18 7.09 32,343,419.79 6.11 7.27
FREEREE Social insurance expenses 16,081,018.78 3.78 14,257,611.56 2.69 (11.34)
R 3,840,403.61 0.90 - 0.00 -
}HE 5,477,336.05 1.29 - 0.00 -
SLEER Manufacturing costs 67,993,815.24 15.98  120,775,436.58 22.80 77.63
NBNIE Internal processing expenses 638,106.12 0.15 - 0.00 -
SNBINTE External processing expenses 36,610,633.60 8.61 67,599,707.52 12.76 84.65
L 425,404,080.59 100.00  529,677,801.04 100.00 24.51

ANFEHEERAE EF R LM
104,274F 7T » 1818 524.51% » I =E
ZRAEEFRBARATISEZEESRE
BEE BRERMBERLTR  AFE
BARTISIEEES  ARHERZBNIE
BEBEAESEAFREALIEATAEL

# o

During the Reporting Period, the operating costs increased by
RMB104,274,000 or 24.51% over that in the same period last
year, mainly attributable to the shrinking market demand for
machine tools as a result of the impact of the financial crisis on
the machine tool market in the same period last year. During
the year, with the recovery of the machine tool market, the
Company achieved reasonable sales. Accordingly, the sales of
general machine tool products recorded a substantial increase
over the same period last year.

.
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ABREMARFEENERI0% BEF
FIHA36% FNIF6E A D HNREHZE : £ &
R EmEFNE > EHARENA
TR : B0 AREFRERENEE
BABHEREFRAHERABLABEY -
EYRERSAENBN NE -

TEXRBITR 7EmBRAE

B

During the Reporting Period, the consolidated gross profit
margin was 30%, representing a decrease of 6 percentage
points as compared to 36% in the same period last year, which
was due to the decrease in gross profit of the Company under
intensifying product competition after the financial crisis. In
addition, due to the substantial growth in the sales of the
lower profit margin general machine tool products over the
same period last year, the consolidated gross profit margin of
products decreased as a result.

Turnover by business segment or product

By AREFIT
Unit: RMB’000
20095 L¥FE 20105 L¥F ERRHE o FF B
EST/ON ERWA B BI(%) BA(%)
Proportion
Turnover Turnover of sales of
for the for the machine tools
first half first half to total
POEIPER Business segment or product of 2009 of 2010 sales (%)  Change (%)
7% Business segments
AREREE General facilities production 179,860 272,692 41.98 51.61

= AR EREE Specified facilities production 177,777 243,528 37.49 36.99

EREREEVEEE  Electric mechanical equipment production 84,405 - - -

SR Other production 132,782 133,280 20.52 0.37

Em Products

A B8 IR Horizontal boring and milling machine tools 144,661 187,865 28.92 29.87

E A R Floor-type boring and milling machine tools 406,649 320,161 49.29 (21.27)

Bl e X R Table-type boring and milling machine tools - 42,282 6.51 -

At Others 23,514 99,179 15.27 321.79

&t Total 574,824 649,500 100 12.99

(Tt Notes:

1. 20104 | ¥ & ﬁus% B EHEEA 1. In the first half of 2010, total sales of top 5 customers amounted
114,773F JC » A iH & AR EE (R B to RMB114,773,000, accounting for 17.67% of the total sales
DI17.67% ° of the Company (machine tools segment).

2. 2010 L¥FEMARHEERELES 2. In the first half of 2010, total purchases of top 5 suppliers
£305356F L HE¥FFHRESHEDN amounted to RMB305,356,000, accounting for 28.80% of the
28.80% - purchase amount for the first half of the year.
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4 BEHLAZIEUBENBLBRLEE 4.

Material changes in major financials during the

K B 1Y =5 BF Reporting Period over those in the same period
last year By AR
Unit: RMB
HAE HPH(LERH) e EHEE %
As at As at Increase/
EH Items 30th June 2010  30th June 2009 decrease Change (%)
BEE Total assets 2,191,496,538.25 2,024,433,62556  167,062,912.69 8.25
EKES Monetary assets 361,369,140.78  280,102,559.13  81,266,581.65 29.01
JEIREESR Accounts receivable 207,742,150.43  177,604,480.70  30,137,669.73 16.97
Eth s Other receivables 17,803,095.51 19,826,304.26 (2,023,208.75) (10.20)
BHER Prepayments 81,608,572.41 39,877,114.75  41,731,457.66 104.65
FE Inventory 644,764,442.70  610,288,482.06  34,475,960.64 5.65
EETE Construction in progress 109,690,054.56  99,821,730.63 9,868,323.93 9.89
ERREE Bills payable 30,257,114.00 8,370,000.00  21,887,114.00 261.49
JEFEER Accounts payable 241,197,082.83  183,186,540.07 58,010,542.76 31.67
ENBTEM Accrued salary 27,864,311.91 39,863,443.01  (11,999,131.10) (30.10)
JEF AR A Dividends payable 21,379,142.64 344,092.75  21,035,049.89 6113.19
EXHE Taxes payable 7,125,027.07  26,349,931.91  (19,224,904.84) (72.96)
EthERH Other payables 22,631,407.14  16,925,660.07 5,705,747.07 33.71
EXFR Operating profit 94,049,676.19  110,677,461.34  (16,627,785.15) (15.02)
EEMIA Non-operating income 983,751.22  18,697,927.19  (17,714,175.97) (94.74)
BEMNTH Non-operating expenses 1,942,749.59 718,531.21 1,224,218.38 170.38
FHE Net profit 82,218,942.04  116,106,525.94  (33,887,583.90) (29.19)
BERBLEEMFENE  Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 81,266,581.65  41,200,533.47  40,066,048.18 97.25
DT Analysis:
A BERBENEEAREFEI-6AR A.  The increase in total assets was due to the expansion

AAEREEBERE TRUMNIERS
B EERBE—SBEX: BEEN
$0167,062,912.697C * EF RENEE
#11173,114,050.367C :

B. EHREDEMEANARANRHHERE
m-WEAREES  AREHERD
HR U B RIBPTER

C. BWERFIEME RN ABEEIE M
2

D. HMEWFRLEHRAHHEEAER
BEEZIRE R RERB S

of the asset size as the production and operations of
the Company for the six months ended 30th June 2010
continued to maintain satisfactory growth. The total assets
increased by RMB167,062,912.69. Of which, current
assets increased by RMB173,114,050.36;

The increase in monetary assets was due to the recovery of
a large amount of capital due to the increase in sales for
the period and the amounts received upon the maturity
of some bills of exchange;

The increase in accounts receivable was due to the increase
in sales for the period,;

The decrease in the other receivables was due to the
reimbursement of business trip expenses and refund of
security deposits for the period,;

R
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EFTETE
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The increase in prepayments was due to the payment
of a large amount of prepayments by Xi'an Ser, its
subsidiary;

The increase in inventory was due to the expansion of
production to satisfy the sales needs as a result of the
increase in sales of the Company for the period;

The increase in construction in progress was due to the
increase in fixed assets investment such as the payment
of guideway grinding machine according the contract and
the upgrade of constant temperature workshop in order
to further enhance the scale of production and sales;

The increase in the bills payable was due to the utilization
of a large amount of bills payable upon settlement by
Xi'an Ser, its subsidiary;

The increase in accounts payable was due to the increase in
purchase volume as a result of the increase in production
for the period;

The decrease in accrued salary was due to the payment
of annual bonus for the prior year;

The increase in dividends payable resulted in the withdrawal
of dividends payable under the profit distribution proposal
for 2009 implemented by the Company;

The decrease in taxes payable was due to the payment
of taxes;

The increase in other payables was mainly due to the
rentals payable and audit fee for the period;

Operating profit decreased by RMB16,627,785.15 over
that in the same period of last year, which was mainly
due to the decrease in gross profit of the products;

The decrease in non-operating income was due to the
absence of extraordinary gain as compared to the refund
of the 50% of the value-added tax of CNC machine tools
in the prior period;
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P. The increase in non-operating expenses was due to the
payment of value-added tax, income tax and late charges
of RMB1,638,271.55 during the period for the years
of assessment from 2005 to 2007 under the state tax
inspection and for the year of assessment from 2008 to
2009 under the Company’s inspection;

Q. The decrease in net profit was mainly due to the decrease
in operating profit;

R.  The netincrease in cash and cash equivalents was due to
the increase in sales of the Company and the amounts
received upon the maturity of some bills receivable.

Financial resources and capital structure of the
Group (under Hong Kong Accounting Standards)

For the year ended 30th June 2010, the Group had no long-
term borrowings and the Group had borrowing due within one
year of RMB70,000,000. The Group maintains a sound credit
condition with a high margin product mix and has sufficient
cash flow for future repayment of liabilities due.

As at 30th June 2010, the shareholders’ equity of the Group
was RMB1,327,847,000.

Gearing Ratio

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standards, the shareholders’
equity to debt ratio of the Group as at 30th June 2010 was
1.56.

Discussion and analysis of important issues relating
to the operations of the Company, including the
securing of purchase orders, product sales or
inventory turnover and changes in the profile of
key technicians

The amount of new contracts as at 30th June 2010 amounted to
RMB823 million and 62.97% was attributable to CNC products.
As the orders for general machine tools grew substantially, the
orders for CNC machine tool products decreased.

-
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FTEERATDRZRATDNELZEERN 8. Review of operations and business analysis
REEZEDM for major controlling companies and invested
companies
By - A\AREFT
Unit: RMB’000
RAER £BKE TEERAHRHE EER EERRE A E
Nature of Registered
Name business Major products or services capital Total assets Net profit
BZXABRBRNERRERREAT RER SRR RRE T RER 50,000 412,946 (2,808)
Xi'an Ser Turbo Machinery Manufacturing Energy saving compressor and
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. turbo machines
EHERLT BR% ERERE 500 746 (181)
Kunji Transportation Co., Ltd. Transportation General cargo transportation
ERRRBARRERALAA RiEX BRREMFORE  RFAHEE 3,000 35,561 (118)
Kunming Kunji General Machine Manufacturing Development, design and sales of
Co., Ltd. machine tool products and accessories
BERRERBRKERALAT REX % Rat o £EM 5,000 7,091 (705)
Fujian Kunji Conventional Machine Manufacturing  SHEBERRRIIER REH
Tool Co., Ltd. Development, design and sales of machine
tool products and accessories
ERRAEHREDREARAT RiE% BRVESHELRNES 20,230 6,154 (482)
Winko Machines Co., Ltd. Manufacturing Intelligent color display computerized
embroidery machine and rotary table
BZhRRERETRARERAA REX REKVREZSE 60,000 102,063 (900)
Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping Manufacturing Laser prototyping machine
Manufacturing & Engineering
Research Co., Ltd.
EREHRAARAT RER g% Rat £EN 500% (BX7t) 139,267 4,263

TOS Kunming Machine Tool
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing

DREARERER
ERESERER

BEHRA - RRESEESHAPERE
TERBAHNBER -

FEEESHBER

KABRIIFERRFEEZBE: IR
BMBERRELEREBTE @R
K ERVHERBLE N TS - RiE - RE
MSE - AR EREEEMIER — 8
F-RBREANIEREREMEERER
2 ©FE314938 L W TEF T IRE
B20114F - TLEGIRSRBER © 2010
FIE19850& L Hf: SR THERE
149578 L ~ M B A39938 L - &

e —

BEI00E T °

HEBERR A ER A
Development, design, production

and sales of self-produced machine

tool series products and accessories

5 million (Euro)

(3) INVESTMENT OF THE COMPANY

1. Use of proceeds from raised fund
During the Reporting Period, there were no proceeds from
new raised funds, nor any proceeds from previous raised funds
being utilized for the period.

2. Use of proceeds from non-raised fund

It was considered and approved at the 2009 annual general
meeting of the Company the following proposal: given the
market demand and the requirements for the optimization of
the product mix, the Company proposed to kick off the first
stage construction of the heavy processing and assembling
plant and ancillary equipment under the phase one of the
heavy casting base project by investing RMB314,930,000 to
resolve the bottleneck of the manufacturing plant, facilities and
equipment of large and heavy machine tools. It is preliminarily
expected that the construction works will be completed by 2011.
After the completion, the existing production capacity will be
increased. Of the investment amount of RMB198,500,000 in
2010, RMB149,570,000 was for the investment in the heavy
processing and assembling plant, RMB39,930,000 for other
expenses and RMB9,000,000 for preparation expenses.
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2009 EFBEOE AR
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20106 H23H A 7 #2009F & iz R F
CEZBB 2000FEFBEOE HE
2009F [F 0 REFBE XA AAQF
EIRF 215,848 F T - MK IREAEE
NIE£21,652F T EFEBIRAHEFE
194,196F 7t * 257 H B FE568,379F
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o B FIE194,058F T - 25t A 2 B F E
566,593 F T °

VI.

(1

(2)

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited with a view to enhancing the corporate governance
standard of the Company.

The Company has complied with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules issued by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as the code for securities
transactions by the directors. Having made all enquiries, all
Directors and Supervisors of the Company confirm that all
Directors and Supervisors of the Company are in compliance
with the Mode Code and its own code on the standards for
securities transactions by directors.

The Company has established the modern enterprise system,
continued to improve the corporate governance and regulate
the operation of the Company pursuant to Company Law of the
PRC, Securities Law of the PRC and other relevant regulations
issued by the CSRC and Shanghai Stock Exchange. The systems
of the Company are substantially in compliance with the
requirements under the Standard of Corporate Governance
for PRC Listed Companies jointly issued by CSRC and National
Development and Reform Commission. In the future, the
Company will continue to improve and strengthen the internal
control system in the normal course of operation with a view
to enhancing the standard of corporate governance.

IMPLEMENTATION OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTION
PROPOSAL FOR THE REPORTING PERIOD

Proposal on Profit Distribution of the Company
for the Year of 2009

As proposed by the sixth session of the board of directors at
the 15th meeting, the proposal on profit distribution of the
Company for the year of 2009 was approved at the 2009 annual
general meeting of the Company held on 23rd June 2010. In
accordance with the PRC GAAP, in 2009, the Company recorded
a net profit of RMB215,848,000 and, after deducting the
amount of RMB21,652,000 transferred to the surplus reserves,
a distributable profit and an accumulated distributable profit
of the Company for the year amounted to RMB194,196,000
and RMB568,379,000 respectively. In particular, the parent
company recorded a net profit of RMB216,519,000 and,
after deducting the amount of RMB21,652,000 transferred
to surplus reserves, a distributable profit and an accumulated
distributable profit of the parent company for the year amounted
to RMB194,867,000 and RMB506,167,000 respectively. In
accordance with the Hong Kong Accounting Standards, the
Company recorded a net profit of RMB215,709,000, and after
deducting the amount of RMB21,652,000 transferred to the
surplus reserves, a distributable profit and an accumulated
distributable profit recorded by the Company in 2009 amounted
to RMB194,058,000 and RMB566,593,000 respectively.

I
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Proposal on the proposed distribution of profit for the year
of 2009: a cash bonus dividend of RMBO0.5 (tax inclusive)
is proposed for every 10 shares held by shareholders of
the Company based on the existing total share capital of
424,864,883 shares, totaling RMB21,243,244.15 in cash.
The actual cash dividend after tax to be distributed to the
individual shareholders, investment fund and qualified overseas
institutional investors for A Shares would be RMBO0.45 for
every 10 shares held. For other holders of A Shares who are
non-resident enterprises, no withholding tax is deducted by
the Company and such tax be paid by the shareholders of the
relevant jurisdictions.

On 22nd July 2010, the Company paid cash bonus dividend
to holders of A Shares whose names appeared on the register
of members of the Company on the record date (i.e. 15th July
2010). The Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corp. Ltd. was entrusted by the Company to pay
the cash dividend on its behalf to the holders of the shares
without selling restrictions. With respect to the shares subject
to selling restrictions, the cash dividend was directly paid to
the holders of such shares.

On 28th July 2010, the Company paid final cash dividends to
the holders of H Shares whose names appeared on the register
of holders of H Shares of the Company on the record date (i.e.
24th May 2010). The final dividends payable to the holders
of H Shares were denominated and declared in Renminbi
and were paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate was
HK$100 to RMB87.655, which was based on the average value
of the benchmark exchange rates for Hong Kong dollar to
Renminbi as announced by the People’s Bank of China for one
calendar week prior to the date of approval for the payment
of such dividends (i.e. 23rd June 2010). The final dividend
per H Share was HK$0.057042 (including tax). ICBC (Asia)
Trustee Company Limited was appointed by the Company as
the receiving agent (the “Receiving Agent”) in Hong Kong to
receive the dividends on behalf of the holders of H Shares. The
Company would pay the final dividends declared in respect of
H Shares of the Company to the Receiving Agent, who would
hold such dividends in trust on behalf of the relevant holders
of H Shares until the payment is received.
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(3)

(4)

Resolution on capitalization of capital reserve to
increase share capital

As at 31st December 2009, the share premium under capital
reserve of the Company amounted to RMB125,422,997.12
under the PRC GAAP and RMB113,886,855 under the Hong
Kong Accounting Standards. According to the Hong Kong
Accounting Standards, based on the share premium under
capital reserve of RMB113,886,855, the Board proposed to
capitalize the capital reserve to share capital on the basis of
2.5 New Shares for every 10 shares held based on the existing
total issued share capital of 424,864,883 Shares (comprising
312,149,033 A Shares and 112,715,850 H Shares). After
the implementation of the proposal, the total share capital
of the Company would be 531,081,103 Shares (comprising
390,186,291 A Shares and 140,894,812 H Shares).

In July 2010, the Company received the Letter of Approval from
the Department of Commerce of Yunnan Province Concerning its
Consent on the Proposal for Bonus Issue by Capitalization of Capital
Reserve of Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited
(Yun Nan Sheng Shang Wu Ting Shang Zi [2010] No. 130), under
which the total share capital of the Company was approved to be
increased from 424,864,883 shares to 531,081,103 shares and
the registered capital would be increased from RMB424,864,883
to RMB531,081,103. The increased capital would be financed by
the capitalization of the capital reserve.

The new A Shares without selling restrictions have been listed
for trading on 19th July 2010 and the trading of new H Shares
commenced on 18th August 2010.

HALF-YEARLY PROFIT DISTRIBUTION PROPOSAL AND
CAPITALIZATION OF CAPITAL RESERVE TO INCREASE
SHARE CAPITAL

Nil
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Since there was no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company did not have
any arrangement for the pre-emptive rights scheme during
the Reporting Period.

PR
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(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

WARRANTS AND OTHERS

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries issued any warrants,
convertible securities, options or other securities with similar
rights, nor did any person exercise any rights as stated
above.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any securities issued by the Company during
Reporting Period.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFT AND OTHER

BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings as
at 30th June 2010 are set out in the Notes to the financial
statements.

MAJOR LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS

There was no major litigation or arbitration in the Reporting
Period.

BANKRUPTCY RESTRUCTURING

During the Reporting Period, there was no bankruptcy
restructuring of the Company.

(10) SHAREHOLDINGS IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES

AND INVESTED COMPANIES

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have
any shareholding in other listed companies and invested
companies.

(11) PURCHASE AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS OR MERGER

AND ACQUISITION ACTIVITIES DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

During the Reporting Period, there was no purchase and
disposal of assets or merger and acquisition activities.

(12) MAJOR CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, there was no major connected
transaction.
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(13) TRUST

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not enter into

any trust arrangement.

(14) SUBCONTRACTING CONTRACTS

There was no subcontracting contract during the Reporting

Period.

(15) LEASE ARRANGEMENT

There was no lease arrangement during the Reporting

Period.

(16) GUARANTEE

There was no guarantee in the Reporting Period.

(17) ENTRUSTED INVESTMENT

There was no entrusted investment in the Reporting Period.

(18) OTHER MAJOR CONTRACTS

There was no other major contract during the Reporting

Period.

(19) PERFORMANCE OF COMMITMENTS

Commitments of the Company or shareholders holding more
than 5% shares during the Reporting Period or subsisting

EERIK(SBE)BRETRFINER
ETEREEREEBREME N A
ARG BES EmREE s B
Z2010%F12A31HIE BB HFR
BERSHE s HIEAR - FHMRXK
IREFTIFARER TR o
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ETEREEREEEREEATRE
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IS o 25 B JE2007F6 H29
H AR R F20065F E R F & M
HEERREERERBR WO E

MR o

during the Reporting Period are as follows:

1.

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and Yunnan
Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. undertook
that the shares held by them would not be sold through
the stock exchange for trading from date of obtaining
the approval for listing to 31st December 2010. As at
the end of the Reporting Period, the shares held by the
above shareholders were not tradable.

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and Yunnan
Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. undertook
that the resolution on the capitalization of the capital
reserves to issue new shares be proposed and approved at
the general meeting within one year after the completion
of the share reform on the basis of no less than five
new shares for every 10 shares held. Such resolution
was approved at the general meeting and relevant class
meetings for 2006 held on 29th June 2007 and the
transfer was completed.

s

MEEEERARKKROERDET 2010 PHHRS




LEHR(RE)EREEARMER
ETEREBEEREEEREEATRE
177G © & A Al120064F 312007 4F F
oM R MR R D A B G - BlfE
RERAE FIREIEE 5 AL A MK
M50% IR A WFE BT E -
ZHEB2008F7 A E T o

LEER(RE)BRETARET
AEh BRI E R EMER LR
EFFEMARER YR ERES
BEMREDBENETHRERFZA -
BEEBIBTEERY  ERAMNR LD
REREBRORUNTABRS AR
BRM™IG A5 R ABKIE R
B FHEARMEXZZERNEZF
B BAXHNEE LT ARSER
FER - BAULEBHR(RE)ARE
FRARERLETARRBEEEEA
8 RETEEEBRINES 1
EmisRHAES LT RR L ORHK
B -

() BE2FFHEER THFEH
RIETEBITHIRAEAGE

(2) BE+FHREER THFEH
ATEBETNIANEE  BE

BEEEG -

(ZT)BfE - MBS EBKAER

S
A

1
57
o
54h
25

WEE e R E AT

£
RLEL e
EHAEBHARAA
AT I 1B
R 813

3. Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and Yunnan
Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. undertook
that the resolution on the distribution of profits of no less
than 50% of profits in the form of cash bonus dividend
be proposed and approved at the general meeting if the
performance of the Company in 2006 or 2007 fulfils the
conditions for distribution of profits to shareholders. Such
distribution of profits was completed in July 2008.

4. Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. undertook that
it would provide full support to the business development
of the Company in terms of technology, corporate
management and resources and would consolidate
the relevant resources and markets by leveraging on
its own unique strengths based on the principles and
models favorable to accelerating the growth of the
Company within two years after the share transfer
and share reform with a view to developing Kunming
Machine Tool as an important platform for technological
upgrade, business expansion and sector growth to provide
comprehensive support and facilitate the sustainable
and healthy development of the Company. Currently,
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. has introduced
production management officers to the Company in order
to facilitate the increase in the production management
capabilities and provide convenience for the exports of
the Company in terms of market expansion.

(1) As at the date of this interim report, there is
no outstanding undertaking relating to business
performance.

(2) As at the date of this interim report, there is no
outstanding undertaking relating to injection of
assets and asset consolidation.

(20) APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF AUDITORS

Any change of auditor:

No

Currently engaged

Domestic auditor

Zonzun Accounting Office Limited
Foreign auditor

KPMG
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(21) PENALTIES ON THE COMPANY, ITS DIRECTORS,

SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OFFICERS,
SHAREHOLDERS AND BENEFICIAL CONTROLLER OF
THE COMPANY, AND RECTIFICATION ISSUES

During the Reporting Period, the Company, its Directors,
Supervisors, senior management officers, shareholders and
beneficial controller of the Company were not subject to any
audit, administrative punishments, disciplinary sanctions by
the CSRC and public censure by the stock exchange.

(22) OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

The liquidation team of Winko Machines Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
the Company, accelerated the liquidation process in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. The liquidation team
has engaged lawyers to resolve the legal procedures against
the responsible parties including Ma Weiguo who are alleged
to the involved in irregularities and non-compliance and filed
the statement of claim to the People’s Court of Wuhua Distrcit
in Kunming City in mid August 2009. The hearing was held on
22nd December 2009. On 13th August 2010, the Company
received a civil judgment from the People’s Court of Wuhua
District in Kunming City “[2009] Wu Fa Min San Chu No.918
Judgment Regarding Dismissal of Appeal”, stating the dismissal
of the statement of claim made by the Company.

Pursuant to the liquidation procedures, the liquidation team
of Winko Machines Co., Ltd. proposed the debt settlement
resolution as follows: receivables of RMB7,196,994.73 and
advances payments of RMB87,000.00, shall be written off and
there was no impact on the profit or loss for the period as
full provision for bad debts was made in respect of the above
amounts written off; whereas payables of RMB2,490,255.38
shall be transferred to the gains upon liquidation. Such
resolution was passed at the 19th meeting of the sixth session
of the Board of the Company.

Under the scheme of arrangement, the liquidation team of
Winko Machines will continue to push ahead the liquidation
process in accordance with the laws.

R
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Event Publishing newspaper Publishing Date Website

RB R E GERFRFRMD R (PEFEHR)  (LBFHR) 2010F2A118 http://www.sse.com.cn
nE& (FBHER) 11th February 2010 http://www.hkex.com.hk

Indicative announcement on the
disposal of selling restricted
shares

TS
Regular report

FRAEEEEETRRERRELS

Announcement on the results of
the 15th meeting of the sixth
session of the Board

ERNEEEEENRERABLE

Announcement on the results of
the sixth meeting of the sixth
session of the Supervisory
Committee

ARFEGRHBEMEERERS
Announcement on the recognition
of the Company as a high and

new tech enterprise

2010 —ZFERERLERNS
Announcement of the first quarterly
results for 2010

TS
Regular report

MR AR2009F ERRFERmA
Notice of 2009 AGM

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(FEZESFH) (LEEF®)
(EHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(FEIZESR) (LEEF®)
(EHFER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(FEIZESR) (LEEF®)
(EHFR)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(FEIZESFR) (LEEF®)
(EHFR)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(FEIZESFH) (LEEF®)
(EHFER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(FEIZESFH) (LEEF®)
(EHFER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(FEIESFH) (LEEF®)
(EHFER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

20103 A25H
25th March 2010

201043 A25H
25th March 2010

201043 A25H
25th March 2010

201043 A25H
25th March 2010

20104 A13H
13th April 2010

2010%4H26H
26th April 2010

20105A7H
7th May 2010

http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

Interim Report 2010

Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited

1




ESE] TS AT & B R RE SRR HBENEBARERBRERR
Event Publishing newspaper Publishing Date Website
ER#RESEASE (PEBEHR)  (LBEHR) 201054128 http://www.sse.com.cn *

Announcement from the Board of
Kunming Machine Tool

2009F ERRAGH AR
Supplemental notice of 2009 AGM

ZOONFERRFERELS

Announcement on the results of
2009 AGM

2009F EARD AR E R E R
DESHEERAE RS
Announcement on the payment of
dividend for A shares and the
implementation of bonus issue
by capitalization of capital
reserve for 2009

(EHFR)
China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

<<EP BEESR)  (LBZEFHR)

BHER)
Chma Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(hEZEFR) (L&
(FBHER)

China Securities Daily,

Shanghai Securities News and

Securities Times

<<EPI g5 (LBEFR)

BHER)
Chma Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

FHH) -

12th May 2010

20106 H7H
7th June 2010

201056 H24H
24th June 2010

201047 H12H
12th July 2010

http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

-

MEEEEARKROERAA 2010 FHRE




t - BBRETHHRE

A RETESFHENRR

(—) BB H*
EHEEEEBR
20106 A30H

HRRE - UL B BIRAE]

VII.

(1)

FINANCIAL REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 30th June 2010

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE PRC GAAP

By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

By T BE:ARK

Unit: RMB
Bt HARBREE FAEREE
As at As at
HAE Items Notes  30th June 2010 31st December 2009
REBEE : CURRENT ASSETS:
B®ES Monetary assets 361,369,140.78 280,102,559.13
EEENS Settlement reserves - -
wHES Loans to other banks - -
RHMERMEE Trading financial assets - -
fEM Z= B Bills receivable 174,011,055.79 186,485,466.36
FEUAR K Accounts receivable 207,742,150.43 177,604,480.70
TEF 3kIE Prepayments 81,608,572.41 39,877,114.75
JEUIR & Premiums receivable - -
FEUL 5 1R BR X Reinsurance accounts receivable - -
RS REREHS Reinsurance contract reserve
receivable - -
FEURFI B, Interests receivable - -
JiE U i ) Dividends receivable - -
H A E WK Other receivables 17,803,095.51 19,826,304.26
BARESREE Purchase and sell-back of
financial assets - -
FE Inventories 644,764,442.70 610,288,482.06
—FRIEMNIETRHEE  Non-current assets due
within one year - -
BEMrsEE Other current assets - -
REBEEST TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,487,298,457.62 1,314,184,407.26
FERBEE : NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
BREZEERRBK Entrusted loans and advances granted - -
AEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets - -
BEZIHIRE Held-to-maturity investment - -
£ HA & Wk Long-term receivables - -
RERER A Long-term equity investment 52,616,928.54 56,019,887.06
KE MR E Real estate held for investment - -
EEEE Fixed assets 451,803,031.48 464,015,461.93
EETRE Construction in progress 109,690,054.56 99,821,730.63
TRYE Project materials - _
EE & EER Disposal of fixed assets - -
EEGEYMEE Productive biological assets - -
HREE Oil assets - -
B EE Intangible assets 34,537,504.16 35,886,800.80
FEE ST Development cost - -
EES Goodwill 7,296,277.00 7,296,277.00
REIF#SB A Long-term deferred expenditures 319,502.51 433,422.50
BEFRSIEE Deferred income tax assets 47,934,782.38 46,775,638.38
HaIERBEE Other non-current assets - -
FRBEEST TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 704,198,080.63 710,249,218.30
EEAR TOTAL ASSETS 2,191,496,538.25 2,024,433,625.56
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EHEERER(E)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

20106 H30H As at 30th June 2010
ERIB (7« L EE B B BH I K IR (7 B R A B By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
By - or BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
HtaE HIREREE FHE
As at As at
HE Items Notes  30th June 2010 31st December 2009
REEME CURRENT LIABILITIES:
REER Short-term loans 70,000,000.00 70,000,000.00
6] FR SRR 1T 18 X Borrowings from central bank = =
W AT 3K B[R S 77 1 Deposits from customers and
deposits from banks received - -
FAE® Loans from other banks = =
RpEEHmEE Trading financial liabilities = =
JEIT =B Bills payable 30,257,114.00 8,370,000.00
fE 1T BR 5K Accounts payable 241,197,082.83 183,186,540.07
A ERIE Advance from customers 395,059,931.57 374,213,169.95
ENDESREER Gain on disposal of repurchased
financial assets - -
BRNFEERAS Fees and commissions payable - -
JFEE < Bk T 37 I Accrued salary 27,864,311.91 39,863,443.01
X & Taxes payable 7,125,027.07 26,349,931.91
JEAT T &2, Interests payable - -
1< A% ) Dividends payable 21,379,142.64 344,092.75
A FE A 3R Other payables 22,631,407.14 16,925,660.07
FES D IRER R Reinsurance accounts payables - -
RESREHS Insurance contract reserve payable - -
RIBEEZESFK Agency securities trading - -
RIBAHF A2 Agency securities underwriting - -
—ERNRHHNIEREAMB  Non-current liabilities due
within one year - -
HtRehaE Other current liabilities - -
REBAEES TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 815,514,017.16 719,252,837.76
FRBEE: NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
REAER Long-term borrowings - -
fE & 75 Bonds payable - -
RAET X Long-term payables 2,622,988.10 2,558,508.20
HIHE TR Specific payables 100,000.00 100,000.00
AR Contingent liabilities 15,479,698.71 11,885,194.70
BLEFTSREE Deferred income tax liabilities - -
Hib3ERBEE Other non-current liabilities 19,920,953.21 11,863,603.31
FRBEBET TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 38,123,640.02 26,407,306.21
aEas TOTAL LIABILITIES 853,637,657.18 745,660,143.97
EEER Total owners’ equity
(HIRFER) : (or shareholders’ equity):
i”ﬂléﬁﬁ(ﬁkﬂﬁ ) Paid-in capital (or share capital) 424,864,883.00 424,864,883.00
BARR Capital reserve 133,519,541.72 133,519,541.72
Ve Eﬁﬂ& Less: treasury shares - -
HIAEE Special reserve - -
B RAE Surplus reserve 90,250,998.55 90,250,998.55
— R R Common risk provision - -
R BR A Undistributed profits 629,354,310.74 568,378,612.85
9\\%#&2§?ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ Foreign currency translation difference - -
EEBREARIE Total equity attributable to the
EFEDA owners of the parent company 1,277,989,734.01 1,217,014,036.12
DI R E R Minority interests 59,869,147.06 61,759,445.47
FEEERE TOTAL OWNERS’ EQUITY 1,337,858,881.07 1,278,773,481.59
BENFEEREDAT TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
OWNERS’ EQUITY 2,191,496,538.25 2,024,433,625.56
EEREA - = B Legal representative of the Company: Mr. Gao Minghui
FEQHIEARE /\ 7 5 B Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo
e HEAT A HIEX Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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BAREERER
201046 A30H

BALANCE SHEET OF THE PARENT COMPANY
As at 30th June 2010

MR B - L F R AR AR (7 B IR 2 F] By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

Bz T BE: AR

Unit: RMB
Bt it HREREE FYEREE
As at As at
HH Items Notes  30th June 2010 31st December 2009
REEE : CURRENT ASSETS:
EBES Monetary assets 291,190,179.97 237,844,655.24
REMEHMEE Trading financial assets = =
R Bills receivable 144,882,537.22 154,667,406.36
FEUAR K Accounts receivable 157,100,401.00 138,513,373.63
AT RIE Prepayments 18,912,257.24 10,094,839.52
JEURFI B, Interests receivable - -
& LS 3% ) Dividends receivable 11,000,000.00 11,000,000.00
H b YR Other receivables 10,714,989.36 14,153,705.06
BE Inventories 485,446,363.97 430,395,804.09

—FREHNERBEE

Non-current assets due
within one year

HE i BE Other current assets - -
REBEESS TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,119,246,728.76 996,669,783.90
ERBEE : NON-CURRENT ASSETS:

AtHESMEE Available-for-sale financial assets - -

BEZIHRE Held-to-maturity investment - -

£ HA e WK Long-term receivables - -

RERERE Long-term equity investment 80,310,194.61 83,713,152.92

BB E Real estate held for investment - -

EE & Fixed assets 396,613,325.91 405,827,528.95

rETE Construction in progress 109,690,054.56 99,821,730.63

TEME Project materials - -

EE & EER Disposal of fixed assets - -

EEEEMEE Productive biological assets - -

HREE Oil assets - -

B EE Intangible assets 21,904,811.82 23,109,339.68

F 2 SZ H Development cost - -

EES Goodwill - -

REF#E A Long-term deferred expenditures 262,762.10 354,579.80

BEFTEMEE Deferred income tax assets 47,899,649.49 46,988,759.14

HEM3ERESEE Other non-current assets - -
FRBEEST TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 656,680,798.49 659,815,091.12
EEHA TOTAL ASSETS 1,775,927,527.25 1,656,484,875.02
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HREN  THEEEH K BRAF]

BALANCE SHEET OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

As at 30th June 2010

By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

By T BE ARK

Unit: RMB
kA HiREREE FIEREE
As at As at
HH Items Notes  30th June 2010 31st December 2009
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES:
kO ERfE K Short-term loans 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00
REMEHEE Trading financial liabilities = =
e iR Bills payable = =
FETBR K Accounts payable 167,790,479.73 122,361,074.78
FEURFRIA Advance from customers 231,714,483.97 230,330,889.56
JFEE < B8 T 57 Accrued salary 25,797,265.05 38,331,377.43
BRI E Taxes payable 8,531,022.97 24,614,699.42
JEAS T 2 Interests payable - -
JE A~ A% Dividends payable 21,243,244.15 -
H bR Other payables 14,793,190.93 9,747,695.01
—FRIEENIERBEE Non-current liabilities due
within one year - -
HEimEhaEd Other current liabilities - -
REBEEA TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 519,869,686.80 475,385,736.20
FREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
REFER Long-term borrowings - -
B EH Bonds payable - -
RAFET X Long-term payables 2,622,988.10 2,558,508.20
HIAFERT K Specific payables - -
EErEE Contingent liabilities 15,479,698.71 11,874,528.03
RIEFEHRAE Deferred income tax liabilities - -
HiIERBBE Other non-current liabilities 19,920,953.21 11,863,603.31
ERBEBEEE TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 38,023,640.02 26,296,639.54
=Lty TOTAL LIABILITIES 557,893,326.82 501,682,375.74
FrEERER (RRRER): Owners’ equity (or
shareholders’ equity)
EUWE R (S PRA) Paid-in capital (or share capital) 424,864,883.00 424,864,883.00
BERNIE Capital reserve 133,519,541.72 133,519,541.72
o BIFR Less: treasury shares - -
HIAE Special reserve - -
B RNIE Surplus reserve 90,250,998.55 90,250,998.55
— R RS Common risk provision -

R BCH

Undistributed profits

569,398,777.16

506,167,076.01

FrEEER(IRFER)EF TOTAL OWNERS’ EQUITY (OR

BENREERD
(SRR ER) A5

REEREREA -
IEGHIEARA
BEHBBERA -

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY)

1,218,034,200.43

1,154,802,499.28

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’
EQUITY (OR SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY)

1,775,927,527.25

1,656,484,875.02

= AR Legal representative of the Company:
2 32 B Chief Financial Officer:
FHIE S Prepared by:

Mr. Gao Minghui
Mr. Pi Jianguo
Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
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Total profits (“-" for loss)
Less: Income tax expenses

Net profits (“-" for loss)

Net profit attributable to the owners’
of the parent company

Minority interests

Earnings per share
(1) Basic EPS
(2) Diluted EPS

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income attributable
to owners of the parent company

Total comprehensive income attributable to
minority shareholders

Legal representative of the Company:

Chief Financial Officer:
Prepared by:

2010 1—6 A For the six months ended 30th June 2010
ARRIES (7 - ST B B R IR (7 B R 2N &) By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
Bfy g ME: ARK
Unit: RMB
HaF HIRERER L EAgREE
For the six months ended 30th June
HH Items Notes 2010 2009
— EZEAWA 1. Total operating income 755,989,902.35 662,304,061.26
Hep - &2 Including: Operating income 755,989,902.35 662,304,061.26
FIEHA Interest income L -
ERRE Premium earned = =
FEERASBA Fee and commission income = =
TOEEARK 2. Total operating costs
Hebh ¥R Including: Operating costs 529,677,801.04 425,404,080.59
MEZH Interest expense - -
FEERAE XN Fee and commission expenses - -
RIRS Premium refunded - -
BT HFE Net compensation expenses - -
RORRERERES TR Net insurance contract
reserve withdrawn - -
REAAZ Premium bonus expenses - -
NRER Reinsurance expenses - -
SEB S RN Business tax and additions 261,173.91 386,392.28
HEER Selling expenses 56,290,060.78 33,127,359.55
ERER Administrative expenses 62,114,910.99 80,267,587.98
NBER Finance expenses 1,531,518.67 3,969,449.32
BERERE Losses on impairment of assets 13,950,993.84 14,519,594.19
m: ’&ﬁt@ﬁﬁ*@]ﬂ&x Add: Gain on fair value change
(BRI [— ] EF) ("=" for loss) - -
REWR (BEU [ KEF) Investment income ("~" for loss) 1,886,233.07 6,047,863.99
Hep: GBEPEA Including: Investment income from
RELENEENE associates and joint
ventures - -
B o Exchange gain ("-" for loss)
(BELA [— 1 RES]) - -
= EERB(ERU - 5RE) 3. Operating profits (=" for loss) 94,049,676.19 110,677,461.34
m: “%%W Add: Non-operating income 983,751.22 18,697,927.19
W EEME Less: Non-operating expenses 1,942,749.59 718,531.21
HEP FRBEERERL Including: loss on disposal
of non-current assets 291,516.80 160,166.72

93,090,677.82
12,762,034.19

128,656,857.32
12,274,031.25

80,328,643.63

116,382,826.07

82,218,942.04 116,106,525.94
(1,890,298.41) 276,300.13
0.1548 0.2186
0.1548 0.2186

Mr. Gao Minghui

Mr. Pi Jianguo
Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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INCOME STATEMENT OF THE PARENT COMPANY
For the six months ended 30th June 2010

By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

BT KE:AREK

Unit: RMB
et HRer%E L HAGREE
For the six months ended 30th June

EHH Items Notes 2010 2009

CEERA 1. Operating income 647,506,012.08 543,322,717.51

»& COBERA Less: Operating costs 433,196,198.68 326,307,342.79

EEB @ KM Business tax and additions L -

HEER Selling expenses 52,760,560.56 28,093,155.54

EREBH Administrative expenses 50,138,181.48 67,144,115.23

HKER Finance expenses 114,986.06 2,516,216.37
BERERXL Losses on impairment of assets 14,139,400.71

e RREEEDHKE (B -

BEWE (BRI -] &)
Ao HBECEMA 2L ENRERS

— EXFBOUBERU - IR 2,

e E2EMNEA
B BRI
A FRBEERERK

= FERR(BRAREU - IREN) 3.

B FERER

- BABOBBEMN - RH5) 4.

I BRKE 5.

(—) &R
(Z)mEska

Ao BfpiRa s 6.
tGEUEAR 7.
RAENVEEREKRA =
FTESHIEATA g
SRIEBRAEA izbi-Eas

J5%4E%) Add: Gain on fair value change

("=" for loss)
Investment income (“=" for loss)
Including: Investment income from
associates and joint ventures

Operating profits ("-" for loss)
Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses
Including: loss on disposal

of non-current assets

Total profits (“-" for loss)
Less: Income tax expenses

Net profits (“-" for loss)

Earnings per share
(1) Basic EPS
(2) Diluted EPS

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Legal representative of the Company:

Chief Financial Officer:
Prepared by:

1,886,233.07

15,650,040.53

6,047,863.99

98,042,917.66
947,218.28
1,641,348.35

109,659,711.04
18,427,847.19
632,005.63

97,348,7817.59
12,873,842.29

127,455,552.60
11,873,198.91

84,474,945.30

115,582,353.69

0.2176
0.2176

Mr. Gao Minghui

Mr. Pi Jianguo
Ms. Zhao Qiongfen

-
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2010 1—6 A For the six months ended 30th June 2010
HEIE N LHEEEE KRG ERA A By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
By TR - ARK
Unit: RMB
Mzt rHeE LtHeE
For the six months ended 30th June
EHE Items Notes 2010 2009
- RETHELNBERE: 1. Cash flows from operating activities:
HEAm  RESHUINES Cash received from sale of goods or rendering of services 679,282,052.27 510,429,591.99
EPERNREFHTIEFENE Net increase in deposits from customers and deposits
) from other banks = =
R A RAT AT LM Net increase in borrowings from central bank = -
MEMSBEERAESTENE Net increase in loans from other financial institutions = =
W RRESARENENHRE Cash premiums received from existing insurance contracts - -
Y BRRERRRTE Net cash received from reinsurance business - -
REGERBATFANE Net increase in deposit and investment from the insured - -
Jﬁﬁx\%\ii@ﬁéﬁ‘ Net increase on disposal of trading financial assets - -
WEFE - F& E&ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁé Cash from interest, fee and commission received - -
wA ﬁé . Net increase in loans from other banks - -
DREsBESF UJIJ%E Net increase in loans of repurchased business -
WEMHEBRE Refund of tax received - 17,172,846. 19
WHEpRERERERNRS Other cash received relating to operating activities 9,301,616.87 2,167,410.08
LEEBRETAN Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 688,583,669.14 529,769,848.26
BERG  BEX4BIANES Cash paid for purchase of goods and services 382,107,064.43 266,713,256.98
EPEHNRBREENE Net increase in customer loans and advances - -
@Eﬂl??&fifﬁﬂ@%%ﬂlﬁ\#iﬂﬂgﬁ Net increase in deposits with central bank
and other banks - -
iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ’\@@ IHENES Cash compensations paid for existing insurance contracts - -
IRFS  FEERELHRS Cash paid for interest, fee and commission - -
FREECAHTES Cash paid for premium bonus - -
TRAEBINRAEBILANES Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 115,958,975.63 103,628,001.90
HiEERE Taxed paid 53,555,743.77 17,396,128.43
SHEMRSSEHEENES Other cash paid relating to operating activities 38,988,086.38 73,820,753.55
BEEYRL MM/ Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 590,609,870.21 461,558,140.86
LEEYELNREREFE Net cash flows from operating activities 97,973,798.93 68,211,707.40
o REEBELENRERE 2. Cash flows from investing activities:
WEREREIMRS Cash received from recovery of investment - -
RERERERINR S Cash received from return on investment 5,289,191.40 9,500,000.00
REETEE - BYEEN Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
A RAEAERENTR S ER intangible assets and other long-term assets 239,675.00 71,102.00
RE TR RAMERENLE Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries
WATFE and other business units - -
WEEEEREEDERNRS Other cash received relating to investing activities - -
REAZYRSMANG Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 5,528,866.40 9,571,102.00
BEETEE  BYEEAN Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible
EtRMEETANES assets and other long-term assets 20,479,652.01 34,010,510.35
Tﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬁ Cash paid for investment - -
Eﬁgmﬁi ik Net increase in pledged loans - -
CS N T&H@Liiﬂiﬁ Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and
bl other business units - -
SREMEREFEERN RS Other cash paid relating to investing activities - -
REEBRE MGt Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 20,479,652.01 34,010,510.35
REEHELNREREFE Net cash flows from investing activities (14,950,785.61) (24,439,408.35)

Interim Report 2010 Shenji G

roup Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited

> I




EHRERER(E)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

A FRAXREOERR
RO - M
XREMESEEHAENRE

SERPRERM/ NG

LETHELNTIERERE

mERSBURERESSENNTE

I -RERBESENFENR
m: BRe RREEENHE

A BRRERRESENGE

NEPEEREA -
TEEHIFAEA:
SRRBREA

= R
2
B

Including: Dividends and profits paid by subsidiaries
to minority shareholders
Other cash paid relating to financing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Prepared by:

Legal representative of the Company:
Chief Financial Officer:

2010 1—6 A For the six months ended 30th June 2010
MR E N : S F R BRI (7 5 R 2 ] By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
By : TITE - ARK
Unit: RMB
fitit Pl tHeE
For the six months ended 30th June
IEE Items Notes 2010 2009
EETHELNRERE 3. Cash flows from financing activities:
”MU AlzlmEe Cash received from capital contribution = =
£ FRRARKOERE Including: Cash received from investment of
RERINES minority shareholders of subsidiaries = =
RERTRUKENRS Cash from borrowings 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
ETRANEENRS Cash received from bond issuance - -
BIEREEEEDERNR S Other cash received relating to financing activities - -
ELEHHETANGT Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
EUE%‘ZHE’J%% Cash repayments for amounts borrowed 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
AERF - MEREFAFELAORE  Cash paid for distribution of dividends, profits
or repayment of interest expenses 1,756,431.67 1,868,507.00

21,756,431.67

21,868,507.00

(1,756,431.67)

(1,868,507.00)

(703,258.58)

81,266,581.65

280,102,559.13

41,200,533.47

327,941,401.88

361,369,140.78

369,141,935.35

Mr. Gao Minghui

Mr. Pi Jianguo
Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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5.

6.

Net cash flows from financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

201056 1—6 A For the six months ended 30th June 2010
MR B - L HEE B KR (9 B R 2 7] By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
By : THTE - AR
Unit: RMB
fisE XHeE LtHeE
For the six months ended 30th June
EHE Items 2010 2009
= %@%%Eﬁéiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ 1. Cash flows from operating activities:
HEED - RESKKE ‘JE’ﬁﬁé Cash received from sale of goods or rendering of services 457,279,207.59 383,265,328.88
BRMHBRE Tax refund received - 17,172,846.19
WHEpRERERERNRS Other cash received relating to operating activities 8,836,043.46 1,018,866.73
BEEBRETANG Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 466,115,251.05 401,457,041.80
BERG  BEX4BIANEE Cash paid for purchase of goods and services 214,781,147.21 217,465,615.23
IREBTURBRIZR0RS Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 105.564,235.70 87,755,775.06
WWIE% B Taxes paid 17,292,884.54 13,920,580.45
INEMEELERABSES Other cash paid relating to operating activities 29,374,133.70 19,824,717.82
TEEHRL MG Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 397,012,401.15 338,966,688.56
REEHELNREREFE Net cash flows from operating activities 69,102,849.90 62,490,353.24
o REFHELNRERE: 2. Cash flows from investing activities:
”&@T BEmR e Cash received from recovery of investment - -
NEREkRIEINR S Cash received from return on investment 5,289,191.40 9,500,000.00
Jﬁﬁliéf EEER Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
A RAEAERENRLFR intangible assets and other long-term assets 239,257.00 71,102.00
REFRRREMEZEN Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries
WEINR S FE and other business units - -
WEHHEMEREEDERANSR S Other cash received relating to investing activities - -
RERBRSTANG Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 5,528,448.40 9,571,102.00
BEETEE BYEEAN Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible
EtRMEETANRS assets and other long-term assets 20,093,678.57 33,661,846.05
RExfiRE Cash paid for investment - -
REFRARAMEREN Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and other
XM EFE business units . _
XEEMEREEHERNRS Other cash paid relating to investing activities - -
REGHREMML G Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 20,093,678.57 33,661,846.05
REZHEENRENETE Net cash flows from investing activities (14,565,230.17) (24,090,744.05)
S EEEBELNRENE 3. Cash flows from financing activities:
U B EI B & Cash received from capital contribution - -
NEETIENRS Cash from borrowings - -
”M (HESZEHEHNRS Other cash received relating to financing activities - -
EERBREMANG Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities - -
BEEBZANTS Cash repayment paid for amount borrowed - -
HEHRF - FEREN Cash paid for distribution of dividends, profits or
FIEZ BB S repayment of interest expenses 1,192,095.00 1,269,450.00
SNEMESSTHERNRE Other cash paid relating to financing activities - -
LEEPRS MM Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 1,192,095.00 1,269,450.00

(1,192,095.00)

(1,269,450.00)

on cash and cash equivalents - (703,258.58)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 53,345,524.73 36,426,900.61
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

of the period 237,844,655.24 279,084,078.67
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 291,190,179.97 315,510,979.28
= B Legal representative of the Company: Mr. Gao Minghui
gg Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo
IR Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the six months ended 30th June 2010

By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

Bl T B ARK
Unit: RMB
¥ ]
For the six months ended 30th June 2010
SRRSLAANELRE
Attributable to the equity holders of the parent company

RUEA(RE) EA0R HEAR SERR BBNE  -REREE  AAEWE Bk ORRREE fEEEEGH
Total
Paid-in capital Less: Special Surplus Common  Undistributed Minority owners’
58 Items (or share capital) Capital reserve treasury shares reserve Reserve risk provision profit Others interest equity
- LEEREE 1, Closing balance of prior year 486488300 13351954172 - - 9025099855 - SG837861245 - BTOM4T 1,278 T3 46159
1 gihseE Add: Changes n accounting polices - - - - - - - - -
HIBERTE Pror period adjustment - - - - - - - - - -
i Others - - - - - - - - - -
2 REE(RE 2. Opening balance of current year 424.864,883.00  133,519,541.72 - - 90,250,998.55 - 568,378,612.85 - 61,759,445.47 1,278,773 48159
3. Changes during the period (" for decrease) - - - - - - 60,975,697.89 - (1,890,29841)  59,085,399.48
(1) Net profits - - - - - - 8,218942.04 - (1890.29841)  80,328,643.83
(2) Other comprehensive income - - - - - - - - - -
(=100 Sub-otal of (1) and (2) - - - - - 82,218.94204 - (18%029841) 8032866363

(Z) FEERATIR VRS (3) Capital contibution and reduction by owners
1+ FEERAER fi) - Capita contrbution by owners - - - - - - - - - -
1 RAXMiARERERNSE (i) Share-based payments recognized in owners' equity - - - - - - - - - =
(i) Others - - - - - - - - -
(4) Profit distribution - - - - - - (21,043,244.15) - - (21,243,244.15)
(i) Transfer to surplus resene - - - - - - - - - -
(i) Transfer to common risk reserve - - - - - - - - -
(i) Transfer to owners (or shareholders) - - - - - - (21,043,24.15) - - (21,043,244.15)
(i) Others - - - - - - - - - -

5) Owbers' equity internally carried forward
(i} Capitalization of captal reserve - - - - - - - - - -
(i) Capitalization of surplus reserve - - - - - - - - - -
(i) Losses offset by surplus reserve - - - - - - - - -
(i) Others - - - - - - - - - -

(6) Special reserve

(i) Withdrawn in the period - - - - - - - - -
(i) Utlzed in the period - - - - - - - - - -
I KBRS 4. Closing halance of current period 424.864,883.00 133,519,541.72 - - 90,250,998.55 - 629,354,310.74 - 59,869,147.06 1,337,858,881.07
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EOHMEERESER(E) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Continued)
20101—6H For the six months ended 30th June 2010
Ry - R B AR R (7 B R 2 7] By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
By T M ARK
Unit: RMB
LERHEE
For the six months ended 30th June 2009
BERBLAIERE
Attributable to the owners of the parent company
RhEA(ERE) B0 HiERR SEER BB -RERER  AREAE b JERREE FRARES
Total
Paid-in capital Less: Special Surplus Common ~ Undistributed Minority owners'
ER Items (or share capital) ~ Capital reserve  treasury shares reserve reserve risk provision profit Others interests equity
- LEEREE 1. Closing halance of prior year 42086488300 133,519,541.72 - 68,599,140.08 - 469045 - 6448028839 1,105710,800.64
- $HEREE Add: Changes n accounting polices - - - - - - - - - -
HBZEEL Pror period adjustment - - - - - - - , B ,
it Others - - - - - - - - _ _
2 REFIRE 2. Opening balance of current year 424,864,883.00 133,519,541.72 - - 68,599,140.08 - 414,246,947.45 - 64,480,288.39 1,105,710,800.64
S REEREHSEHON - RBT) 3. Changes during the period (" for decrease) - - - - - - 75,956,195.97 - 2630013 76,233,096.10
(=) &l (1) Net profits - - - - - - 116,106,525.94 - 27630013 116,382,826.07
(2) Other comprehensive income
Sub-total of (1) and (2) - - - - - - _ _ R _
(3) Capital contibution and recuction by owners
(i) Capital contribution by owners - - - - - - - B R _
(i) Share-based payments recognized
in owners' equity - - - - - - - - R _
3 £ (i) Others - - - - - - _ R R -
() HEAR &) Profit distrloution - - - - - - (40,149,730.00) - - (40,149,730.00)
1+ RERERLE {iy Tansfer to surplus reserve - - - - - - - R , R
1 RO-HERER (i) Transfer to common risk reserve - - - - - - R _ _ -
3. HEEE(ERRNAR () Transer to owners {or shareholders) - - - - - - (40,14973000) - - (40,149,73000)
4 Ef (i) Others - - - - - - - - , ,
() frezRangd (5] Owners' equity internally caried forward
- ERL (i) Capitaization of capital eserve - - - - - - - - R -
(i) Capitalization of surplus reserve - - - - - - - - - -
(i) Losses offset by surplus reserve - - - - - - - - - -
(i) Others - - - - - - - - R -
( (6] Special reserve
{i) Witharawn in the period - - - - - - - B R _
(i) Utlized in the period - - - - - - - - R -
N KBERAE 4. Closing balance of current period 424,864,883.00 133,519,541.72 - - 68,599,140.08 - 490,203,743.42 - 64,756,588.52 1,181,943,86.74
NEPEERE A =R Legal representative of the Company: Mr. Gao Minghui
TEEFIEEEA 5g=4E1 Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo
FEHEEEEA RIE Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE PARENT
COMPANY

For the six months ended 30th June 2010

By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

Efz - BB ARK

Unit: RMB
KELE
For the six months ended 30th June 2010
RUER(RA) Fuin H EER SEERE BBIE -RBRER FARHE fiEgREAT
Total
Paid-in capital Less: Spedial Surplus Common Undistributed owners'
AR Items (or share capital) ~ Capital reserve treasury shares reserve reserve risk provision profit equity
- LEERHE 1, Closing balanc of prior year DOZASE00 13351954072 L S 0099855 < SOGIETOTGNT  1,154,802,490.8
1 SHBREE Add: Changes in accounting policies - - - . . B . ,
HHEEEE Prior period adjustment - - - - - . - _
it Others - - - - , B . .
o REEYRE 2. Opening balance of current year 0486488300 133519,51.72 - - 90,250,998.55 - S06167,07%6.01  1,154,802,499.28
= KBERABSE(IOU - JRER) 3. Changes during the period (" for decrease) - - - - - S RBILG B217015
(-)#HR (1) Net profts - - - - - - BTN B44TA9S3
(2) Elbkaka (2} Other comprehensive income - - - B - - , ,
Hi(-)a(z)ps Sub-total of (1) and (2) - - - - - - 84,474,945.30 8447494530
(Z) FEERARR) B (3] Capital contibution and reduction by owners - - - - - - - ,
1 fERRA (i) Capital contribution by owners - - - - - . R _
(i) Share-based payments recognized
in owners' equity - - - - - - R R
3 i (i) Others - . - - - : R R
(m) HEAE ) Profitditribution - - - - - S 124326405)  (21,243,244.15)
1 RRESNE {iy Transfer to surplus reserve - - - - - . R _
1 RR-RERER (i) Transfer to common rsk eserve - - - - - B - .
3 HFEEGERR)NAR (i) Transer to owners (or shareholders - - - - - S (324415)  (21,243,44.15)
4 Bt (i) Others - - - - - - , .
(B) FpEandLE (5] Owners' equiy nternally caried forward - - - - - . - _
R ERE(ERE) fi) Capitaization of capital resenve - - - - - - - ,
N (i) Capitalization of surplus reserve - - - - - - - -
3 (i) Losses offset by surplus resenve - - - - - - - -
A (i) Others - - - - - - R R
() EEEE (6] Special reserve - - . . . B . ,
1+ AHER {i) Withdrawn in the period - - - - - B - .
1+ RHER fi) - Utiized in the period - - - B - - , ,
B REARGE 4. Closing balance of current period 0086488300 1335195172 - - 9025099855 - SEO308777.06  1,218,034,20043

-

MEEBEARKROERAA 2010 FHRE




BARMEERRBER(E)

2010F1—6 A

HRHREN  TEEEZHEER D FRAF]

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE PARENT
COMPANY (Continued)

For the six months ended 30th June 2010

By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
By - BE:ARK

Unit: RMB
LERHEE
For the six months ended 30th June 2009
Rhkx(3R%) R0R B ERR E BBIE -RBRER FARHR fE2REAH
Total
Paid-in capital Less: Spedial Surplus Common Undistributed owners'
ER Items (or share capital) ~ Capital reserve treasury shares reserve reserve risk provision profit equity
- HEERBE 1. Closing balance of prior year DIBEARR00  13351954T = - 6B50,140.08 - BN 9TB383UN
- GHERES Add: Changes in accounting policies - - = - - . _ _
HBERET Prior period adjustment - - - - . . R -
it Others - - - - , . , ,
o REEYRE 2. Opening balance of current year 0486488300 133519,541.72 - - 6859,140.08 - 35136482013 978,348,384.93
= REBFSBLE(RIN - [EE5) 3. Changes during the period (" for decrease) - - - - - - 754326312 7543260372
(=) #HlA (1) Net profs - - - - - ST 155835369
(2) Other comprehensive income - - - - - - - _
Sub-total of (1) and (2) - - - - - R _ _
(3) Capital contribution and reduction by owners
1 FEERAER fi) Capial contribution by owners - - - - B B _ _
1 RORMHAEZRENEE fi) - Share-based payments recognized
in owners' equity - - . R - ; R R
(i) Others - - - - - - - _
(&) roft disrbution - - - - - S (01973000 (40,14973000)
(i) Transfer to surplus reserve - - - - - - - _
(i) Transfer to common risk reserve - - - - - R - -
(i) Transfer to owners (or shareholders) - - - - - - (40149,730.00)  (40,149,730.00)
(i) Others - - - - - - - _
(5) Owners' equity internally carried forward
(i) Capitalization of capital reserve - - - - - - - -
(i) Capitalization of surplus reserve - - - - - - - _
(i) Losses offset by surplus reserve - - - - - - - _
(i) Others - - - - - R - _
(6) Special reserve
(i) Withdrawn in the period - - - - - R - -
(i) tlized in the period - - - - - - - _
0 SHARHE 4. Closing balance of current period 0486488300 133,519,541.72 - - 68,599,140.08 - MT9TAA385  1,053,781,008.65
NAPEERERA - SEAE Legal representative of the Company: Mr. Gao Minghui
TEEFTIEAEEA g =4e1 Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo
GEIHEEEA FisBi=PaS Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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(2) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The name of the Company has been changed from Jiaoda
Kunji High-Tech Co. Ltd ("JKHT") to Shenyang Group Kunming
Machine Tool Co,. Ltd. Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.) was
established in the People’s Republic of China as a sino-foreign
joint stock limited company as part of the reorganization of a
state-owned enterprise known as Kunming Machine Tool Plant
("KMTP"). Pursuant to the reorganization, the operations,
assets and liabilities of KMTP were divided between the
Company and Kunming Kunji Group Company (“Kunji Group
Company”). The Company was established on 19th October
1993. The Company’s A Shares and H Shares have been listed
in Shanghai and Hong Kong respectively. The Company is
engaged principally in the development, design, production
and sale of machine tool products and parts, IT products, high
power products, integrated optical, mechanical and electrical
products; development of high-tech products; transfer of
proprietary technical know-how; provision of technical services
and technical advisory services.

On 15th September 2005, Jiaoda Industrial and Shenyang
Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. entered into an agreement
regarding transfer of shares. Shenyang Machine Tool (Group)
Co., Ltd. agreed to purchase 71,052,146 shares of Jiaoda Kunji
High-tech Co., Ltd. held by Jiaoda Industrial, representing
29% of the total shares of the Company. The share transfer
was approved pursuant to the “Written Reply regarding the
Transfer of State-owned Shares of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co.,
Ltd.” (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2006] No.628) issued by State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Committee of
the State Council and the Opinion on Information Disclosure
of the Acquisition of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd. by
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jian Gong
Si [2006] No.255) by China Securities Regulation Committee.
On 1st December 2006, the register of equity transfer was
completed and Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd.
became the largest shareholder of the Company instead of
Jiaoda Industrial.

___EE
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On 4th April 2006, pursuant to the “Written Reply of the
People’'s Government of Yunnan Province regarding the
Transfer of Title of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd.” issued
by the People’s Government of Yunnan Province and the
“Written Reply of Yunnan State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Committee regarding the Grant of Authorization
to Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. to Exercise
the Shareholders’ Right of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd.”
issued by Yunnan State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Committee, 31,345,600 state-owned shares
held by the People’s Government of Yunnan (representing
12.79% total issued shares) were transferred to Yunnan State-
owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. at nil consideration on 31st
December 2005. The share transfer was approved by the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Committee of
the State Council pursuant to the “Written Reply regarding
the Transfer of Part of the State-owned Shares of Jiaoda Kunji
High-tech Co., Ltd.” (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2006] No.1412).
The transfer was completed on 19th January 2007.

On 25th January 2007, the "Written Reply regarding the
Transfer of Shares and Increase in Share of Jiaoda Kunji High-
Tech Co., Ltd.” (Shuang Zi Pi [2007] No.133) was issued by
the Ministry of Commerce to approve the share reform proposal
of the Company, pursuant to which a total of 38,235,855
shares (as to 28,091,955 A Shares and 10,143,900 H Shares
respectively) were transferred from the capital reserve to all the
shareholders whose names appeared on the Company’s register
of members on the 26th February 2007 on the basis of 1.5606
shares for every 10 shares held. On 5th March 2007, the holders
of non-circulating shares of the Company made the payment
with a total of 18,728,355 shares held as consideration to
the holders of circulating A Shares on the basis of 2.7 shares
for every 10 shares held. The new A Shares were listed on
7th March 2007. Of 18,728,355 shares, Shenyang Machine
Tool (Group) Co., Ltd., Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation
Co., Ltd. and Jinghua Company contributed as to 11,088,398
shares, 4,891,787 shares and 2,748,170 shares respectively.
After implementation of the consideration arrangement, non-
circulating shares held by the holders of non-circulating shares
of the Company became tradable and listed.

In April 2007, two shareholders of the Company, Shenyang
Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and Yunnan State-owned
Assets Operation Co., Ltd. jointly proposed the share increase
proposal by capitalization of capital reserve on the basis of
5 shares for every 10 shares held to all the shareholders
assuming that the then total share capital of the Company
was 283,243,255 shares. The proposal was approved at the
21st meeting of the 5th session of the Board held on 18th
April 2007 and the resolution was submitted to 2006 annual
general meeting and the relevant class general meetings held
on 29th June 2007 respectively.
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On 15th August 2007, pursuant to the “Written Reply regarding
the Change of Name and Increase in Share Capital of Jiaoda
Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.” (Shuang Zi Pi [2007] No.1390)
issued by the Ministry of Commerce, the capitalization of
capital reserve to increase the share capital of the Company was
approved where the total number of shares of the Company
was increased from 283,243,255 shares to 424,864,883 shares
and the registered capital was increased to RMB424,864,883
from RMB283,243,255.

Pursuant to the “Written Reply on the Change in Shareholders
of the Six Listed Companies including Yunnan Salt & Chemical
Industry Co., Ltd.” (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2009] No.1182) issued
by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council on 22nd October 2009,
47,018,331 shares of the Company held by Yunnan tate-
owned Assets Operation Co. Ltd. (accounting for 11.07% of
the total issued share capital of the Company) were transferred
to Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. to
perform the obligations as the contributor of state-owned
assets.

On 2nd July 2010, the Company received the "Letter of
Approval from the Department of Commerce of Yunnan Province
Concerning its Consent to the Bonus Issue by Capitalization
of the Capital Reserve by Shenji Group Kunming Machine
Tool Company Limited” (Yun Nan Sheng Shang Wu Ting
Yun Shang Zi [2010] No. 130, under which it is consented
that the total share capital of the Company increases from
424,864,883 shares to 531,081,103 shares and the registered
capital increased from RMB424,864,883 to RMB531,081,103
where the increased capital was capitalized from the capital
reserve.

The place of registration of the Company is 23 Ciba Road,
Kunming City, Yunnan Province. The registered capital is
RMB424,864,883. The business registration number is
530000400000458.

I <
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(I1) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF THE

COMPANY, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND PRIOR
PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on
an ongoing concern basis and based on the actual transactions
and matters occurred and are recognized and measured in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Enterprises-
Basic Standards and other requirements of various accounting
standards.

The financial statements were approved for publication at the
19th meeting of the 6th session of the Board of the Company
on 16th August 2010.

Statement of compliance with the accounting
standards of the Company

The financial statements have been prepared by the Company in
conformity with the requirements of the accounting standards
of the Company and truly and completely reflect the Company’s
financial condition, operating results, cash flows and other
financial information.

Accounting period

The accounting period follows the Gregorian calendar and
commences on 1st January and ends on 31st December each
year.

Reporting currency

The reporting currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB").
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Accounting treatment for business combination
under common control and not under common
control

(1

For business combination under common control
during the reporting period, the Company shall adopt
the pooling of interests method for accounting. The
assets and liabilities acquired by the acquirer in business
combination shall be measured at the carrying value of
the acquiree on the date of combination. The difference
between the carrying value of the net assets acquired by
the acquirer and the carrying value of the consideration
paid for combination (or total nominal value of the
issued shares) shall be adjusted in the capital reserve.
If such difference cannot be offset against the capital
reserve, it shall be adjusted in the retained earnings.
The direct expenses incurred in business combination,
including the audit fee, appraisal fee and legal service
fee paid by the acquirer in connection with business
combination shall be included in the profit or loss when
incurred. Other liabilities including the processing fee and
commission paid for bond issuance or other obligations
in connection with business combination are included as
the initial measurement amount of bonds issued and other
obligations. The administrative charges and commission
incurred upon issuance of equity securities in business
combination shall be offset against the premium income
from equity securities. If such amount cannot be offset by
premium income, it shall be adjusted in retained earnings.
If the company becomes a subsidiary of the Company
after business combination, the parent company shall
prepare the consolidated financial statements, including
the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated income
statement and consolidated cash flow statement in
accordance with the accounting policies for “consolidated
financial statements” prepared by the Company.

-
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(2)

For business combination not under common control
during the reporting period, the Company shall adopt
the purchase method for accounting.

1) The cost of combination is determined by the
acquirer based on the following: i) for business
combination by one-off exchange transaction, the
cost of consolidation shall be measured at the fair
value of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred
or committed and equity securities issued on the
date of acquisition for the acquirer to obtain the
controlling interests of the acquiree; ii) for business
combination by several exchange transactions, the
cost of consolidation shall be measured at the sum
of the cost of each single transaction; iii) the direct
expenses incurred by the acquirer in connection
with business combination shall also be included in
the cost of combination of enterprises; iv) for any
future events stated in the contract or agreement
of combination that are likely to affect the cost of
combination, the acquirer shall include the same in
the cost of combination if it is likely that the future
events will occur and the impact on the cost of
combination can be measured reliably on the date
of acquisition.

2)  The assets paid and liabilities incurred or committed
as a consideration of business combination by the
acquirer was measured at fair value on the date
of acquisition and the difference between the fair
value and its carrying value shall be included in the
profit or loss for the period.

3)  The acquirer shall allocate the cost of combination
on the date of acquisition and recognize the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired from the acquiree in accordance with the
requirements: i) where the cost of combination is
higher than the fair value of the identifiable net assets
aquired from the acquiree in business combination,
the acquirer shall recognize such difference as
goodwill; ii) where the cost of combination is less
than the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired from the acquiree in business combination,
the acquirer shall review the measurement of the
fair value of the identifiable net assets aquired
from the acquiree and the cost of combination; if
the reviewed cost of combination remains lower
than the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired from the acquiree in business combination,
the acquirer shall recognize such difference in the
profit or loss for the period.
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4)  If the company becomes a subsidiary of the Company
after business combination, the parent company
shall establish a record book that states the fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the subsidiaries acquired in business
combination on the date of acquisition. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the financial
statements of the subsidiaries shall be restated based
on the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognized on the date
of acquisition in accordance with the accounting
polices of the “consolidated financial statements”
prepared by the Company.

6. Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(1)

Determination of scope of consolidation

The scope of consolidation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is based on controlling
interests.

The parent company directly owns or, through its
subsidiaries, indirectly owns the majority of the voting
rights of the investees and if the parent company has
control over the investees, such investees are classified
as subsidiaries and included in the scope of consolidation
in the consolidated financial statements. If the parent
company has 50% or below voting rights of the
investees and fulfils one of the following conditions, it
is deemed that the parent company has control over the
investees. Accordingly, such investees will be classified as
subsidiaries and included in the scope of consolidation
in the consolidated financial statements:

1) ownsthe majority of the voting rights in the investees
through the agreement between the investees and
other investors;

2)  hastheright to decide on the financial and operating
policies of the investees in accordance with the
articles or other requirements;

3) has the power to appoint or remove the majority
of the members of the board or similar committees
of the investees;

4)  has the majority of voting rights in the board or
similar committees of the investees.

If there is any evidence that the parent company does not
have control over the investees, such investees shall not
be included in the scope of consolidation in the financial
statements of the Company.

-
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(2)

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

1)

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
are based on the individual financial statements
of the subsidiaries that are within the scope of
consolidation. Based on other relevant information,
the long-term equity investments in the subsidiaries
are adjusted in accordance with the equity method
to offset the impact of the internal transactions
entered into between the parent company and
the subsidiaries and among the subsidiaries on the
consolidated financial statements. If the accounting
policies and accounting period of the subsidiaries
are different from those of the parent company,
the financial statements of the subsidiaries will be
adjusted according to the accounting policies and
accounting period of the parent company prior to
consolidation.

For subsidiaries acquired upon business combination
under common control, in preparing the consolidated
financial statements, its assets, liabilities, operating
results and cash flows at the beginning of the year
from the earliest period of the reporting period are
included in the consolidated financial statements
and the net profit realized prior to consolidation
will be reflected in the “net profit of acquiree
realized prior to consolidation” separately under
“net profits” in the consolidated income statement.
For subsidiaries acquired upon business combination
not under common control, in preparing the
consolidated financial statements, its individual
financial statements will be adjusted at the fair
value of the identifiable net assets on the date of
acquisition.

For subsidiaries acquired upon business combination
under common control, in preparing the consolidated
balance sheet, the opening balance of the
consolidated balance sheet will be adjusted; for
subsidiaries acquired upon business combination not
under common control, the opening balance of the
consolidated balance sheet will not be adjusted. For
disposal of subsidiaries during the reporting period,
in preparing the consolidated balance sheet, the
opening balance of the consolidated balance sheet
will not be adjusted.
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For subsidiaries acquired upon business combination
under common control, in preparing the consolidated
income statement, the income, expenses and
profits of such subsidiary from the beginning of
the consolidation period to the end of the reporting
period will be included in the consolidated income
statement; for subsidiaries acquired upon business
combination not under common control, in preparing
the consolidated income statement, the income,
expenses and profits of such subsidiary from the date
of acquisition to the end of the reporting period will
be included in the consolidated income statement.
For disposal of subsidiaries during the reporting
period, the income, expenses and profits of such
subsidiary from the beginning of the period to the
date of disposal will be included in the consolidated
income statement.

For subsidiaries acquired upon business combination
under common control, in preparing the consolidated
cash flow statement, the cash flow of such subsidiary
from the beginning of the consolidation period to the
end of the reporting period will be included in the
consolidated cash flow statement; for subsidiaries
acquired upon business combination not under
common control, in preparing the consolidated cash
flow statement, the cash flow of such subsidiary
from the date of acquisition to the end of the
reporting period will be included in the consolidated
cash flow statement. For disposal of subsidiaries
during the reporting period, the cash flow of such
subsidiary from the beginning of the period to the
date of disposal will be included in the consolidated
cash flow statement.

Minority interests and presentation of profit or
loss

The shareholders’ equity of the subsidiaries is not
accounted for as equity of the parent company but as
minority interests. In the consolidated balance sheet,
the shareholders’ equity is presented under “minority
interests”. The profit or loss of the subsidiaries for
the period is accounted for as minority interests
and presented under “minority interests” in “net
profits” in the consolidated income statement.

I -
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Treatment of excess loss

If the loss for the period attributable to minority
shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds the shareholders’
equity attributable to minority shareholders in
such subsidiary at the beginning of the period,
the excess loss shall be offset against the minority
interests if the articles or agreements provided that
the minority shareholders are obliged to and the
minority shareholders are able to make remedies.
Otherwise, such excess loss shall be offset against
the shareholders’ equity of the parent company. The
profit of such subsidiary realized in the subsequent
periods will be included in the shareholders’ equity
of the parent company prior to offsetting the loss
attributable to minority shareholders associated with
the shareholders’ equity of the parent company.

Determination of cash and cash equivalents

Short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value are recognized as cash
and cash equivalents.

Foreign currency transactions and foreign currency
translation

(1)

Determination of foreign exchange rate and its accounting
treatment

Upon initial recognition, the foreign currency transactions
are translated into RMB using the exchange rate ruling
on the transaction date; capital denominated in foreign
currency received from investors is translated using
the exchange rate ruling on the transaction date. On
the balance sheet date, the following items will be
treated:

1)

Foreign currency monetary items will be translated
using the exchange rate ruling on the balance
sheet date. The exchange difference arising from
the exchange rate ruling on the balance sheet date
and the exchange rate upon initial recognition or
ruling on the date prior to the balance sheet date
will be included in finance cost.

Foreign currency non-monetary items measured at
historical cost will be translated using the exchange
rate ruling on the transaction date. The reporting
currency shall not be changed on the balance sheet
date.
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3)  Foreign currency non-monetary items measured at
fair value are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. After
translation, the difference between the translated
amount and the original amount in the reporting
currency is recognized as change in fair value and
included in profit or loss, or recognized in capital
reserve if they are classified as foreign currency
non-monetary items available-for-sale.

Translation of off-balance sheet items and accounting of
translation of financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are translated
at the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date;
apart from “retained profits”, the items in shareholders’
equity are translated at exchange rates at the dates of
the relevant transactions. The revenue and expenses
items in the income statement are translated at the
exchange rates at the dates of the relevant transactions.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
exchange differences arising from above translation of
financial statements of foreign operations are recognized
in shareholders’ equity in the consolidated balance sheet
and are presented as a separate component as “exchange
difference from translation of financial statements of
foreign operations”.

9. Financial instruments

(M

Classification of financial assets:

Upon initial recognition, financial assets are classified
based on the purpose of assets held, business nature
and risk management requirements of the Company as
follows:

1)  Financial assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated as fair value through
profit or loss.

2)  Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed maturity and fixed or
determinable payments that an entity has intention
and ability to hold to maturity.

3)  Accounts receivable are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that

are not quoted in an active market.

4)  Financial assets available-for-sale
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(2)

Classification of financial liabilities:

Upon initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified
based on the business nature and risk management
requirements of the Company as follows:

1)

2)

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated as fair
value through profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Recognition of financial instruments:

When the Company becomes a party to a contract of
financial instrument, items within the definition of the
financial assets or financial liabilities as recognized as
financial assets or a financial liabilities.

Measurement of financial instruments:

1)

Initial measurement:

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. For financial assets or financial
liabilities, measured at fair value through profit or
loss, its transaction costs are directly charged to
profit or loss, and for others are recognized as initial
cost of financial assets or financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets:

i Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss and financial assets available-
for-sale are measured at fair value without
deducting the transaction costs that are likely
to arise upon the disposal of such financial
asset in the future.

ii)  Held-to-maturity investments and accounts
receivable are measured at amortized costs
using effective interest rate method.

Treatment of gain or loss associated with financial
assets:

)] The gain or loss arising from the change in fair
value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, other than those related to
hedging, is included in profit or loss for the
period.
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iii)

The gain or loss arising from the fair value
change of financial assets available-forsale,
other than those related to hedging, is
directly included in shareholders’ equity and
transferred to profit or loss for the period
upon derecognition of such financial assets.

For held-to-maturity investments and accounts
receivable, the gain or loss arising from
impairment, amortization or derecognition is
included in profit or loss for the period, other
than those designated as financial assets for
hedging.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities:

i)

iii)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value without
deducting the transaction costs that are likely
to arise upon settlement of such financial
liabilities in the future.

Derivative financial liabilities assets that are
linked with equity instruments that are not
quoted in an active market, whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and that are
settled through the delivery of such equity
instrument, are measured at cost.

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
with the change in their fair value not through
profit or loss and not a part of the financial
guarantee contract thereof are subsequently
measured at the higher of the following two
amounts upon initial recognition:

A.  Amount recognized in accordance with
“PRC GAAP 13 - Contingencies”;

B. Initial amount recognized net of
accumulated amortization recognized
in accordance with “PRC GAAP 14 -
Revenue”.

Save as the above, financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using
effective interest rate method.

-
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(5) Treatment of gain or loss associated with financial
liabilities:

1)  The gain or loss arising from the change in
fair value of financial liabilities subsequently
measured at fair value is included in profit or
loss for the period.

2)  For financial liabilities measured at amortized
cost or at cost, the gain or loss arising from
impairment, amortization or derecognition is
included in profit or loss for the period.

(6) Recognition of the transfer of financial assets:

1) If the Company transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets, such financial assets shall be
derecognized.

2) If the Company retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets, such financial assets shall not be
derecognized.

3)  If the Company has not transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks of ownership of the
financial assets:

) such financial assets are derecognized as
it has lost its control over such financial
assets.

i) such financial assets are recognized to the
extent of the financial assets transferred
as it has not lost its control over such
financial assets and relevant liabilities are
recognized accordingly.

(7)  Measurement of transfer of financial assets:

1) If the transfer of all financial assets satisfies
the conditions for derecognition, the difference
between the following two amounts shall
be dealt with in the profit or loss for the
period:

) Carrying value of the financial assets
transferred.
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ii)  Sum of the consideration received from
the transfer and the accumulated fair
value change that would have been
included in the shareholders’ equity
(where the financial assets transferred
are financial assets available-for-sale).

If the transfer of part of the financial assets
satisfies the conditions for derecognition, the
total carrying value of the financial assets
transferred shall be amortized at their respective
fair values between the portion derecognized
and the portion not derecognized (in that case,
the service assets retained shall be deemed a
part of the financial assets not derecognized)
and the difference between the following two
amounts shall be dealt with in profit or loss
for the period:

) Carrying value of the portion derecognized.

ii)  Sum of the consideration of the portion
derecognized and the corresponding
amount of the portion derecognized in
the accumulated fair value change that
would have been directly included in the
shareholders’ equity (where the financial
assets transferred are financial assets
available-for-sale).

The corresponding amount of the portion
derecognized in the accumulated fair value change
that would have been directly included in the
shareholders’ equity shall be amortized according
to the corresponding fair value of the portion of
financial assets derecognized and that of the portion
not derecognized.

3)

If the Company retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets
transferred, all such financial assets transferred
shall be continued to be recognized and the
consideration received shall be recognized as
a financial liability.

If the Company has not transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks of ownership of the
financial assets, such financial assets are
recognized to the extent of the financial assets
transferred as it has not lost control over
such financial assets and relevant liabilities
are recognized accordingly.

.
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Determination of fair value of major financial assets
or financial liabilities:

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could
be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction. Quoted market prices in an active market
are the best evidence of fair value and should be
used, where they exist on the balance sheet date,
to measure the financial asset or financial liability.
If market prices do not exist on the balance sheet
date and there is no material change in future
economic environment in which the transaction has
taken place recently, fair value should be determined
using the market price of the recent transaction. If
market prices do not exist on the balance sheet date
but there are material changes in future economic
environment in which the transaction has taken
place recently, fair value should be determined
using the adjusted recent market price. If there
is sufficient evidence that the recent market price
cannot truly reflect the fair value fair value should
be determined by adjusting the market price of the
recent transaction.

If a market for a financial asset or financial liability
is not active, fair value is determined by using a
reliable valuation technique that is common among
market participants based on actual historical
transaction prices. The outcome of the valuation
technique should reflect the market price adopted
in a transaction entered into after arm’s length
negotiation and at normal commercial terms on
the date of valuation. In determining fair value
using the valuation technique, the use of market
parameters of the market participants should be
maximized in pricing and regular assessment should
be made to ensure the effectiveness of the valuation
technique.

Assessment for impairment of major financial
assets:

The Company will test the carrying value of the
financial assets other than the financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss on the
balance sheet date and make impairment provision
if there are the following objective evidences to
ascertain the impairment of such financial assets:

1)  issuer or debtor experiences material financial
difficulty.

2) debtoris in breach of the terms of agreement
such as default or overdue interest or principal
repayment.
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3)

(10)

creditor compromises with the debtor that is
in financial difficulty based on economic or
legal considerations.

debtor is likely to go bankrupt or engage in
other financial restructuring.

such financial asset is unable to trade on an
active market due to the material financial
difficulty faced by the issuer.

cash flow of an asset in a group of financial
assets, whether decreases or increases, cannot
be identified but the estimated future cash flow
of such group of financial assets has decreased
and can be reliably measured since initial
recognition based on the overall assessment
on the publicly disclosed information; debtor
of such group of financial assets becomes
insolvent, or unemployment rate increases
in the country or place where the debtor
is located, or the price of collateral in the
place where the debtor is located experience
a significant fall, or the industry where the
debtor is engaged in is under poor market
sentiment.

there is material adverse changes in the
technology, market, economy or legal
environments where the debtor operates, such
that the investors of equity instruments are
unable to recover their investment costs.

fair value of equity instrument investments
experiences a significant or non-temporary
reduction.

there are other objective evidences that
ascertain the impairment of financial assets.

Provision for impairment of major financial
assets:

1) Upon the occurrence of impairment of
financial assets measured at amortized
cost, the carrying value of such financial
asset shall be discounted to the present
value of the estimated future cash flow
(excluding the future credit loss that
has not occurred). The discounted value
is recognized as asset impairment loss
and dealt with in profit or loss for the
period.

B
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Upon recognition of impairment of financial
assets measured at amortized cost, if there
is objective evidence that the value of such
financial assets is recovered and it is related
to the matters that occur after the recognition
of such loss objectively (such as upgrade of
credit rating of debtor), the impairment loss
recognized shall be reversed and dealt with
in profit or loss for the period. However, the
carrying value after reversal should be no more
than the amortized cost of such financial assets
on the date of reversal had the provision for
impairment not been made.

For equity instrument investments that are not
quoted in an active market and the fair value
of which cannot be reliably measured, or upon
occurrence of impairment of the derivative
financial assets that are linked with such equity
instrument and settled through the delivery
of such equity instrument, the difference
between the carrying value of such equity
instrument investments or derivative financial
assets and the present value of future cash
flow discounted using the then market rate of
return of similar financial assets is recognized
as impairment loss and dealt with in profit or
loss for the period.

10. Recognition of bad debt provision for accounts
receivable and its provision

(1) Recognition of bad debt impairment:

1)

(2)  Provision:

1

The accounts receivable that are uncollectible even
after the liquidation of the debtor’s bankrupt estate
or legacy after the bankruptcy or death of the
debtor.

The accounts receivable cannot be collected or are
unlikely to be collected because of the debtor’s
default in making repayment and the existence of
relevant conclusive evidence.

Recognition of bad debt provision for significant
single accounts receivable and its provision:

Recognition of bad debt provision for significant
single accounts receivable

i)

Category of trade receivables (accounts
receivable): standard amount is RMB7,000,000
per transaction;
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ii) Category of cash flows receivables (other
receivables): standard amount is RMB3,500,000
per transaction;

iii) Individual receivables (other receivables):
standard amount is RMB100,000 per
transaction

Bad debt provision for significant single accounts
receivable

The Company will carry out impairment tests
separately on significant single accounts receivable.
If there is objective evidence to ascertain the
occurrence of impairment, impairment loss will be
recognized and bad debt provision will be made;
if there is no objective evidence to ascertain the
occurrence of impairment, bad debt provision will
be made according to the aging analysis of the
significant single accounts receivable.

Aging analysis

Percentage of
provision for

Percentage of
provision for

accounts other
Age receivable (%) receivables (%)
Within one year (including one year) 5 5
1-2 years 30 50
2-3 years 60 100
3 years above 95 100

Explanation of provision for bad debt

For not significant single accounts receivable of
unrelated party that are not impaired after separate
testing at the end of the period, bad debt provision
will be made according to the percentage of the
age balance of the accounts receivable and the
difference between the bad debt provision at the
end and at the beginning of the period will be
carried at asset impairment loss.

I
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11.
(1)

Explanation of other provision

An impairment test will be separately carried out
at the end of the period on the accounts receivable
of the Company and related parties within the
scope of consolidation. If there is objective evidence
to ascertain the occurrence of impairment, the
shortfall between the present value of its future
cash flow and its carrying value will be recognized
as impairment loss and a bad debt provision will be
made. If there is no objective evidence to ascertain
the occurrence of impairment, bad debt provision
will be made according to the aging analysis of the
accounts receivable of related parties and no bad
debt provision will be made for the companies not
within the scope of consolidation.

Inventories

Classification of inventory: The inventory of the Company
comprises raw material, finished goods, work in progress,
packaging materials and low-value consumables and
is stated at cost incurred upon acquisition. The costs
incurred in the delivery of inventory (apart from packaging
materials and low-value consumables) are measured
using the weighted average method. The amortization
of packaging materials and low-value consumables are
measured using the equal split amortization method.

The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.
Inventory surplus, inventory loss and inventory damage
are dealt with in the profit or loss for the period after
deducting the compensation of the responsible party.

Recognition of provision for loss of inventory and its
provision:

Inventories are recorded at the actual costs or net
realizable value, whichever is lower. Net realizable value
is the amount of estimated selling price of inventory
less the costs to be incurred upon completion, estimated
selling expenses and relevant taxes in the course of daily
activities. In particular, net realizable value of commodity
inventories is the amount of estimated selling price less
selling expenses and relevant taxes. Net realizable value
of material inventories is the estimated selling price of
products less the costs to be incurred upon completion,
estimated selling expenses and relevant taxes.
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At the end of the period, based on the comprehensive
stock-taking, provision for loss of inventory will be
made and dealt with in profit or loss for the period
for inventory cost higher than its net realizable
value. The excess of the cost of individual inventory
items over its net realizable value is considered as
a provision.

12. Long-term equity investments

(1) Initial measurement of long-term equity investments:

1

For long-term equity investments arising from
business combination under the same control,
the Company will recognize the share of carrying
value of the shareholders’ equity of the acquiree
as the initial investment cost of long-term equity
investment. The difference between the initial
investment cost of long-term equity investment
and the cash paid, non-monetary assets transferred,
carrying value of the liabilities undertaken and the
total nominal value of the issued shares of the
Company will be adjusted in the capital reserve.
If such difference cannot be offset against the
capital reserve, it shall be adjusted in the retained
earnings. For long-term equity investment arising
from business combination not under the same
control, the Company will recognize the initial
investment cost of long-term equity investment
at the sum of the fair value of the assets paid,
liabilities undertaken and equity securities issued
to gain control on the date of acquisition and the
relevant expenses directly incurred in connection
with business combination. Where the cost of long-
term equity investment is higher than the fair value
of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiaries, the
difference shall be recognized as goodwill. Where
the cost of long-term equity investment is less than
the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the
subsidiaries, the cost of long-term equity investment
and the fair value of the identifiable net assets of
the subsidiaries shall be reviewed. If the reviewed
cost of long-term equity investment remains lower
than the fair value of the identifiable net assets of
the subsidiaries, the difference shall be dealt with
in the profit or loss for the period.

For long-term equity investments acquired through
payment of cash, the initial investment cost shall
be based on the actual consideration paid for
acquisition. The initial investment costs include
expenses directly related to long-term equity
investment, taxes and other necessary charges.
However, the actual consideration paid, including
cash dividends declared but not collected, is recorded
separately as accounts receivable.

-
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For long-term equity investments acquired through
the issue of equity securities, the initial investment
cost shall be recorded at the fair value of the issued
equity securities.

For long-term equity investments contributed by
investors, the initial investment cost shall be the
value, if not being unfair, as agreed by the contract
or agreement governing the investment.

For long-term equity investments acquired by non-
monetary asset exchange, should the non-monetary
asset exchange has commercial substance or the fair
value of the assets received or surrendered can be
measured reliably, the initial investment cost shall
be the fair value and related taxes of the assets
surrendered and the difference between the fair
value and the carrying value of the asset surrendered
shall be recorded into the profit or loss of for the
period; Should the non-monetary asset exchange
do not have the above two conditions at the same
time, the initial investment cost shall be carrying
value and related taxes of the assets surrendered.

For long-term equity investments acquired by debt
rearrangement, the initial investment cost shall be
the fair value of long-term equity investment acquired
and the difference between initial investment
cost and carrying value of debt rearrangement is
recognized in profit or loss for the period.

Basis of recognition of investees subject to joint control
and significant influence:

1

Basis of recognition of investees subject to joint
control: A. no any party could solely control operating
activity of the joint venture; B. the operating decisions
of joint venture need consensus of each party; C.
each party to the joint venture may engage one
of parties to the joint venture to manage the daily
activities of the joint venture by means of contract
or agreement but the management rights within
the scope of financial and operating policies should
be exercised after obtaining the consensus of each

party.
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2) Basis of recognition of investees subject significant
influence: A. the Company directly owns or through
its subsidiaries indirectly owns more than 20% but
less than 50% voting rights of the investees; B. the
Company has representatives in board of directors of
the investees or similar authorities; C. the Company
is involved in the investees’ policy making; D. there
are significant transactions with the investees; E. the
Company has designated management staff to the
investees; F. the Company provides key technology
to the investees.

Subsequent measurement of long-term equity
investments:

The Company uses the cost method to recognize the long-
term equity investments and other equity investments of
the subsidiaries, whereas the long-term equity investments
of joint ventures and associated companies are measured
using equity method.

The Company adopts the cost method to adjust the
cost of long-term equity investments upon the addition
or recovery of long-term equity investments. The cash
dividend or profit declared by the investees is recognized
as investment income for the period.

Upon the acquisition of long-term equity investments
using equity method, the investment gain or loss will
be recognized according to the net realized gain or loss
attributable to the investees and the carrying value of the
long-term equity investments will be adjusted accordingly.
For the changes in shareholders’ equity of the investees
resulted from factors other than net profit or loss, whilst
percentage of shareholding remains constant, the carrying
value of the long-term equity investments will be adjusted
according to their respective percentage of shareholding
and recognized in capital reserve (other capital reserve)
accordingly. The net loss from the investment in investee
is recognized to the extent that the carrying value of the
long-term equity investments and other long-term interest
in substance in the investees are written down till nil,
unless an obligation to bear additional loss is stated in
the contract or agreement.

.
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Impairment test and impairment provision

On the balance sheet date, if there is an indication
of impairment of long-term equity investments of the
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies,
an impairment loss will be recognized for its estimated
recoverable amount is lower than its carrying value and
dealt with in the profit or loss for the period, meanwhile
a provision for the impairment of the long-term equity
investments will be made. Upon the impairment of other
equity investments, the difference between the present
value of the future cash flow discounted using the
market rate of return of similar financial assets and the
carrying value of the investment will be recognized as an
impairment loss and dealt with in the profit or loss for
the period. At the same time, a provision will be made
for the long-term equity investments. The impairment
provision for the long-term equity investments above
shall not be reversed in the subsequent periods.

13. Investment properties

(1)

(2)

Type of investment properties

Investment properties are classified as leased land use
rights, land use rights held for transfer upon appreciation
and leased structures.

Measurement of investment properties

The investment properties of the Company are
measured initially at cost. The costs of investment
properties purchased from third parties include purchase
consideration, related taxes and other expenses directly
attributable to such assets. The costs of self-constructed
investment properties include the expenses necessary to
bring such asset to a condition for its intended use.

The investment properties are measured subsequently by
using the cost method on the balance sheet date and the
investment properties will be measured, depreciated or
amortized over the terms of the fixed assets and intangible
assets. If an indication of impairment exists, its recoverable
amount will be estimated. If the recoverable amount of
the investment properties is lower than is carrying value,
the carrying value of the investment properties will be
reduced to its recoverable amount. Such difference will
be recorded as asset impairment loss and dealt with in
the profit or loss for the period, and a provision for the
impairment of the investment properties will be made
accordingly. Upon the recognition of impairment loss on
investment properties, the depreciation or amortization
expenses of the impaired investment properties will be
adjusted in the subsequent periods so that the carrying
value of the adjusted investment properties can be
amortized systematically over the remaining useful life
of such investment properties (net of estimated net
residual value).
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Once recognized, the impairment loss on investment
properties cannot be reversed in the future accounting
periods.

14. Fixed assets

(M

Recognition of fixed assets:

Tangible assets with a useful life of 1 year (less than
1 year) held for the provision of labor services, leasing
or operation and management of the Company will be
recorded in fixed assets. They include buildings and
structures, machinery and equipment and transportation
facilities. Software attached to the computer hardware
purchased is not valued separately and shall be combined
with computer hardware as fixed assets management.
Software that is valued separately shall be recorded in
intangible assets.

Depreciation of various fixed assets:

Fixed assets are depreciated over their useful life at
straight-line method. Depreciation rates of fixed assets
are determined based on the category, estimated useful
life and estimated rate of net residual value of fixed
assets (5%). Fixed assets are depreciated on a monthly
basis in the month following the acquisition (other than
fixed assets depreciated which are currently in use and
land valued separately). The useful life and depreciation
rates of various fixed assets are as follows:

Useful life  Depreciation rate Depreciation
Category (year) (%) method
Buildings and structures 40 238 Straight-line method
Machinery and equipment 5-20 6.79-9.50 Straight-line method
Transportation equipment 5-14 6.79-9.50 Straight-line method
Others 5-14 6.79-9.50 Straight-line method

R
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Impairment test of and impairment provision for fixed
assets:

The Company will carry out an impairment test on fixed
assets that have signs of impairment on the balance
sheet date and estimate its recoverable amount. If
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying value,
the carrying value of the assets will be reduced to its
recoverable amount. Such difference will be dealt with
in the profit or loss for the period and a provision will
be made for the impairment of assets accordingly. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the net fair value of
the assets less disposal expenses and the present value
of the future cash flow of the assets. The Company
estimates the recoverable amount based on a single asset
in principle. If it is difficult to estimate the recoverable
amount of a single asset, the recoverable amount of the
asset group will be determined based on the asset group
under such asset. Once an impairment provision is made,
it shall not be reversed in future accounting periods.

Recognition and valuation of fixed assets under finance
lease:

Basis of valuation: a finance lease is identified if any one
or several of the following conditions is/are fulfilled:

1) upon the expiry of lease, the ownership of the
leased asset is transferred to the lessee.

2)  thelessee has the option to purchase the leased asset,
the purchase consideration entered into is expected
to be far less than the fair value of the leased asset
upon the exercise of the option. Accordingly, it
can be reasonably determined that the lessee will
exercise such option upon the commencement of
the lease.

3) the lease term accounts for the majority of the
useful life of the leased asset even if the ownership
of the asset is not transferred.

4)  the present value of the minimum lease payment
of the lessee upon the commencement of the lease
is substantially the same as the fair value of the
leased asset upon the commencement of the lease;
the present value of the minimum rental receipt of
the lessor upon the commencement of the lease is
substantially the same as the fair value of the leased
asset upon the commencement of the lease.

5) only the lessee may use such leased asset due to
its specific nature if no material change is made.
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Valuation method: for fixed assets leased under finance
lease, if it can be reasonably determined that the
ownership of the leased asset can be acquired upon the
expiry of the lease term, depreciation policies in line
with the fixed assets will be adopted for depreciation
during the remaining useful life of the leased asset. If
it cannot be reasonably determined that the ownership
of the leased asset can be acquired upon the expiry
of the lease term, depreciation polices in line with the
fixed assets will be adopted for depreciation during the
shorter of the lease term and the remaining useful life
of the leased asset.

15. Construction-in-progress

(M

Construction-in-progress refers to the expenses incurred
in the construction and installation of infrastructure and
renovation.

Construction costs are determined based on the actual
expenses incurred in construction-in-progress. For fixed
assets constructed or fixed assets improvement under
operating lease that have reached the condition for
intended use but have not been completed, the estimated
construction budget, consideration or actual construction
costs will be transferred to fixed assets or long-term
deferred expenditures for depreciation or amortization.
Upon completion, the original temporary value will be
adjusted based on actual costs, but the depreciation or
amortization made is not subject to adjustment.

Borrowing costs incurred for acquisition or construction
of a fixed asset are capitalized when the following three
conditions are fully satisfied: expenditures for the asset
are being incurred; borrowing costs are being incurred;
and acquisition and construction that are necessary to
enable the asset to reach the condition for its intended
use have commenced. The capitalization of borrowing
costs ceases when the construction-in-progress is ready
for intended use. Borrowing costs incurred thereafter are
recognized in the profit or loss for the period.

Provision for impairment of construction-in-progress

On the balance sheet date, an impairment test will
be carried out on individual construction projects if
there is an indication that the construction-in-progress is
impaired. The Company will then estimate its recoverable
amount. If the recoverable amount is lower than the
carrying value, the carrying value of the asset will be
reduced to the recoverable amount. Such difference
will be dealt with in the profit or loss for the period
and a provision for the asset impairment will be made
accordingly. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
net fair value of the assets less disposal expenses and
the present value of the future cash flow of the assets.
Once an impairment provision is made, it shall not be
reversed in future accounting periods.

-
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16. Borrowing costs

(1)

Recognition of capitalization of borrowing costs

Qualifying assets shall refer to the fixed assets, investment
properties, inventories and other assets, of which the
acquisition and construction or production may take
a substantially long period of time to get ready for its
intended use or for sale.

Borrowing costs include borrowing interests, amortization
at discount or premium, ancillary expenses and foreign
exchange difference arising from borrowings denominated
in foreign currency. Where the borrowing costs incurred to
an enterprise can be directly attributable to the acquisition
and construction or production of qualifying assets, it shall
be capitalized and recorded in the costs of relevant assets.
Other borrowing costs shall be recognized as expenses
on the basis of the actual amount incurred, and shall be
dealt with in the profit or loss for the period.

Borrowing costs are capitalized when the following three
conditions are fully satisfied:

1)  Expenditures for the asset are being incurred where
expenditures for the asset include cash paid for
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets and expenditures incurred due to transfer of
non-cash assets or interest-bearing loans;

2) Borrowing costs are being incurred,;

3)  Acquisition and construction or production that is
necessary to enable the asset to reach the condition
for its intended use or for sale have commenced.

Capitalization period of borrowing costs:

The borrowing cost incurred for a fixed asset acquired
or constructed in fulfillment with the above conditions
is capitalized before the asset has reached the condition
for its intended use or for sale. The capitalization of
borrowing costs is suspended during the period in which
the acquisition or construction of a fixed asset or an
investment property is abnormally interrupted, and the
interruption period is more than 3 months. Borrowing
costs during the period are then treated as an expense
for the period until the acquisition or construction is
resumed. The capitalization of borrowing costs ceases
when the fixed asset is ready for its intended use or for
sale and borrowing costs incurred thereafter are directly
included in finance cost for the period in which they are
incurred.
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Computation of capitalized amount of borrowing
costs:

1

Specific borrowings for acquisition or construction
or production or development of qualifying assets
will be recorded based on the actual interest expense
incurred in the period of special borrowings less
the interest income from unutilized borrowings
placed at banks or investment gain from temporary
investment.

Capitalization of interest expenses of general
borrowings

During the capitalization period of borrowing costs,
the interest expenses of general borrowings subject
to capitalization used for acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets shall be calculated
at the following formula:

Capitalized interest expenses of general borrowings
= aggregate amount of asset expenses less weighted
average of asset expenses in respect of the balance
of specific borrowings x rate of capitalization of
general borrowings

Rate of capitalization of general borrowings =
weighted average rate of general borrowings =
sum of actual interests incurred for the period of
general borrowings/weighted average of principal
of general borrowings

Weighted average of principal of general borrowings
= > [principal per each batch of general borrowings
x number of days attributable to each batch of
general borrowingsl/number of days in the period

Capitalization of ancillary costs

Ancillary costs are capitalized based on the actual

amount incurred before the qualifying asset acquired or
constructed or produced is ready for its intended use or

for sale and accounted for as cost of qualifying assets.
After the qualifying asset acquired or construction or

produced is ready for its intended use or for sale, the
ancillary costs will be recognized as an expense based on

the actual amount incurred and dealt with in the profit

or loss for the period.

I
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17. Intangible assets

(1)

Intangible assets are defined as identifiable non-monetary
assets owned or controlled by the Company that cannot
be physically measured. Intangible assets are initially
measured at cost.

Intangible assets are initially measured based on the
costs of acquisition or expenses that are attributable to
the development stage of intangible assets and can be
reliably measured.

Subsequent measurement of intangible assets:

1)

Useful life of intangible assets:

In estimating the useful life of intangible assets, for
those with a definite useful life, if the intangible
assets are derived from contractual rights or other
legal rights, its useful life should not exceed the
period stated under the contractual rights or other
legal rights; if the contractual rights or other legal
rights allow an extension upon expiry and renewal,
and there is evidence that no substantial costs are
involved in renewal, the period of renewal will be
included as part of the useful life. If no useful life
is stated in the contracts or the law, the Company
will determine the term that the intangible assets
can bring future economic benefits to the Company
after its judgment on various aspects.

If the term of future economic benefits that the
intangible assets can bring to the Company cannot
be determined based on the above methods, the
intangible assets are classified as intangible assets
with an indefinite useful life.

The consideration factors for an enterprise to identify
the useful life of intangible assets are:

i) General useful life of products of such asset
and information on the useful life of similar
assets can be acquired,

ii)  Current technology and procedural conditions
and estimates on future growth trends;
iii)  Market demand for the products (or services)

produced by the assets;

iv) Action expected to be taken by existing or
potential competitors;
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(4)

v)  Estimated maintenance expenses required
to maintain the ability to generate future
economic benefits of such asset and the
Company’s estimated ability to settle such
expenses;

vi)  Term and laws or similar restrictions governing
such asset such as licensing period and lease
term;

vii) Relationship with the useful life of other assets
held by the Company.

Amortization of intangible assets:

Intangible assets with a definite useful life are
amortized using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life since the month of acquisition.
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are
not amortized and are subject to an impairment
test at the end of the period.

The Company reviews the useful life and amortization
method of the intangible assets at least once at every
year end and makes adjustment if necessary.

Impairment of intangible assets:

If there is conclusive evidence that there is an
indication of impairment of intangible assets, the
Company will carry out an impairment test on the
balance sheet date and estimate its recoverable
amount. If the recoverable amount is lower than its
carrying value, the carrying value of the intangible
assets will be reduced to its recoverable amount.
Such difference will be dealt with in the profit or
loss for the period and a provision will be made
for impairment of intangible assets accordingly.
For intangible assets with an indefinite useful life,
whether there is an indication of impairment, an
impairment test will be carried out each year.

R&D expenses:

The expenses incurred in the internal R&D projects of

DRI FURE B R B B -

the Company are classified as research expenses and
development expenses.

2o AR\ N SR A 3% 5 35 1A B A FE R Criteria for classification of research expenses and
BYHAARERT e AEgEE development expenses under the internal R&D projects
=R of the Company are as follows:

-
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1) TERZETEENAEHEERE
R EER M EAFAITIE:

Research expenses refer to scheduled innovative
investigations to obtain and understand scientific or
technological knowledge in preparing the information or
other aspects for further development activities. Whether
research activities commenced will turn into development
and whether any intangible assets will be formed after
development are highly uncertain. Accordingly, all research
expenses will be recorded as an expense and dealt with
in the profit or loss for the period.

Development expenses mean to apply the research
outcomes or other knowledge to a plan or design prior
to a commercial production or use in order to produce new
or essentially-improved materials, devises, products, etc.
The expenses in the development phase are recognized
as intangible assets if the following conditions are
fulfilled:

1) itistechnically feasible to complete such intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or for

sale;
2) EBETKZEFREELFE AKX 2)  management intends to complete such intangible
HENEE asset and use or sell it;

3) BRNEEEARKEBENZNS
X BREENEAERAZEL
EELENERFEDSLE
WEERSTFEMS BV E
EBERNBERN - BEEH
HARIMKE

4) BRANEM MWHERME
MWERXE WK% ELE
ENFRE XHENEMAIH
ERBILEE

5) RERZEBLEEMEREEN
X HEES R SEMETE o
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3) it can be demonstrated how such intangible asset
will generate future economic benefits, including
the existence of a market for the products produced
using such intangible assets or the existence of a
market for such intangible assets; it can also be
demonstrated how such intangible assets are used
internally;

4)  adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell such
intangible assets are available;

5)  the expenditure attributable to such intangible assets
during its development can be reliably measured.

For R&D projects that are in progress and recognized as
intangible assets, the expenses incurred after acquisition
shall be accounted for based on the above.

18- REIFHER 18. Long-term deferred expenditures

EHFHERARIE DK ELABERAR Long-term deferred expenditures refer to the incurred expenses

HMN S BHAaENRE—FALNE that are amortized in current period and the periods following

HEA RHASFHEAREBRTABA where the amortized period is longer than one year. Long-term

R RERBENYSBHRERERET deferred expenditures are measured according to the actual

B - B amount incurred and amortized using straight-line method
during the period that it enjoys benefits from the project. In
particular:
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19.

Expenditures of fixed asset improvements under operating
lease are amortized at the shorter of the remaining lease
term and the useful life of the lease asset; whereas for fixed
assets under finance lease, the qualifying renovation expenses
are amortized at the shorter of the interval between two
renovations, remaining lease term and the useful life of the
fixed asset.

Other long-term deferred expenditures are amortized over the
period that it enjoys benefits.

If the long-term deferred expenditures cannot generate future
accounting periods, the remaining amortized amount of the
project is fully transferred to profit or loss for the period.

Contingent liabilities

(1) Recognition of contingent liabilities:

Contingent liabilities shall be recognized when the
obligations pertinent to the contingencies satisfy the
following conditions: Such obligations are present
obligations undertaken by the Company; the performance
of which may result in outflow of economic benefits; the
amount of such obligations may be reliably measured.

1)  Such obligations are present obligations undertaken
by the Company;

It refers to the obligations pertinent to the
contingencies and are obligations undertaken by
the Company under the prevailing conditions. The
Company can only perform such present obligations
without other options.

2) It may result in outflow of economic benefits as a
result of performance of the obligations;

It refers to the performance of present obligations
pertinent to the contingencies may result in outflow
of economic benefits with a probability of over 50%
but less than 95%.

3)  The amount of such obligations can be reliably
measured;

It refers to the amount of the present obligations
pertinent to the contingencies that can be reasonably
measured.

R
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(2)

Measurement of contingent liabilities:

1)

Determination of best estimates:

Contingent liabilities are initially measured based on
the best estimates of the expenditures required to
be paid for performance of the present obligations.
Determination of the best estimates shall be treated
in the following two scenarios:

A. If there is a sequent range for the necessary
expenditures and if all the outcomes within
this range are equally likely to occur, the best
estimates shall be determined in accordance
with the middle estimate within the range,
i.e. the average of the highest and the lowest
amounts.

B. If there is no sequent range for the necessary
expenditures, or all the outcomes within this
range are not equally likely to occur despite
that there is a sequent range; in that case, the
best estimates shall be determined according
to the following methods:

a. If the contingencies concern a single
item, it shall be determined in light of
the most likely outcome.

b. If the contingencies concern two or
more items, the best estimate shall be
calculated and determined in accordance
with all possible outcomes and the
relevant probabilities.

Treatment of estimated compensation:

When all or some of the expenditures necessary
for the liquidation of contingent liabilities of the
Company is expected to be compensated by a
third party, the compensation should be separately
recognized as an asset only when it is virtually certain
that the compensation will be obtained. The amount
recognized for the compensation should not exceed
the carrying value of the contingent liabilities.

The Company reviews the carrying value of
contingent liabilities on the balance sheet date. If
there is conclusive evidence that such carrying value
cannot truly reflect the prevailing best estimates,
such carrying value shall be adjusted according to
the prevailing best estimates.
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20. Share-based payments and equity instruments

Recognition and measurement of share-based payments are
based on accurate, complete and effective share-based payment
agreements. It can be classified as equity-settled share-based
payment and cash-settled share-based payment.

(1)

Equity-settled share-based payment.

The equity-settled share-based payment made in return
for the rendering of employee services shall be measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments granted to the
employees. For equity instruments that may be exercised
immediately after the grant, the fair value of such
instrument shall, on the date of the grant, be recognized
in relevant costs or expenses with the increase in the
capital reserve accordingly. For equity-settled share-based
payment made in return for the rendering of employee
services that cannot be exercised until the services are fully
rendered during vesting period or specified performance
targets are met, on each balance sheet date within the
vesting period, the services acquired in the current period
shall, based on the best estimate of the number of
exercisable instruments, be recognized in relevant costs
or expenses and the capital reserves at the fair value of
such instruments on the date of the grant.

Determination of fair value of equity instruments:

i) For the shares granted to the employees, its fair
value is measured at the market price of the share
of the company and adjusted according to the
terms and conditions of the shares (excluding the
vesting conditions other than market conditions).
If the transaction is not disclosed by the company,
it shall be measured at the estimated market price
and adjusted according to the terms and conditions
of the shares granted.

ii)  For the share options granted to the employees, if
there are no trading options with similar terms and
conditions, the fair value of the option granted shall
be estimated using the option pricing model.

.
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In determining the fair value at the date of grant of
the equity instruments, the company shall consider the
impact of market conditions in the vesting conditions
and non-vesting conditions stated in the share-based
payment agreement. If there are no vesting conditions
in the share-based payments, as long as the employees
or other aspects satisfy the non-market conditions in
all the vesting conditions (such as term of service), the
company shall recognize the services rendered as an
expense accordingly.

Cash-settled share-based payment:

The cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured
at the fair value of liability incurred, which is calculated
and determined based on the shares or other equity
instruments. For the cash-settled share-based payment
that may be exercised immediately after the grant, the
fair value of the liability incurred by the Company shall,
on the date of the grant, be recognized in relevant
costs or expenses and the liabilities shall be increased
accordingly. For cash-settled share-based payment made
in return for the rendering of employee services that
cannot be exercised until the services are fully provided
during vesting period or specified performance targets
are met, on each balance sheet date within the vesting
period, the services acquired in the current period shall,
based on the best estimate of the number of exercisable
instruments, be recognized in relevant costs or expenses
and the corresponding liabilities at the fair value of the
liability incurred by the Company.

Basis for determining the best estimates of exercisable
equity instruments: On each balance sheet date within
the vesting period, the Company shall determine the
best estimates based on the latest number of employees
able to exercise their options and revise the estimated
number of exercisable equity instruments to make the
best estimates of the exercisable equity instruments.

Accounting treatment for revision and termination of
share-based payment plans:

If the revision results in an increase in the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, the Company shall recognize
the increase in the services rendered accordingly at the
increased fair value of the equity instruments. If the
revision results in an increase in the number of equity
instruments granted, the Company will recognize the
increase in the services rendered accordingly at the fair
value of the increased number of equity instruments.
If the Company revises the vesting conditions on terms
favorable to the employees, the Company will take into
consideration of the revised vesting conditions when
dealing with the vesting conditions.
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21.

If the revision results in a decrease in the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, the Company shall continue
recognize the amount of services rendered accordingly
at the fair value of the equity instruments on the date
of grant without considering the decrease in the fair
value of the equity instruments. If the revision results in
a decrease in the number of equity instruments granted,
the Company will account for such decrease by reducing
part of the cancellation of equity instruments granted.
If the Company revises the vesting conditions on terms
not favorable to the employees, the Company will not
take into consideration of the revised vesting conditions
when dealing with the vesting conditions.

If the Company cancels the equity instruments granted
or settles the equity instruments granted during the
vesting period (other than cancellation as a result of
failure to satisfy the vesting conditions), such cancellation
or settlement will be treated as accelerated exercisable
rights and the original amount in the remaining vesting
period will be recognized immediately.

Repurchase of shares of the Company

For capital reduction by means of acquisition of the shares
of the Company approved in accordance with the legal
procedures, the capital will be reduced by the total nominal
value of the shares cancelled. The difference between the
consideration paid for the repurchase of shares (including the
transaction costs) and the nominal value of the shares shall
be adjusted in the shareholders’ equity. The excess over the
total nominal value shall be offset against the capital reserve
(share premium), surplus reserve and unallocated profits in
sequence. The shortfall from the total nominal value will be
included in capital reserve (share premium).

Prior to cancellation or transfer of shares repurchased, the
Company will recognize all expenditures arising from share
repurchase as cost of treasury shares as part of the treasury
share management.

Upon the transfer of treasury shares, the excess of revenue
from transfer over the cost of treasury shares will be included
in capital reserve (share premium); whereas the shortfall from
the cost of treasury shares will be offset against the capital
reserve (share premium), surplus reserve and unallocated profits
in sequence. For repurchase of the shares of the Company as
a result of implementation of share incentive scheme, upon
repurchase, all the expenditures arising from share repurchase
are treated as treasury shares and are registered and available
for inspection.

.
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22. Revenue

(1)

Revenue from sale of commodities:

Revenue is recognized if the following conditions are
satisfied:

1)  The Company has transferred the major risks and
returns in the ownership of commodities to the
purchaser;

2) The Company no longer exercises continuing
management generally related to the ownership and
no longer has actual control over the commodities
sold;

3)  Amount of revenue can be reliably measured.

4)  Itis very likely that an inflow of economic benefits
to the Company will occur.

5) Costs related, incurred or to be incurred can be
reliably measured.

Revenue from provision of labor services:

1) for labor services which are commenced and
completed in the same accounting year, revenue is
recognized upon completion of the labor services
and the amount recognized is the total amount
stated in the contract or agreement.

2) If the commencement and completion of labor
services falls in different accounting years, relevant
revenue from the labor services will be recognized on
the balance sheet date on percentage of completion
method, provided that the results of the labor service
provision transaction can be reliably estimated.

3)  If the results of the labor service provision transaction
cannot be reliably estimated, revenue will be
recognized on the balance sheet date based on
the cost of labor services incurred and estimates
of the ability to compensate such cost and carried
forward as costs. If it is estimated that the cost of
labor services incurred can be partially compensated,
revenue will be recognized to the extent that the
cost of labor services can be compensated and
the cost of labor services incurred will be carried
forward as costs. If it is estimated that the cost of
labor services incurred cannot be compensated, no
revenue will be recognized and the cost of labor
services incurred will be recognized as an expense
for the period.
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Assignment of asset use rights:

The licensing revenue arising from assignment of
asset use rights will be recognized according to the
period and method stated under relevant contract or
agreement, provided that the following conditions shall
be satisfied:

1) Inflow of economic benefits in connection with the
transaction to the Company

2)  Amount of revenue can be reliably estimated.

23. Government grants

Recognition of government grants:

Government grants are recognized if the Company
receives the monetary assets or non-monetary assets from
the government at nil consideration and the following
conditions are satisfied:

1) The Company can satisfy the conditions attached
to the government grants;

2) The Company can receive the government grants.
Measurement of government grants:

1)  Forgovernment grants in the form of monetary assets,
the amount received or receivable is measured. For
government grants in the form of non-monetary
assets, it is measured at fair value or nominal amount
if the fair value cannot be reliably estimated.

2)  For asset-related government grants, the Company
will recognize as deferred income upon the grant.
Such amount will be amortized over the useful life
of such asset from the time when such asset reach
the condition for its intended use and will be dealt
with in the profit or loss in the subsequent periods.
For those assets that are sold, transferred, retired
or damaged prior to the expiry of the useful life,
the balance of the unallocated deferred income will
be transferred as one-time gain or loss arising from
disposal of assets for the period.

For revenue-related government grants used for
compensating the relevant expenses or losses of the
Company in subsequent periods, deferred income
will be recognized upon the grant and dealt with
in the profit or loss during the period when the
relevant expenses are recognized. For those used
for compensating the relevant expenses or losses
incurred, it will be directly dealt with in the profit
or loss for the period upon the grant.
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Reversal of the government grants recognized shall
be treated as follows:

If the relevant deferred income exists, such deferred
income is offset against the balance of the carrying
value with the excess dealt with in the profit or loss
for the period.

If the relevant deferred income does not exist, it
will be directly dealt with in the profit or loss for
the period.

24. Deferred income tax assets/deferred income tax
liabilities

(1) Recognition of deferred income tax assets:

1

Deferred income tax assets arising from deductible
temporary difference are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary difference
can be utilized. However, deferred income tax assets
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities are not recognized in the transactions
with the following characteristics:

) Such transaction or event is not a part of the
business combination;

ii)  Accounting profit nor taxable profit (or
deductible loss) is affected when the transaction
takes place.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for the
deductible temporary difference associated with the
subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures
of the Company and if the following conditions are
satisfied:

i) Reversal of temporary difference is expected
in the foreseeable future;

i) It is very likely that future taxable profit
is available against which the temporary
difference can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for the
deductible losses and tax deductions that can be
carried forward to subsequent years to the extent
that future taxable profits are available against
which deductible losses and tax deductions can be
utilized.
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(2) Recognition of deferred income tax liabilities:

Deferred income tax liabilities arising from all taxable
temporary difference are recognized apart from the
deferred income tax liabilities arising from the following
conditions:

1) Initial recognition of goodwill;

2) Assets or liabilities arising from the transactions
with the following characteristics are initially
recognized:

) Such transaction is not a part of the business
combination;

ii)  Accounting profit nor taxable profit (or
deductible loss) is affected when the transaction
or event takes place.

3)  Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for the
taxable temporary difference associated with the
subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures
of the Company and if the following conditions are
satisfied:

i)  Timing of reversal of temporary difference can
be controlled by the Company;

i) Itisverylikely that the temporary difference will
not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

(3) Measurement of income tax expense:

1) On the balance sheet date, estimated amount of
income tax payable (or refundable) calculated in
accordance with the tax laws is measured for the
income tax liabilities (or assets) formed in the current
period or prior periods. According to the tax laws,
deferred income tax assets and deferred income
tax liabilities are measured at applicable tax rates
during the period when such assets are expected
to be recovered or such liabilities are expected to
be settled. If there is a change in the tax rate, the
deferred income tax assets and deferred income
tax liabilities recognized will be re-measured and
recorded as income tax expense for the period, save
for the deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities arising from the transaction
or event recognized in the shareholders’ equity.

-
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2)  On the balance sheet date, the Company reviews
the carrying value of the deferred income tax assets.
If it is very likely that no future taxable profits
will be available to deduct the gain from deferred
income tax assets, the carrying value of the deferred
income tax assets will be reduced. If it is very likely
that sufficient taxable profits will be available, the
amount reduced will be reversed.

25. Employee benefits

Employee benefits include salaries, bonus, allowance and
subsidy; staff benefits; medical insurance; pension insurance;
unemployment insurance; work injury insurance; maternity
insurance and other social insurances; housing fund; union
fund and staff education fund, non-monetary benefits and
resignation and retirement benefits in connection with the
rendering of employee services. The Company shall recognize
the remuneration payable to employees as liabilities during the
period of service and record the relevant costs and expenses
based on the revenue items arising from the rendering of
employee services apart from the compensation given as a
result of termination of employment relationship with the
employees. Employee benefits are measured based on the
following principles:

(1)  Monetary remuneration with defined standards is
recognized as employee benefits payables according to
the stated standards;

(2) Monetary remuneration with undefined standards is
recognized as employee benefits payables according to
the historical experience and its own actual conditions;

(3) Non-monetary employee benefits are recognized as
employee benefits payable upon actual disbursement at
the fair value of the non-monetary assets;

(4) For resignation and retirement benefits under the scheme
of termination of employment relationship that is duly
formulated by the Company and cannot be revoked
unilaterally, it will be dealt with in the profit or loss for the
period and recognized as employee benefits payable.
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(1) @it EEMHEe

BRARPEFEREERALRER - E
mEBBREERE L RARRBRE
AR FIZERFTIR R » RRMZIEE
b o IRIFEF A REF R FELERE KA [
WIEH  BUKERFERAIRLE X A
2010F6 A30B &% » BHAT :

A BEELRGEERENEAH
2002F H)20% £ FEI2009F 1y
70% A £ 0 FE 3 8 S R B A
TR NERRKAERAREE
Em MEMXNERRERS
o B U AR K AR A HA R I A BA X
SR M3EAL A &
B AR AR EE & -

B. MRIEX A MEUWERKERER I M F
JE SL 8%

26. Change in major accounting policies and accounting
estimates

(1)

Reason for the change in accounting estimates

The Company's sales revenue increased rapidly for
the recent years, along with the significant change in
product structure. The original applicable rate of bad
debt provision for accounts receivable cannot reflect such
changes. According to the practical accounts receivable
collection for these years, the applicable rate of bad debt
provision for accounts receivable has changed since 30th
June 2010 for the following reasons

A. The sales proportion of digital machine tool
products increased from 20% in 2002 to 70% in
2009; whereas digital floor-type boring and milling
machine replaced the conventional boring and
milling machine to become the leading products.
However, the after extension of sales installation
and commissioning period and service period of the
floor-type boring and milling machine for around
three months in average than those of conventional
boring and milling machine, the collection period
is extended.

B. Historical figures for the aged analysis of the
accounts receivable of the Company for the last

four years:
2006% 2007% 2008% 2009%
2006 2007 2008 2009

—EHR Within one year
—EZF 1-2 years
ZEZE 2-3 years
=ENE Qver 3 years

At Total

AT EREY -

a. 1-2FEUERFR AT UK EI89% » B
EIEER AT RE N RE11% 5

b. 2-3FEWERFRAIUKE47% » 3
IR AT AE N 853%

c. 3FLALEUWEBRFATURE14%
BEZERA BT HEBR86% ©

BEMEE L BE RS - R R
SRR 8 3] 12 L A R A BB T
BB AR B -

82,007,539.24  110,201,209.19  145,465,388.98  114,077,418.48
12,854,514.11 20,659,851.95 35,395,967.04 56,243,055.13
7,232,469.05 7,171,514.21 12,004,296.22 25,588,781.11
17,002,579.40 19,709,632.61 24,172,509.56 31,533,873.78

119,097,101.79 _ 157,742,207.96 _ 217,038,161.80 _ 227,443,128.50

Based on the above table, the Company estimates
that:

a. 89% of the accounts receivable due 1-2 years can
be collected with a bad debt possibility of not more
than 11%;

b.  47% of the accounts receivable due 2-3 years can
be collected with a bad debt possibility of not more
than 53%;

C. 14% of the accounts receivable due over 3 years
can be collected with a bad debt possibility of more
than 86%.

According to the historical figures over the past four years,
the original applicable rate of bad debt provision for the
accounts receivable is obviously higher than that of the
practical bad debt that is likely to be incurred.

- BRI I L




(2)

(3)

C. BAARARM BRI
B3 IRLL AR BT R
FEBARFHAF -

251 AT 2 F 1R Y IE AR K5
TELL FE M ET

RERARRKEBERNEL - BURIR
R B MU B IR BR R AT B
FENBR FURARET IR R @St ART B E
(I

RN BEAH
ER/ER Bitx Btz
LR 5% 5%
1—-2E 50% 30%
1-3E 100% 60%
3EN 100% 95%

BB IR EBIHR L R YRBR
B 5 MR A L1 - B ATT
¥R ETARMEHRLE -

TR BB EHRAEE

ARG A EEE S R EREE
REREETIELE ZBELR
HETEFEHAREREER D
36,161,049.027T ~ & U B 2k 5 58 1%
j036,161,049.027t ~ & E B B #
& R 136,161,049.027T @ & ¥ F
B 1 136,161,049.027T - | 42
%8 1 $136,161,049.027T ° FT 15 %t
# 905,424,157.357C % F E 12 40
30,736,891.667C  IEIEFTISTH & &
SR A5,424,157.357C » HRAR K 9 B A
1%N30,736,891.667C °

(2)

(3)

C. The Company’s original applicable rate of bad debt
provision for the accounts receivable is much higher
than the average applicable rate of the similar listed
companies in the same industry.

Comparison of the applicable rate for the bad debt
provision for accounts receivable before and after the
change in accounting estimates

Based on the changes in the Company’s operating
conditions, the empirical figures on the collection of
accounts receivable and the estimates of the bad debt
rate, the Company has made the following changes in
the accounting estimates of the applicable rate of bad
debt provision for accounts receivable:

Applicable Applicable

rate before rate after
Year the change the change
Within one year 5% 5%
1-2 years 50% 30%
2-3 years 100% 60%
Qver 3 years 100% 95%

The adjusted bad debt provision applicable rate is still
higher than the possibility of the practical bad debt that
is likely to be incurred, and is higher than that of the
similar listed companies in the same industry.

Impact of the change in accounting estimates on the
Company

The change in accounting estimates only relates to the
applicable rate of the bad debt provision for accounts
receivable. The change in accounting estimates has
resulted in the decrease in bad debt provision for
the period of RMB36,161,049.02, increase in net
accounts receivable of RMB36,161,049.02, decrease in
impairment on assets of RMB36,161,049.02, increase
in operating profit of RMB36,161,049.02, increase in
total profit of RMB36,161,049.02, increase in income
tax of RMB5,424,157.35, increase in net profit of
RMB30,736,891.66, decrease in deferred tax assets of
RMB5,424,157.35 and increase in undistributed profit at
the end of the period of RMB30,736,891.66.
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1>

(11) TAXATION

FEHRBRBRE 1. Major types of tax and tax rates
BE TR IR HE
Types Basis of tax computation Tax rate
BEMN AE BRSETE M IR & R E R 17%%
VAT BB TER R R B BRRERT Uniform tax rate of 17%
Tax on sales for the period after
deducting the tax on purchase
in accordance with the policies
EEN FETHA 3% 5%
Business tax Assessable income 3%, 5%
YR T 4 AR B BRI EMREEN 12 B PR IR SR A

City construction tax

LEMEH

Enterprise income tax

Bt U B R A 3

RFEPEMEKHEHN2007412H25H
FEMRIEE[2007]1835 B A © AR AR AIEX
THRIEE A ST HE R ABENL
BIEBIB T70% @ AR AR & 78 3f A B 218
HRUWERE - B2004F R ZEF15%H %
S - ZEBERERRETFETHT
HMIE - B R2011FERKL -

BIBR B EEBRHOILE - A2 B2009F &
BEENITHBAMER K ERRE - %
FiEMERMEISHBHMER - KNF
EEUTHMIKBERTNY  —m EHEA
SR BERHERANERRACEAS
962,619,480.797C ' G ¥ B RW AWML E
780.99% ' MENITABAREHBESR
B BIMERARE -

ARARMERTFRAAALZEBRRKER
BERAR ROV BEAMRINERBEAR
REBRFEMEE  AERERARER

5% EREREBERAREBERATF  BH
RARKEDHBERAR - RAKEKE

BWARBERR  EEEHKETBEERAER
NEFEHERTER25% °

VAT or business tax paid

JERT PTG E
Income tax payable

2.

According to the tax
policies in the place the
Company is located

R=2
See .2

Preferential tax policies and approvals

Based on Notice [2007] No.183 dated 25th December 2007
issued by the Kunming State Tax Bureau, the Company is
entitled to a corporate income tax rate of 15% commencing
from 2004 under the Preferential Tax Policies for the Western
Region Development because the proportion of the Company’s
sales of CNC machine tools exceed 70% of its total sales
revenue. This preferential tax policy is subject to annual
assessment and renewal, and the policy will officially expire
in 2011.

Pursuant to the written reply issued by the taxation authority,
the applicable rate of income tax of the Company is 15% due
to the preferential tax policy for Western Region Development
for 2009. As the revenue from the key parts of CNC machine
tools and high speed, precision CNC machine tools with triple
axes joint-operation for the year was RMB962,619,480.79,
accounting for 80.99% of the total revenue, it can enjoy the
preferential tax policy for Western Region Development.

The subsidiaries of the Company including Xi'an Ser Turbo
Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd. and Changsha Ser Turbo
Equipment Co., Ltd. are high tech companies. The applicable
rate of income tax is 15%. The applicable rate of income tax of
the other subsidiaries including Kunming Kunji General Machine
Co., Ltd., Winko Machines Co., Ltd., Kunji Transportation
Co., Ltd. and Fujian Kunji Conventional Machine Tool Co.,
Ltd. is 25%.

R
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(M) EESHREHTBRE (IV) ENTITIES CONSOLIDATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 DAMBENERANEEFATMNE 1. Major domestic and overseas subsidiaries controlled
A by the Company
(1) #BFRT E/WX BEH K8 F (1) Subsidiaries and joint ventures acquired through
NEIREELE establishment or investment
EELEN HERR
H707 B&7f
HAER  FREM RA 8 RS
e LEE  EfER BREA RAEMLA A{?f RRE: HERER
FRH2E FAUEE dft  REMEREEERE (ET) (E1) BE (%) G &%  (Bn) HeR
Balance of
other projects Amount
which used to
Actual  constitutes offset the
Contribution actual net minority
Business nature Registered ~ atthe end investments Shareholding Voting Minority loss out of
Placeof ~ and scope capital of the period in percentage percentage Consoli- interests  minority
Name Type registration of business (RMB10,000) ~ (RMB10,000) ~ subsidiaries (%) (%)  dation (RMB10,000) interests
BEEBRRAERR BHTAR EXT  BRAEREIR 5000 216933 45.00 B0 R 7595
BRAA(EZER) HRSEs  BEK
RERE - SERER
EfEfOTHERE
BERHARIR

YETE BE(T
4 ERERY
HiEE BREE .

R
Xi'an Ser Turbo Machinery ~ Fellow ~ Xiancity ~ Design, development and
Co,, Ltd. 1 Xi'an Ser") subsidiary sales of turbo machines,
energy saving sintering

fans, compressor equipment,
research and re-modification
of imported equipment

and its parts, automated
control system engineering,
CNC enginegring,
mechanical and chemical
equipment, meter

technology development,
whole machine production
and sales
Za@m% u% BHTAR BER RS R TENEE 500 250 50.00 00 0 R
RRAT(REES) BERRZIIER
TRt -
Fujian Kunji Conventional ~ Fellow — Nan'an city ~ Development, design,
Machine Tool Co,, Ltd. subsidiary production and sales of
("Fujian Kunji") self-produced machine
tool series products and
accessories
RHRRERRE SETLA BT BARERORZ 300 300 100.00 00 %
ERAT mit HE-
Kunming Kunji General Wholly-owned Kunming city  Development, design and
Machine Co,, Ltd. subsidiary sales of machine tool

products and accessories
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FRTRH

Name

TATRE dfe  XEMERECER

Business nature
Placeof  and scope

Type registration  of business

BELER
H147
EREMN
e R

BE

Balance of
other projects
which
constitutes
Contribution actual net

Registered  at the end investments
capital of the period in
(RMB10,000) (RMB10,000)  subsidiaries

BRER
HER
(B7t)

GHIELS
(870)

Actual

BRihl
(%)

Shareholding
percentage
(%)

FARILA
(%)

Voting

percentage Consoli-

(%)

HERR
EiTA
R
# BExEd
[iE]

3
aff

B (En

Amount
used to
offset the
minority
loss out of
minority
interests

Minority
interests
dation (RMB10,000)

RERARREDRE
BRLA(RDRE)

Winko Machines Co., Ltd.
("Winko")

RERIRFARAT
(RHEH)

705 Kunming Machine
Tool Manufacturing
Co,, Ltd.

("T0S Kunming”)

RORARRIERR
ARAA(RYVER)

Changsha Ser
TurboEquipment
Co., Ltd.
("Changsha Ser")

BRFAA EHm BT EE
ER - ZiEH
ETEm ERAN-
TRRAONETE
RERH -

Kunming city Development, application
and systemintegration of
hardware and software;
retail, wholesale and
distribution of general
machinery and electronic
machines

R EEAEE
BERKZIIER
Rttt REERE
En EER
RiEs - KRER
GUERRENL
BB OMERMI -

Kunming city Development, design,

production and sales of

self-produced machine tool
series products and
accessories; development
of high-tech products,
transfer of self-developed
technology, provision of
technical services and
technical advisory;
provision of repairs and
processing of machine
tool products for third
parties

¥EBEROEGR
ELHER FEEE
RERE

Subsidiary ~ Changsha city Production and sales of
of Xi'an centrifugal compressors,

Fellow
subsidiary

Joint
venture

BXERT RUT

Rl

2023 1934.15

S00ER T 24739

1000

Ser centrifugal blowerssintering

fans and its accessories

9%.74

50.00

100.00

%.74

50.00

100.00

8
E

N

E

-
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EELER HERF
H747 il
HRER  FREN =8 S8 RAEY
AfER tEE  EfER BREH BB o RRER ERRER
FAA2R FAREE i EEHERLEEE (Br) (B7) BE (%) (%) &% (Bn)  HheE
Balance of
other projects Amount
which used to
Actual  constitutes offset the
Contribution  actual net minority
Business nature Registered ~ at the end investments Shareholding Voting Minority loss out of
Placeof  and scope capital of the period in percentage  percentage Consoli- interests  minority
Name Type registration of business (RMB10,000) (RMB10,000) ~ subsidiaries (%) (%) dation (RMB10,000) interests
MNERRERELE BRERT Ml KE RERETIR 120 51.00 51.00 3
BRAR(MMER) A e R
HEENERE
EREH - B
ZeRERE T
R HERRERE
% TEREER
BEME BEIA
SEMH AEkED
£ B BAREEN
-4 458
Hangzhou Ser Gas Subsidiary  Hangzhou city Contracting: design,
Engineering Co., Ltd. of Xi'an development, sales and
("Hangzhou Ser") Ser technology support of gas
equipment engineering,
compressors, sintering fans,
whole sintering fan
equipment, lowtemperature
machines, automated
control system equipment
and its parts; wholesale
and retail: mechanical and
electrical products, building
materials, hardware tools,
metal materials; operation
of import/export businesses;
all legally valid projects
not subject to review
and approval
ERERERER 2ET07 BB fipilt 50 50 100 100 2
EELA(RMER)
Kunji Transportation Wholly- - Kunming city  General cargo transportation
Co,, ld. owned
("Kunj Transportation”) subsidiary
[ s BEhE A R Z5 e 6,000 1400 B3 B34 T VY
TERRERAT
(A%%H)
Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping ~ Associated  Xi'an city  Laser prototyping machine
Manufacturing & company
Engineering Research
Co,, ld.
("Xi'an Ruite" )
(2) [ —#H T LEESHREHFA (2) Subsidiaries acquired from entities consolidation under
o/ same control
ik Nil
(3) FEAI—HE# TR E A R F (3) Subsidiaries acquired from entities consolidation under
YT different control
4ux Nil

/AN
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2. BERAREHEENHE

(1) HREHR - RAPHEHREREH
BERBEZL -

(2) ARAFKAOLEBISHK
B -ERAXEBEFENE
P ARBAERRNEEHESZ
B HMAFESOLRERANRA
ZRFRARRDER  MIMNE
BAAGHRKREE -

2005F4A878 » AR Al EER
BHAHZRRAFEAEERIE
BREHT - =M EAS00E BT
RAFHEASO%LEE  EFS
B H6%  ERARAEIRS
% EBEERABINAZER HH
TEEESE T AS N
mEEE -

KNAalFEmERK00%R
E-BEEEEMEEERE
FARRAEZERMNEEHS
B MAFEBRAEGHRE
#HE -

(3) ARAEHEEFBUALRRE
BRANAHBENRIRESE

fiz o

(B) EHfETHRREEREER

AT SUEBR IERFRIFE H - HRHI¥T$820094F
12HA31H &% - BiR1¥94820106 H30H
8% NEAIE2010F EEFE - LEY
52009 E¥FE - BEfH A  ARBIT -

2. Explanation of scope of consolidation of the Company

(1) During the Reporting Period, the Company did
not have any material changes in the consolidated
financial statements.

(2) The Company holds 45% of the total share capital
of Xi'an Ser. Among the members of the board
of Xi‘an Ser, as the majority of the directors were
appointed by the Company, the financial statements
of Xi‘an Ser and its subsidiaries Changsha Ser and
Hangzhou Ser were consolidated in the financial
statements of the Company.

On 7th April 2005, the joint venture TOS Kunming
was established by the Company and Czech Tos
Vansdorf Co.,Ltd. with a registered capital of 5
million Euros. The Company holds 50% of the
registered capital of TOS Kunming. Among the 6
members of the Board, 3 of them were appointed
by the Company and the chairman was appointed
by Czech Tos Vansdorf Co.,Ltd. The Company does
not have the controlling power. Thus, the financial
statements of TOS Kunming were not consolidated
in the financial statements of the Company.

The Company holds 50% equity interests in Fujian
Kunji. However, as the majority of the members of
the board of Fujian Kunji were appointed by the
directors of the Company, it was consolidated in
the financial statements for the year.

(3) The Company does not own investees that own the
majority voting rights but the financial statements
of which are not consolidated in the Company’s
financial statements.

(V) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unless otherwise stated, the opening balance refers to the
balance as at 31st December 2009 and the closing balance
refers to the balance as at 30th June 2010; whereas the current
period refers to the six months ended 30th June 2010 and the
prior period refers to the six months ended 30th June 2009.
The currency unit is RMB.

I -
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EXES 1. Monetary Assets
BT BE:ARK
Unit: RMB

HRY 0%
Closing balance Opening balance
MeLw E% AR¥LHE NELE IEES AREEE
Foreign Foreign
15H Items currency  Exchange rate RMB currency  Exchange rate RMB
e Cash: = = 289,774.94 = - 423,310.35
ARE RMB = = 257,334.69 = - 375,512.90
BT HKD 5,132.64 0.8792 4512.72 5,132.64 0.8805 4,519.19
e UsD 2,186.15 6.8263 14,923.32 2,806.15 6.8282 19,570.65
BT EUR 1,419.86 9.1588 13,004.21 2,419.86 9.797 23,707.61
#aER: Bank deposit: - - 361,079,365.84 - - 279,679,248.78
ARE RMB - - 330,781,822.51 - - 248922,033.19
BT HKD 8,979,340.39 0.8792 7,894,648.17 8,963,958.74 0.8805 7,892,586.39
e uso 3,278,261.80 6.8201  22,377,624.45 3,347,016.42 6.8282  22,854,097.52
BT EUR 2,948.96 8.5694 25.270.11 1,074.98 9.797 10,531.68
At Total - - 361,369,140.78 - - 280,102,559.13
EWEE 2. Bills receivable

By oo KR ARE
Unit: RMB
HMARE EEIE
EH Items Closing balance Opening balance
RITHENER Bank acceptance notes 174,011,055.79 186,485,466.36
PEANESR Commercial acceptance notes - -
CEn Total 174,011,055.79 186,485,466.36
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3 EBWERF :

3. Dividends receivable

Efy T BE ARK

Unit: RMB

AHEH L

CEIE | KHEM ) BAY FR RAREHE

Opening Increase for  Decrease for Closing Reason for  Existence of

EH Item balance the period the period balance  non-recovery impairment
BR—ENME Dividends receivable with an

el age within one year - 528919140  5,289,191.40 = =

El Total - 528919140  5,289,191.40 - -

4. Accounts receivable

B T KB ARE

Unit: RMB
BARY #08
Closing balance Opening balance
i) REGE
Account balance Account balance

8 EA(%) BRER 8 EA(%) BRER
Bad debt Bad debt
1 Age Amount Proportion (%) provision Amount Proportion (%) provision
—ELA Within one year 139,343,555.11 4017 6,023,818.69 143,592,558.26 4737 7,211,190.43
—EC2F 1-2 years 76,505,103.90 2205 26,844,571.46  72,691,175.70 2398  31,468,062.83
ZE-F 2-3 years 64,277,566.35 18.53  43,632,203.08  38,790,466.14 12,80 38,790,466.14
ZENE Over 3 years 66,766,877.48 19.25  62,650,359.18  48,085,117.66 15.86  48,085,117.66
ait Total 346,893,102.84 100.00 139,150,952.41 303,159,317.76 100.00 125,554,837.06

5. Other receivables

By B BE ARK

Unit: RMB
BAY H98
Closing balance Opening balance
BESE REHE
Account balance Account balance

] §A(%) BRER 2 EAI(%) BRER
Bad debt Bad debt
1 Age Amount Proportion (%) provision Amount Proportion (%) provision
—ELA Within one year 15,911,562.99 60.55 412,635.94  14,729,135.03 53.06 624,014.78
-2z 1-2 years 2,906,748.12 11.06 795311.21  6,225,666.03 2243 504,482.02
ZE-F 2-3 years 487,970.66 1.86 295,239.11  1,109,000.00 4,00 1,109,000.00
ZENE Over 3 years 6,972,207.52 2553 6,972,207.52  5,694,611.62 2051 5,694,611.62
ait Total 26,278,489.29 100.00  8,475,393.78  27,758,412.68 100.00  7,932,108.42

-
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BAMNRE

6. Prepayments

BT EEARE

Unit: RMB
HMRE B
Closing balance Opening balance

-] L BI(%) £ e (%)

IR Aged analysis Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)

TERRA Within one year 74,110,890.52 90.81  21,257,024.34 53.31

1226 1-2 years 1,472,634.79 1.80 14,569,626.72 36.54

2E3F 2-3 years 5,073,284.70 6.22 2,298,097.70 5.76

3FLE Over 3 years 951,762.40 1.17 1,752,365.99 4.39

A&t Total 81,608,572.41 100.00  39,877,114.75 100.00
7E 7. Inventories

By oo KR ARE

Unit: RMB

BAY EEEE
Closing balance Opening balance

BESE HEER REEE BESE HEER REEE

Book  Impairment Book Book  Impairment Book

ER ltems balance provision value balance provision value

A Raw materials 109,519,525.63  3,058,111.54 106,461,414.09  88,651,716.47  3,058,111.54  85,593,604.93

fEm Work in progress 333,432,082.65  5,926,028.34 327,506,054.31 343,012,799.82  6,467,085.00 336,545,714.82

EFHM Inventory of goods 204,034,007.91  6,449,308.24 197,584,699.67 180,655,458.38  6,449,308.24 174,206,150.14

EEMH Turnover materials 7,306,626.31 82,781.00  7,223,84531  5,903,710.92 82,781.00  5,820,929.92

BHER Goods sold 5144727.89  4,220,599.83 92412806 4,934,486.09  3,765,157.87  1,169,328.22

EEEt Self-produced semi-finished products 493,754.57 - 49375457 - - -

ZiNINE Commissioned processing materials 4,570,546.69 - 4,570,546.69  6,952,754.03 - 6,952,754.03

ait Total 664,501,271.65 19,736,828.95 644,764,442.70 630,110,925.71  19,822,443.65 610,288,482.06
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8 HEEILXRENBMELERE: 8.

Investment in joint ventures and associated companies

BT KEARE

Unit: RMB
kig
kg
KERER  ERERARE 8R E3 8% L]
hAEENLR txEE i EARR £H1E e (%) (%) HEEE afeE FREEE  ERNAEE KEFHR
Percentage Net Total
Shareholding ~ of voting  Total assets  Total liabilities assets at operating
Place of  Legal Registered  percentage rightsinthe at the end at the end the end of income for et profit for
Name of investee ~ Type registration  representative  Business nature  capital (%) investee (%) of the period of the period the period the period the period
- RERE
1. Joint venture
RREFER  AREALA  EERE honRd  BRER 50028 50 50 13926664834 6164498061 7762166773 3599599568 426327850
BRAA EERE
T0S Kunming ~ Limited liabiity ~ Yunnan, Ing.Jan Ryl Production 5 million
Machine Tool Kunming and sales of Furos
Manufacturing machine tool
Co., Ltd. products
o el
2. Associated company
BFRSRE  RREADA  EXD ERR g 6,0008 B B34 1250397658 4788936866 GASIA604%2 1001678739 (8997174Y)
HEIR EERE
fE27
Xi'an Ruite Laser ~ Limited liability ~ Xi'an ity Lu Tianjian Production and 60 million
Prototyping sales of [aser
Manufacturing prototyping
& Engingering machine
Research
(o, Ltd.
9- RHIRERE: 9. Long-term equity investment
B EZE Under equity method:
By BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
t# tH
18 REEN REER
HRRER IhR&Rx #188 BRgg S REEE REAA  BRUAI(%) RABEA(%)
Percentage of  Percentage of
Initial Cash  shareholding  voting rights
investment Opening Increase/ Closing  Impairment  dividend for in the investee in the investee
Name of investee (ost balance decrease balance provision the period (%) (%)
RAERERERAT 105 Kunming Machine Tool
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. ~ 24739,533.99  41,979,409.03  (3,157,552.15)  38,821,856.88 - 528919140 50 50
ERERRREETERRERLE  X'an Ruite Laser Prototyping
Manufacturing & Engineering
Research Co,, L1d. 1400000000 14,040478.03  (245,406.37)  13,795,071.66 - - B34 B34

s
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10 - EEEE :

10. Fixed assets

Bz T BE: AR

Unit: RMB

HNGERE REEM THED HAREAE

Opening Increase for Decrease for Closing

EH Items book balance the period the period book balance

— RERBEAH 1. Total fixed assets at cost: 737,382,650.53 5,807,604.35 1,067,483.91  742,122,770.97

i EEREEY Including: Buildings and structures ~ 316,139,138.11 403,090.00 - 316,542,228.11

WHRRE Machinery equipment 344,498,189.31 4.802,536.78 465,520.99  348,835,205.10

ERTA Transportation equipment 38,481,331.35 72,405.00 1,800.00 38,551,936.35

EHE Electronic equipment 38,263,991.76 529,572.57 600,162.92  38,193,401.41

- RHEAL: 2. Total accumulated depreciation 269,589,714.36  18,879,372.17 1,926,821.28  286,542,265.25

Hh: BEREEY Including: Buildings and structures 61,196,884.67 4,667,379.48 905,406.96 64,958,857.19

WHERE Machinery equipment 172,063,216.31 11,991,740.56 44710336 183,607,853.51

ERTA Transportation equipment 14,784,216.68 1,363,338.79 1,728.00 16,145,827.47

EHE Electronic equipment 21,545,396.70 856,913.34 572,582.96  21,829,727.08

= EEEERAFESH 3. Total net book value of fixed assets ~ 467,792,936.17 5,807,604.35 18,020,034.80  455,580,505.72

£ FEREEY Including: Buildings and structures ~ 254,942,253.44 403,090.00 3,761,972.52  251,583,370.92

WERE Machinery equipment 172,434,973.00 4.802,536.78  12,010,158.19  165,227,351.59

EWTA Transportation equipment ~ 23,697,114.67 72,405.00 1,363,410.79  22,406,108.88

EHE Electronic equipment 16,718,595.06 529,572.57 884,493.30 16,363,674.33

M- RERESH 4. Total provision for impairment 3,777,474.24 - - 3,777,474.24

i BEREEY Including: Buildings and structures - - - -

WERE Machinery equipment 3,650,136.96 - - 3,650,136.96

EHTA Transportation equipment - - - -

EHE Electronic equipment 127,337.28 - - 127,337.28

- EEEERAEEES 5. Total book value of fixed assets 464,015,461.93 5,807,604.35 18,020,034.80  451,803,031.48

2 REREEY Including: Buildings and structures 254,942,253.44 403,090.00 3,761,972.52  251,583,370.92

WERE Machinery equipment 168,784,836.04 4.802,536.78  12,010,158.19  161,577,214.63

EWTA Transportation equipment ~ 23,697,114.67 72,405.00 1,363,410.79  22,406,108.88

ETHE Electronic equipment 16,591,257.78 529,572.57 884,493.30 16,236,337.05

1M1 -EEIR: 11. Construction-in-progress
By or BE:AREK
Unit: RMB
BRE R
Closing balance Opening balance

RERE REERE REFE RERE AEERE REFE

Book  Impairment Net Book  Impairment Net

1B Item balance provision book value balance provision book value
NEEH “Nine.Five” Technology

improvement projects 40,000.00 40,000.00 - 40,000.00 40,000.00 -

BIEEHER CNC guideway grinder 50,456,349.19 - 50,456,349.19  43,704,875.68 - 43,704,875.68

58 Casting base 27,540,451.20 - 27,540,451.20  25,597,200.00 - 25,597,200.00

At Others 33,710,185.54  2,016,931.37  31,693,254.17  32,536,586.32  2,016,931.37  30,519,654.95

At Total 111,746,985.93  2,056,931.37 109,690,054.56 101,878,662.00  2,056,931.37  99,821,730.63
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FKEE :

12. Intangible assets

By :r BE:AR¥

Unit: RMB
M RHHE R KEED HARRHSHE
Opening Increase for Decrease for Closing
HHE Items book balance the period the period  book balance
— BERES 1. Total book value at cost 46,364,341.26 = - 46,364,341.26
TitfE R Land use rights 25,925,562.02 - - 25,925,562.02
FEM Various softwares 14,379,236.05 = - 14,379,236.05
VI Patent technology 239,000.00 = = 239,000.00
HiRE Trademark right 39,140.00 = = 39,140.00
BREBEER Exclusive technology used
in embroidery machines 2,323,453.26 - - 2,323,453.26
Hit Others 3,457,949.93 = = 3,457,949.93
= BEtEHA . Total accumulated amortization 8,154,087.20 1,349,296.64 - 9,503,383.84
T RE Land use rights 2,447,087.40 301,701.30 - 2,748,788.70
EEMH Various softwares 5,413,032.15 373,159.27 - 5,786,191.42
SR Patent technology 6,658.33 625,749.91 - 632,408.24
AR Trademark right 6,935.20 1,957.14 - 8,892.34
BIRIFRI Exclusive technology used in
embroidery machines - - - -
Hit Others 280,374.12 46,729.02 - 327,103.14
= EBREERRFEAT . Total net book value of
intangible assets 38,210,254.06 - 1,349,296.64  36,860,957.42
TP A Land use rights 23,478,474.62 - 301,701.30  23,176,773.32
ZEHM Various softwares 8,966,203.90 - 373,159.27 8,593,044.63
Vi Patent technology 232,341.67 - 625,749.91 (393,408.24)
HIRE Trademark right 32,204.80 - 1,957.14 30,247.66
BEREARM Exclusive technology used in
embroidery machines 2,323,453.26 - - 2,323,453.26
Htf Others 3,177,575.81 - 46,729.02 3,130,846.79
M REEREE . Total impairment provision 2,323,453.26 - - 2,323,453.26
TinfERE Land use rights - - - -
EREHMH Various softwares - - - -
Vs Patent technology - - - -
[y Trademark right - - - -
BREEEERM Exclusive technology used in
embroidery machines 2,323,453.26 - - 2,323,453.26
Hft Others - - - -
T EVEEREEES . Total book value of intangible
assets 35,886,800.80 - 1,349,296.64  34,537,504.16
T RE Land use rights 23,478,474.62 - 301,701.30  23,176,773.32
EETM Various softwares 8,966,203.90 - 373,159.27 8,593,044.63
Vi Patent technology 232,341.67 - 625,749.91 (393,408.24)
AR Trademark right 32,204.80 - 1,957.14 30,247.66
BRBEERI Exclusive technology used in
embroidery machines - - - -
Hit Others 3,177,575.81 - 46,729.02 3,130,846.79
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13. Deferred income tax assets

Bz T BE: AR

Unit: RMB
AR EEIR
Closing Opening
HE Items balance balance
BEARIE Bad debt provision 29,350,598.10 22,784,274.03
AHHESR Impairment of available-for-sale
EERAE financial assets - =
FEREER Provision for impairment of inventories 3,665,744.70 3,665,744.70
&7 & EREE R Provision for impairment of fixed assets 929,973.45 929,973.45
EREIRREER Provision for impairment of
construction-in-progress 514,232.85 514,232.85
REIRERE Provision for impairment of long-term
E equity investment 500,000.00 5,335,386.21
"B W Investment Income 61,351.55 -
BEtAE Contingent liabilities 2,321,954.81 1,783,845.87
BEEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 1,330,012.29 934,530.38
TERREMA Accruals 837,615.00 837,615.00
RERRKEDHE Unrealized internal profits 660,266.31 414,855.66
AR AE A Early retirement and benefits 2,778,656.15 3,054,385.66
SR EBERESR Issue VAT invoice in advance 2,860,840.03 4,919,257.42
TR 4 B Government grants 1,410,000.00 1,410,000.00
BHIRF R FEFT I Accounts payable overdue for two years 191,537.15 191,537.15
iika Commission 522,000.00 -
CEn Total 47,934,782.38 46,775,638.38
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BEEREEHEAM

14. Breakdown of provision for impairment of assets

By T B ARE

Unit: RMB
HA BARHSE KM N MARRHSE
Opening Increase for Closing
Items book balance the period Decrease for the period  book balance
#Q B
Reversal Write-off
- ZRER 1. Bad debt provision  133,486,945.48  14,139,400.71 - 102,792.17  147,523,554.02
Z REREBER 2. Provision for
impairment of
inventories 19,822,443.65 - - 85,614.70 19,736,828.95
= AftnESR 3. Provision for
BEREEE impairment of
available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - -
M HEEIH 4. Provision for
REREREE impairment of
held-to-maturity
investment - - - - -
i RERERE 5. Provision for
REER impairment of
long-term equity
investment 2,000,000.00 - - - 2,000,000.00
N RENGME 6. Provision for
LR impairment of
real estate investment - - - - -
t. BTEE 7. Provision for impairment
REERE of fixed assets 3,777,474.24 - - - 377747424
N IERNE 8. Provision for impairment
LR of construction
materials - - - - -
ne ERIR 9. Provision for impairment
LR of construction-in-
progress 2,056,931.37 - - - 2,056,931.37
T EEUHENE 10. Provision for impairment
EREEE of productive
biological assets - - - - -
Ao pEEN Including: Provision for
ENEE impairment of mature
REER productive biological
assets - - - - -
T— HREE 11. Provision for impairment
RELERE of oil assets - - - - -
= BVEE 12. Provision for impairment
RELERE of intangible assets  2,323,453.26 - - - 2,323,453.26
= HEREEE 13. Provision for impairment
of goodwill - - - - -
0 Efth 14. Others - - - - -
At Total 163,467,248.00 14,139,400.71 - 188,406.87  177,418,241.84

- PRI
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15~ EHIMER

15. Short-term borrowings
Bfy o KR ARK

Unit: RMB

BARE AR

HHE Items Closing balance Opening balance
EHRE K Secured borrowings 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00

Credit borrowings 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00

BT Total 70,000,000.00 70,000,000.00

16 ~ B E#E - 16. Bills payable

Total

By o BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
HARE B
BE Type Closing balance Opening balance
RITRLESR Bank acceptance notes 30,257,114.00 8,370,000.00
&t Total 30,257,114.00 8,370,000.00
17 ~ FETHE T 5 A 17. Accrued salary
By o BE:ARE
Unit: RMB
BORESHE REBHE A bN -} BARREHE
Opening Increase for Decrease for Closing
Items book balance the period the period  book balance
—T& %% HEF#BL 1. Salary, bonus, subsidy and grants  17,829,962.68  79,038,535.92  88,172,186.40 8,696,312.20
~BIGHE 2. Employees’ benefits - 2,978,773.97 3,954,004.07 (975,230.10)
= HERRE 3. Social insurance 51,179.81  16,248,407.20  17,384,526.58  (1,084,939.57)
Hep: 1 BERE Including: 1. Medical insurance 107,854.45 5,603,742.12 5,333,137.46 378,459.11
2 BAE 2. Basic retirement
insurance 459,663.57  9,538,032.40  10,952,657.24 (954,961.27)
3-FauB 3. Annuity - - - -
KE 4. Unemployment
insurance (516,338.21) 576,894.78 568,993.98 (508,437.41)
5 T3¢ 5. Work injury insurance - 162,550.69 162,550.69 -
6 45 6. Maternity insurance - 367,187.21 367,187.21 -
REEAES 4. Housing fund 2,260,588.32 6,421,873.00  6,426,561.00 2,255,900.32
- TEEEA 5. Union expenses and employees
BIHRGE education expenses 6,239,171.63  2,552,998.79 1,464,245.18 7,327,925.24
S EEEEER 6. Non-monetary benefits - - - -
- RBREBEE 7. Compensation for termination of
RYRREE labor service contract 13,482,540.57 40,372.00 40,372.00  13,482,540.57
Hity 8. Others - 11,919,52457  11,919,524.57 -
Hi: YBRSHEN Including: cash-settled share-based
Bt payments - - - -
- RAEF 9. Early retirement and benefits - - 2,172,906.74  (2,172,906.74)
C RERMEER 10. Unrecognized finance expenses - 334,709.99 - 334,709.99

39,863,443.01

119,535,195.44

131,534,326.54

27,864,311.91
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18. Taxes payable
By - or BEARK

Unit: RMB

HR & IRVIE

EHH Items Closing balance Opening balance

HET Value-added tax (250,655.70) 14,290,157.18

= Business tax 428.50 132,624.31

TSR Enterprise income tax (425,522.32) 10,261,027.14

(EYNGIECE Individual income tax 1,294,720.52 485,012.41

YT MR R A City construction tax (334,385.55) (222,969.77)

FEEM Property tax 52,273.75 1,146,072.99

T AR Land use tax 85,636.50 297,643.85

Htb Others 6,702,531.37 (39,636.20)

=1 Total 7,125,027.07 26,349,931.91
19 B EE: 19. Contingent liabilities

By or BE:ARE

Unit: RMB

B BRE

HH Items Opening balance Closing balance

Product quality warranty 11,885,194.70 15,479,698.71

=1 Total 11,885,194.70 15,479,698.71

20 - REAEFRR 20. Long-term payables
By or HE:ARE
Unit: RMB
BRE IRV
HH Items Closing balance Opening balance
ENREHESR Obligation under finance lease 4,106,026.80 4,106,026.80
BEr Total 4,106,026.80 4,106,026.80
W RHERHBEER  Less: unrecognized finance expenses 1,483,038.70 1,547,518.60
AEr Total 2,622,988.10 2,558,508.20
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21 BIEENK 21. Specific payable
By T BE:ARK

Unit: RMB
O FHEEY HARH featat s
Carried
Opening forward Closing
1HH Items balance for the period balance Remark
EFERIEHEREIZ Specific appropriation from
Yunnan Provincial
Development and Reform
Commission - - -
PRAAENET % Specific appropriation for
BELHIERER industrial automation from
Shaanxi Provincial
Development and Reform
Commission - - -
PRI MME#ER  Specific appropriation from
BN Shaanxi Intellectual
Property Office 100,000.00 - 100,000.00
aat Total 100,000.00 - 100,000.00
22 BA 22. Share capital
Bfy oo KR ARK
Unit: RMB
EREBER (4 -)
Increase/decrease during the period (+ -)
e
B8 BAER R &R Eff gt BRE
(Capitalization
Opening Issue of Bonus  of capital Closing
balance  new shares issue reserve Others  Sub-total balance
RIFEH Total number of shares 424,864,883 - - - - - 424,864,883
B ARATIA2010F7 A2 MR E2f L g5 EE Note: On 2nd July 2010, the Company received the Letter of Approval
EEE[2010) 1305 EFE A EIEERNRF from the Department of Commerce of Yunnan Province
BLMEBRRABAROERARELRR Concerning its Consent on the Proposal for Bonus Issue by
HMeEERARNIE)  BEARQRRAL Capitalization of Capital Reserve of Shenji Group Kunming
¥HF424,864,883%15%531,081,103% Machine Tool Company Limited (Yun Nan Sheng Shang Wu

Ting Shang Zi [2010] No. 130), under which the total share
capital of the Company was approved to be increased from
424,864,883 shares to 531,081,103 shares.
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23 BEERRQTE 23. Capital reserve
By T BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
B KM KEHD BARHY
Opening Increase for Decrease for Closing
E5H Items balance the period the period balance
EREEB(RNEE) Capital reserve (share premium) 125,422,997.12 - - 125,422,997.12
EEALNE Other capital reserve 8,096,544.60 - - 8,096,544.60
A&t Total 133,519,541.72 - - 133,519,541.72
24 - B8R AR 24. Surplus reserve
By T KE:ARKE
Unit: RMB
B KHRIE i - BARE
Opening Increase for Decrease for Closing
HR Items balance the period the period balance
EERBAE Statutory surplus reserve 90,250,998.55 - - 90,250,998.55
ast Total 90,250,998.55 - - 90,250,998.55
25~ RO BEFHE : 25. Undistributed profits
By T BE:ARKE
Unit: RMB
28 REISELH(%)
Drawing or
allocation
HH Items Amount proportion (%)

FRBFEYRDBEFE  After adjustment: undistributed profit at
the beginning of the year

Add: net profit attributable to the

568,378,612.85 -
m: AHEERN

BRAIMAEED owners of the parent company

R E for the period 82,218,942.04 -
W R E B AR AR A Less: dividends payable 21,243,244.15 -
BMARARDEAE Undistributed profits at the end of the period 629,354,310.74 -
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26 EEWA :

26. Operating income

BT EEARE

AEAEE AR
For the six
months ended

Unit: RMB
AR

For the six
months ended

1HE Items 30th June 2010 30th June 2009
TEEBBA Operating income 753,311,739.62 641,942,134.34
eI ON Other operating income 2,678,162.73 20,361,926.92
CEn Total 755,989,902.35 662,304,061.26
EEWRA(DITE) Operating income by product category
BT BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
THRER LHRER
For the six months For the six months
ended 30th June 2010 ended 30th June 2009
I=E 0N BEMAK =ELON BEMAE
Operating Operating Operating Operating
TEER Items income expenses income expenses
BREMBE Sales of machine tool

BB IEE

HEREE WA
PR AN T AR 7%

BRREHE
BREHIRA

MRHE
MEX®
BT AR5
Hith 35 &

products

Sales of highly efficient
energy-saving compressors

Sales of new products

Machine tool processing
services

Sales of embroidery
machines

Sales of intelligent electrical
appliances

Sales of rotary tables

Sales of laser prototyping
machines

Sales of sensor equipment

Machine tool transportation
revenue

Sales of materials

Leasing

Technical support services

Other sales

Total

639,466,449.05

91,651,429.88
4,829,059.82

5,275,807.84

15,600.00

1,546,092.04
38,000.00

13,167,463.72

435,465,922.96

542,071,939.03

82,844,200  70,128,365.58
- 18,947,676.93
1,121,154.29  13,804,424.32
- 354,136.77

8,425.28 1,469,512.85

- 2,065,148.00
698,673.48 607,259.91
101,012.32 166,600.00
- 3,461.41
9,438,412.71 12,685,536.46

348,070,269.12

54,744,901.89

4,425,678.14

4,137,122.00

1,499,119.37

1,698,385.40
427,335.77
108,475.44
193.83
10,292,599.63

755,989,902.35

529,677,801.04

662,304,061.26

425,404,080.59
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27 - EEBRES KM M : 27. Business tax and additions
By o BE: ARKEK
Unit: RMB
AR

For the six
months ended

LHIR AR
For the six
months ended

ATREE

HE Items 30th June 2010 30th June 2009 Tax rate standards
BED Business tax 48,408.81 52,695.39  REBWARSY% 3%
Measured at 5% and 3% of the
assessable income
W 4R B City construction tax 141,863.72 220,335.87  IRILEFEMNT%
Measured at 7% of the value
added tax
HEEBNM Education fee additions 70,901.38 113,361.02  EHMEFII%  MFHEE
MY ARG ER A1 %
Measured at 3% of the city
construction tax; and 1% of
the value-added tax for the
local education fee additions
B Total 261,173.91 386,392.28
28 - BEWES - 28. Investment income
(1) REWZSBHAE R (1) Breakdown of investment income
By o BE:AREK
Unit: RMB
AER B4 AE LTHAR AR
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
HH Items 30th June 2010 30th June 2009
BmEZER Long-term equity investment income
REARR 1R & Was under equity method 1,886,233.07 6,047,863.99
A&t Total 1,886,233.07 6,047,863.99
) BEZRZIEENRBARERKRE (2) Long-term equity investment income under equity
Wezs method
By or BE:ARE
Unit: RMB
ANHALL E R
RER AR LHIR A BENRE
For the six For the six
months ended months ended Reason for
HIREEN Name of investee 30th June 2010 30th June 2009 the change
BHTA A TOS Kunming 2,131,639.25 6,179,238.75 BN
Decrease in profit
AL Xi‘an Ruite (245,406.18) (131,347.76) Eia
Increase in loss
=H Total 1,886,233.07 6,047,863.99
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31
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BEERERX

29. Loss on impairment of assets
Bz T KE:ARKE

Unit: RMB
RHAR A &R FHAR AR
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
HE Items 30th June 2010 30th June 2009
— - BEREX 1. Provision for bad debt 14,036,608.54 15,713,386.83
— - FEREEX 2. Provision for impairment of
inventories (85,614.70) (1,317,193.52)
= BEEEEREBERX 3. Provision for impairment of
fixed assets - 123,400.88
CE Total 13,950,993.84 14,519,594.19
EEIMA - 30. Non-operating income
By or KR ARE
Unit: RMB
RHIR AR FHiR AR
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
HE Items 30th June 2010 30th June 2009
RBEEREFNSAET  Total gain on disposal of
non-current assets 983,251.22 30,111.58
Hep: AEEEKREFS  Including: Gain on disposal of
fixed assets 946,718.28 30,111.58
BEBEANE Gain arising from debt restructuring 36,532.94 -
TR 4 B Government grant - 311,200.00
BETRE Refund of VAT - 17,172,846.19
HAitb Others 500.00 1,183,769.42
CEn Total 983,751.22 18,697,927.19
BEISTH 31. Non-operating expenses
By or BE:ARE
Unit: RMB
AERERE LTHIRARE
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
HE Items 30th June 2010 30th June 2009
IREEEREEAAET  Total loss on disposal of
non-current assets 291,516.80 160,166.72
BErh: BEEEREIBL  Including: Loss on disposal of fixed assets 288,516.80 153,766.72
HHMBRE Donation 3,000.00 6,400.00
HAh Others 1,651,232.79 558,364.49
&t Total 1,942,749.59 718,531.21
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32 REHER :

33

v

32.

Income tax expenses

Efr - ®E:ARKE

Unit: RMB
RERE 4 HE LFHIR A
For the six For the six

months ended months ended

EA Items 30th June 2010 30th June 2009
RHOERBBERE Current income tax pursuant to the

FSTERE SR tax law and relevant requirements 16,716,552.16 16,359,025.82
RIEFTIS T T & Deferred income tax adjustment (3,954,517.97) (4,084,994.57)
a&t Total 12,762,034.19 12,274,031.25
BEAGRUBNFESRWEMNE 33. Calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted
BR earnings per share

EXgREE=PO+S

S=S0+S1+Six Mi+
MO=Sj X Mj~MO0-Sk

Hreb : PORE BN AR E &R AR %EF
MBI FEERREBN EERRK
REVFEME - SABITEIN B BBINEF
B8 SORMABRM AR S1AREHEA
NTE T I BN AR A 0 i S 48 p B
B SIAREHRBTHRIEERSE
AR B S)R TR E B A [ B F R X
M8 SkRMERERE - MORSHAD
2 MiRIE MR R AR EREHHRD
REtAE MBB L BRMIR A EERE B
HIRM RFTAE -

ARG ERBIEELEARY - BEH T
FR R AR 38 2 HE R A
BTSN EBRMBF A - LI HE
RIS -

ERATAMBES  ROBE - BB E
SHIBILBEEBRIERT - HREBK
RASBMTAREF -

Basic earnings per share=P0+S

S= SO0+S1+SixMi+M0-SjxMj+MO0-Sk

Including: PO refers to the net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company or net profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders after non-recurring gains and losses;
S refers to the weighted average number of the outstanding
ordinary shares; SO refers to the total number of shares at
the beginning of the period; S1 refers to the increase in the
number of shares as a result of capitalization of capital reserve
or profit distribution during the reporting period; Si refers to
the increase in the number of shares as a result of issue of
new shares or debt to equity swap during the reporting period;
Sj refers to the decrease in the number of shares as a result
of repurchase during the period; Sk refers to the number of
reduced shares during the reporting period; MO refers to the
number of months during the reporting period; Mi refers to
the number of months from the next month of the increase
of shares to the end of the reporting period; Mj refers to the
number of months from the next month of the decrease of
shares to the end of the reporting period.

In the presence of potential dilutive ordinary shares, the net
profit attributable to ordinary shareholders for the reporting
period and weighted average number of outstanding ordinary
shares shall be adjusted and used in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share.

In issuing the potential dilutive ordinary shares upon the
exercise of convertible bonds, options and warrants, diluted
earnings per share may be calculated as follows:
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®ES KW HE=P1/(S0+S1+SixMi-+
MO-Sj X Mj+~MO-Sk+:2 it # & - & 4
i - TEREFSEMNSERMET
HE)

L NEY T P ONGES TS S
BB IEE R B S BBN AR B
BRI SR 0B - 3 R IR A

BYUHEE  B(OEQIDERDRA B
TR -

NAEFERBEERKEGER  BEEME
HEEECEARERBEN AR T ARK
ROFMNBRNRELEHEZREBR
IS S S 0bEUDERINIE: B ale t
MEE REREREBERERAZNOIERF
AAABEERED  EEREBEESRKGE
B &/ME -

2010F7H2H + AR RIAE KD IE6E 1L
BN 5 &S T B B BT SR P At
ERARERE AAFMNETRKS
424,864,8830% 1% Z=531,081,103/% -
i & 2201056 A30H M2009%6 A30H
IF6EAMNEREFZIZBE A NTEEIZR
A7 ERFAEEZES31,081,103 E MR AE

e -

AEEBRN T EBRKRENZERHE
82,218,942.047L* Mk FE KL B M 18
HEFBRARTERBRENFEFE
83,034,090.657T * 17 £ FMN Y & 18 A% h1
7 92531,081,103.008% » AHFERE R
TBER AR FF BN ERTR K E=82,
218,942.04/531,081,103.00=0.15487t
Sl MBIECEFEERZREBNARY
AR R A FFE R E A TR %=83,03
4,090.65/531,081,103.00=0.15637C, &
A% o

Diluted earnings per share=P1/(S0+S1+SixMi+MO0-
SjxMj+MO0-Sk+increase in the weighted average number
of ordinary shares upon exercise of warrants, options
and convertible bonds)

Including: P1 refers to the net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company or net profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company after non-recurring
gains and losses and is adjusted according to the PRC GAAP
and relevant requirements taking into account of the impact
of potential dilutive ordinary shares.

In calculating the diluted earnings per share, the Company
shall take into consideration of the impact of all potential
dilutive ordinary shares on the net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company or net profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company after non-recurring
gains and losses and the weighted average number of shares
and included in the diluted earnings per share according to
the degree of dilution (from high to low) until the diluted
earnings per share reaches its smallest value.

On 2nd July 2010, the Company received the approval from
the relevant PRC government authorities on the proposal for
bonus issue by capitalization of capital reserve. Upon the
implementation of the proposal, the ordinary share capital of
the Company would be increased from 424,864,883 shares
to 531,081,103 shares. Accordingly, the calculation of the
earnings per share for the six months ended 30th June 2010
and 30th June 2009 is based on the 531,081,103 ordinary
shares after adjustment of the proposal for bonus issue by
capitalization of capital reserve.

Net profit attributable to the ordinary shareholders for the
period was RMB82,218,942.04; whereas net profit attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company after non-recurring
gains and losses was RMB83,034,090.65; and weighted average
number of outstanding ordinary shares was 531,081,103.00
shares. Basic earnings per share based on the net profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders for the period = =82,2
18,942.04/531,081,103.00=RMB0.1548 per share; whereas
basic earnings per share based on the net profit attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company after non-recurring
gains and losses = 83,034,090.65/531,081,103.00=RMB0.1563
per share.
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34 - HEREREEHTE .

34. Notes to the items of the cash flow statement

(1) YT sy H 1 EAAE &F B) A BT R & (1) Other cash received relating to operating activities
By or BE:AREK
Unit: RMB
ot}
== Items Amount
e IE E BS R&D project fund 8,160,000.00
AT B Government grant 143,912.84
W E Interest received from deposits 995,266.01
HAt, Others 2,438.02
CEl Total 9,301,616.87
(2) SEATBYE ML & B A AT IE & (2) Other cash paid relating to operating activities
By or KE:ARE
Unit: RMB
k-
HHE Items Amount
N Office expense 5,306,404.75
EIRE Business traveling expense 8,989,099.06
HEE Leasing expense 514,821.08
B8 Entertainment expense 2,760,625.19
BB Transportation expense 133,759.55
EEEEHE Advertising and exhibition fee 1,370,423.40
ERTTE= Legal expense 97,004.00
BB Audit fee 2,419,436.00
mEER R&D expense 1,153,015.24
RETELE Design fee 157,000.00
IHERE Listing management fee 436,179.40
(NESEIVNG Integrated service fee for 2009 paid to
2009 F the group companies
EERBE 243,927.02
HIRERES Tender deposit paid 2,636,300.00
NHBHRE Consultation fee paid 4,522,000.00
ZH=BRBEE Service fee on installation and configuration
with refund, replacement and repairs 1,820,910.04
HAt, Others 6,427,181.65
&t Total 38,988,086.38
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35-R&E

RERBEER :

HRER

35. Supplementary information of the cash flow

statement

Supplemental information

T

rHEHE

For the six
months ended
30th June 2010

M ARK
Unit: RMB
THEHE

For the six
months ended
30th June 2009

1.

RENBAGACEIDRLRE -

AR
m: EEREERR
EEBERE  MREEMR
AEMAMEENE
B EESH
REFEEREH
B E
REETEE BV EEN
EfRHEEMBX
(Yeas AT — 5% HE51)
[BlE B ERAERX
(Wegs AT — 154551
RRBEEHRR
(Wegs AT — 154551
MBER (WaE (-] FES)
RERK (WaE (-] FED)
EXHEHEERD
(B0 [ SEE%))
ERAEHAEEN
CRAI [—] SEE5))
FERRD (B -] SRE5)
REERYCRR MR D
(B0 [ SEE5))
REERMNERAEM
CRAI [—] SEE5))
Hith
RETHELNREREFE
P EEL ST
EARENSBEED :
EHERER
—FRIPNTEAR A RS
BEMABTEE
ReRBeSENFLBENR
REMHRRE
B BE R HRE

m:ReFENNAREE
B ReSENOHNSE

RERASEBNFEMNE

Reconciliation of net profit to cash
flows from operating activities:
Net profit
Add: Provision for impairment of assets
Depreciation of fixed assets, oil assets
and productive biological assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of long-term deferred expenses
Amortization of deferred gain
Loss on disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other
long-term assets ("-" for gain)
Loss on retirement of fixed assets
("-" for gain)
Loss on fair value change ("-" for gain)

Finance expenses (“-" for gain)
Investment loss (“-" for gain)
Decrease in deferred income tax assets
("-" for increase)
Increase in deferred income tax liabilities
("-" for decrease)
Decrease in inventories (“-" for increase)
Decrease in operating receivable
("-" for increase)
Increase in operating payable
("-" for decrease)
Others
Net cash flows from operating activities
Major non-cash investment and
financing activities:
Capitalization of debts
Convertible bonds due within one year
Fixed assets under finance lease
Net change in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash balance at the end of the period
Less: cash balance at the beginning of
the period
Add: cash equivalents at the end of
the period
Less: cash equivalents at the beginning of
the period
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

80,328,643.63
13,950,993.84

17,973,625.41
1,349,296.64
113,920.20
102,650.10
(945,711.48)

27,284.79

1,756,431.67
(1,886,233.07)

(877,907.64)

(36,309,584.27)
(84,124,927.66)
106,515,316.77

97,973,798.93

361,369,140.78

280,102,559.13

81,266,581.65

116,382,826.07
14,519,594.19

17,218,373.18
1,500,275.33

81,641.81
102,650.10

171,617.92

2,571,765.58
(6,047,863.58)

(4,084,994.58)

52,372,016.54
(55,711,916.99)
(70,864,277.76)

68,211,707.40

369,141,935.35

327,941,401.88

41,200,533.47
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(RN) BRAMBHRRERBEZE

1 EWEER:

(VI) Notes to major items in the financial statement of
the parent company

1. Accounts receivable:

By T B ARE

Unit: RMB

BAH
Closing balance Opening balance
REAE BESE
Book balance Book balance
8 EA(%) BRER &8 EA(%) BRER
Bad debt Bad debt
K& Age Amount  Proportion(%) provision Amount  Proportion(%) provision
—FLA Within one year 92,724,865.82 3571 4,636,243.29 114,077,418.48 50.16  5,703,870.93
—ECF 1-2 years 65,701,458.90 2531 19,710,437.67  56,243,055.13 2473 26,103,229.05
.y 2-3 years 51,316,456.89 19.77 30,789,874.13  25,588,781.11 11.25  25,588,781.11
ZENE Over 3 years 49,883,489.61 19.21  47,389,315.13  31,533,873.78 13.86  31,533,873.78
At Total 259,626,271.22 100.00 102,525,870.22 227,443,128.50 100.00  88,929,754.87
2 HMEWR 2. Other receivables:
E ARKE
Unit: RMB
LN |
Closing balance Opening balance
REE BESE
Book balance Book balance

8 HA(%) BRER E EAI(%) BRER
Bad debt Bad debt
1 Age Amount  Proportion(%) provision Amount  Proportion(%) provision
—FLA Within one year 9,105,346.47 34.05 365,485.10  14,001,051.86 4725 576,836.33
—EC2F 1-2 years 2,703,245.12 10.11 759,117.13  1,100,728.06 3 371,238.53
ZE-F 2-3 years 312,239.11 117 281,239.11 35,000.00 0.12 35,000.00
ZENE Over 3 years 14,616,649.71 54.67 14,616,649.71  14,496,130.83 4892 14,496,130.83
ait Total 26,737,480.41 100.00  16,022,491.05  29,632,910.75 100.00  15,479,205.69
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3 RERERE : 3. Long-term equity investment:

Bz or KE:ARK
Unit: RMB
EHRE
A EHREEL  EGRAE
TRRERA  BORE  EE9  BRRE AHEEERE  AEEE BREA(D  BA()
Of which: Percentage of Percentage of
impairment shareholding voting
Initial ~ Opening Closing  provision for  Impairment inthe  rights in the
BREER Name of investee investment cost halance Change balance  theperiod provision investee (%) investee (%)

RRERRRIERBERAT X' Ser Trbo Machinry
(o, Ltd. 21,693,266.85 21,693,265.85 21,693,265.85 45.00 45,00
EEBRESERALLT Kunji Transportation Co, Ltd. 500,000.00 500,000.00 500,000.00 100.00 100.00
28R KE%E%?EE Winko Machines Co,, Ltd. 19,341,545.85 19,341,545.85 (19,341,545.85) 9%.74 9%.74

BRBRRERRA Kunming Kunji General Machine

(o, ltd. 3,000,000.00  3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 100.00 100.00

REERLEREERAA Fujan Kunj Conventional
Maching Tool Co,, Ltd. 2,500,000.00  2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 50.00 50.00

BRBERRER D 105 Kunming Machine ool
Manufacturing Co,, Ltd. 24,739,533.99 41,979,409.05 (3,157,552.15) 38,821,856.90 50.00 50.00

BRRRREHETRATARA X' Ruite Laser Prototyping
Manufacturing & Engineering
Research Co, Lid. 14,000,000.00 14,040478.04  (245,406.18) 13,795,071.86 2334 23.34
4 EEWA: 4. Operating income:

B o KE:ARK
Unit: RMB
RHIRAEEE FHiREsE
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
HE Items 30th June 2010 30th June 2009
FEEBRA Operating income 644,961,256.76 523,007,779.52
H A WA Other operating income 2,544,755.32 20,314,937.99
CEn Total 647,506,012.08 543,322,717.51
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5. BREWES :
(1) BEWzBHAH

Investment income:

(1) Breakdown of investment income

Efs

AEAR AR
For the six
months ended
30th June 2010

‘T B AR

Unit: RMB
AR

For the six
months ended
30th June 2009

AR ER Long-term equity investment
RH IR & W income under equity method 1,886,233.07 6,047,863.99
i Total 1,886,233.07 6,047,863.99

2) BERIGZENRARERE

(2) Long-term equity investment income under equity

W% method
By or BE:AREK
Unit: RMB
RER A LHIR A REL FHEREENRER
For the six For the six
Name of months ended months ended
BIREEN investee 30th June 2010 30th June 2009 Reason for the change
BHAE TOS Kunming 2,131,639.25 6,179,239.07 EFE A Decrease in profit
AL Xi'an Ruite (245,406.18) (131,375.08) B2 AN Increase in loss
&5t Total 1,886,233.07 6,047,863.99
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6 REREBERFERER :

6. Supplemental
statement:

Supplemental information

information of

cash flow

BT M ARK

rHELE

For the six
months ended
30th June 2010

Unit: RMB
LHeE

For the six
months ended
30th June 2009

HRER

1. BENRAGALE
EBRERE
A

m: BEREER
BEEENE  HREENE
HEMEMEENE
BV EEHH
REOFHEREH
BT 2 5
REETEE  ENEEMN
A RMEENRR
(Yegabh [ -1 5iE%))
[Bl7E & EHE R X

(e bh T— 1 SRIER)
RABEEDEX

(e bh T— 1 SRIE5)
MBER (WaE -] &)
REBX (BEN -] 5RE5)
BELFEHREERD

(BI0A [ SRIR5)
ELFEHREEEN

CRAI [ SRR5)
FErE L GBI (-] $E5)
REERYCER MR D

(BI0A [ SRIR5)
REERMNER AN

CRAI [ SRR5)
At
RETHELNRERERR
FHRAEWXH
EARENEBEEE
EHERER
—FRIMOTEARAESH
BEBAETEE
RERRESENFLBHER
RENHRRE
B RE R HRE

n: ReSENNRAREE
B R FENOBNRE

ReLReFENFENE

Reconciliation of net profit to cash
flows from operating activities:
Net profit
Add: Provision for impairment of assets
Depreciation of fixed assets, oil assets and
productive biological assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of long-term deferred expenses
Amortization of deferred gain
Loss on disposal of fixed assets, intangible
assets and other long-term assets
(“-" for gain)
Loss on retirement of fixed assets
("-" for gain)
Loss on fair value change
(“-" for gain)
Finance expenses (“-" for gain)
Investment loss (“-" for gain)
Decrease in deferred income tax assets
("-" for increase)
Increase in deferred income tax liabilities
("-" for decrease)
Decrease in inventories (“-" for increase)
Decrease in operating receivable
("-" for increase)
Increase in operating payable
("-" for decrease)
Others
Net cash flows from operating activities
Major non-cash investment and
financing activities:
Capitalization of debts
Convertible bonds due within one year
Fixed assets under finance lease
Net change in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash balance at the end of the period
Less: cash balance at the beginning
of the period
Add: cash equivalents at the end of the period
Less: cash equivalents at the beginning
of the period
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

84,474,945.30
14,139,400.71

14,421,430.77
1,204,527.86
91,817.70
102,650.10

(946,641.48)

1,192,095.00
(1,886,233.07)

(910,890.36)
(55,050,559.88)

(22,697,399.68)
34,967,706.93

69,102,849.90

291,190,179.97

237,844,655.24

53,345,524.73

115,582,353.69
15,650,040.53

13,735,348.31
1,346,267.20

56,250.02
102,650.10

98,480.98

1,972,708.58
(6,047,863.99)

(3,421,416.79)

33,350,391.00
(26,234,333.15)
(83,700,523.24)

62,490,353.24

315,510,979.28

279,084,078.67

36,426,900.61
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(t) BB R EAE X 3

(VI)RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTIONS

1+ AEENFAFER 1. Parent company
By T BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
F-RREH F-AREH
kLN KRN AL
#-rREgE iy 4 i EARR FHKE if&s BRILA(%) RARILA) RABHA A8RERE
Percentage of Percentage of
shareholding voting rights ~ Ultimate
held by the largest ~ held by the largest ~ controlling
Name of the Place of Legal Business Registered shareholder in shareholder  shareholder of Organization
[argest shareholder  Type registration  representative  nature capital the Company (%) in the Company (%)  the Company code
TRRR(EE) BREELA IR Bk BREEEE  1,556480,000 25.09 B0 IETEFEEEE 243381258
BRELAT ERZRS
Shenyang Machine ool Limited liability ~ Shenyang city ~ Guan Xiyou ~ Production and Shenyang State-owned
(Group) Co., Ltd. sales of machine Assets Supenvision
tools and Administration
Commission
2 AEENFATER 2. Subsidiaries of the Company
Bl - B BE: ARK
Unit: RMB10,000
R RRE
FAFRR i 4bil i EARK FHME AfEx (%) Hh%) LERERE
Place of Legal Business Registered Percentage of Voting  Organization
Name of subsidiary Type registration  representative  nature capital shareholder (%)  percentage (%) code
ERERBRAE EREEAR  AR® T HigE 5,000 45.00 4500 220631824
ECELVN
Xi'an Ser Turbo Machinery ~ Limited liability ~ Xi'an city Wang Shangjin ~ Machinery
Co., Ltd. manufacturing
BRERERIR BREEAR  AR® REE HigE 500 50.00 5000 67190471-3
ERAT
Fujian Kunji Conventional ~ Limited liability ~ Nan'an city Zhou Guoxing ~ Machinery
Machine Tool Co., Ltd. manufacturing
EHRREARE BREEAR  BH® mHE HigE 300 100.00 10000 665546112
ERAT
Kunming Kunji General Limited liability ~ Kunming city ~ Gao Minghui Machinery
Machine Co., Ltd. manufacturing
ERRARH BREfRA  BAW Bz HigE 2,003 9.74 9674 74525057-3
BEMEERAT
Winko Machines Co., Ltd. ~ Limited liability ~ Kunming city  Qin Jianzhong ~ Machinery
manufacturing
RORBRRIE BREEAR  RUW T HigE 1,000 100.00 10000 75801180-3
ECELVN
Changsha Ser Turbo Limited liability ~ Changsha city ~ Wang Shangjin ~ Machinery
Equipment Co., Ltd. manufacturing
mMEBRE BREARA MW mE HigE 120 51.00 5100 75954845-0
FRIRARLA
Hangzhou Ser Gas Limited liability ~ Hanzhou city  Tian Guoguang ~ Machinery
Engineering Co., Ltd. manufacturing
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AEOENESENEEECENER 3. Joint ventures and associated companies of the
- T Bl T M ARE
Unit: RMB
kbRE
373 fREEL
kR FnlE a8
BREEMLAR tRE Eidid EARR Fhie HfEx B (%) B (%) BRRE
Percentage of
voting rights
Place of Legal Percentage of of the Company ~ Organization
Name of investee Type registration  representative  Business nature Registered capital ~ shareholding (%) in the investee (%) code
- 0%
RHEHBRERAT EREFRR  EBER  holaRd  BREREERE S00EET ) 50 77266099-X
1. Joint venture
Kunming Machine Tool Limited iability ~ Kunming, Production and sales of 5 million Euros
Manufacturing Co,, Ltd. Yunnan machine tool products
o BELE
ARERRESE RREEAT  ERH ERE RERPBEERE 60,000,000 By B3 791667804
TERALA
2. Associated company
Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping ~ Limited liability ~ Xi'ancity ~ Lu Tianjian Production and sales of

Manufacturing & Engineering
Research Co., Ltd

[aser prototyping machine

Bfy T M ARE

Unit: RMB
HREELHE BAEBEEE HRTEELE AHEXQALE REEAE
Total assets  Total liabilities  Total net assets  Total operating Net
at the end of at the end of at the end of  income during profits during
BREENER Name of investee the period the period the period the period the period
- REL¥ 1. Joint venture
EIREAHR T0S Kunming Machine Tool 139,266,648.34 61,644,980.61 77,621,667.73 35,995,995.68 4,263,278.50
BRATA Manufacturing Co,, Ltd.
BEbz 2. Associated company
BRI R R 5 Xian Ruite Laser Prototyping ~~ 112,503,976.58  47,889,368.66  64,614,604.92  10,016,787.39 (899,717.45)
IRHRAA Manufacturing & Engineering

Research Co,, Ltd.
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BB 1ER
(1) #HEE =

1)

2)

A A20104F £ ¥ F - 20094
EUAMISER R B 5 EPE
FTHRRKERAREEES
¥ 5 B A&2,511,503.617C
8,980,033.957T :

AL ELGHERETLOBR
BEELR(EHE : H#ELAOR
A REEZEREEELOAR
BEELR(HHE: E#HELOR
AFEFTOBKRERRER
FoARABILTARELOR
TR EMEDL O RQ T DK
EmRER  Ai#eEDO
ANERE#ELOQARRKIER
RAMOERMEAOHEE K
i B FH2008F41HE
20104128318 BERIKE
Ke¥E RERAHE 2 H (20084
6HI2E)EBEM - FELERS
Al A& L O R A 4000
T~ 50008 7T &X6000& 7L
EHETR O RF 10008 T
15008 JT M2000& T °» 2 &
RHRARNAESHHREEHE
BENER  EARFEE
A A R A B E INE S s
FMMEINTIS - BIEMNAE L
EETANMEARRESEEZ
ZERS THER: REHZ
EEREFHERRERBER
—REBARPAITIYL - REE
MEBESTRAFRAERmE
EARBETHDOQGE
mHERERARFSLTEE
REQBNARANBILE =
FERBIT

4,

Connected Transactions

(1)

Sales of Goods

1

The Company sold goods at market value amount of
RMB2,511,503.61 and RMB8,980,033.95 to related
party TOS Kunming Machine Tool Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. for the six months ended 30th June 2010
and the year of 2009 respectively.

The Company entered into distribution agreements
in respect of certain machine tool products with
Shenyang Machine Tool Import & Export Co., Ltd.
(“Shenji EXIM") and Yunnan Yunji Group Import
& Export Co., Ltd. (“Yunji EXIM") respectively.
Pursuant to the agreements, the Company agreed
to grant the distribution rights of certain machine
tool products to Shenji EXIM and Yunji EXIM,
authorizing Shenji EXIM and Yunji EXIM to distribute
and export certain products of the Company from
1st April 2008 to 31st December 2010, effective
from the date of the passing of the resolution by the
independent shareholders at the EGM held on 12th
June 2008. The annual caps were RMB40,000,000,
RMB50,000,000, and RMB60,000,000 for Shenji EXIM
respectively and RMB10,000,000, RMB15,000,000,
and RMB20,000,000 for Yunji EXIM respectively.
Such transactions were conducted on a regular
and continuing basis in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Company in an effort to
expand overseas market leveraging on the existing
overseas distribution network of the export and
import companies. The Directors of the Company
(including four independent non-executive directors)
reviewed such transactions and considered that the
distribution agreements were entered into on normal
commercial terms and conditions in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company, negotiated
on an arm’s length basis and at prices and terms
no less favorable than those charged and offered
to other distributors of the Company (independent
third parties of the Company).

Il 20 cessEssEm6ERAA 200 FHEE




AF2010F £+ F » 2009F &
VAT 35 {8 #% [0 B8 Bt 5 L B 1 IR
HEHOERETAREERY
% % 7l 51,076,923.087C *
12,994,107.697T °

A AEI2010%F E¥F ~ 2009F
TS ER AT EmE R
EEEXOBREEARIHEE
EWMEED B A1,837.617T
252,136.757C ©

A F2010%F £ #F F - 20094
EUAMISERREEHFEBCY
EEARARKEMIE RE
HReBEH AR A6,811.597T
176,897.027T °

(2) RHERZERIEH

1)

19934118158 © K &) &
EHREBE AR L —BEEBET
EABTRREE TRENH
FRBELRERE  AAEMH
BHEBEREMHRK  EERE
E#EB AR AARAIRED
XE1E -BIERERY - HAB
REBRERABNEERS -
REEREFSFHT Ta
SR IR A RIS B P Bt 3 2 AR
BEMNEEFE  BEEE
MEREFEE AR kE#SE
BEARBAIZEHHEFTERS
B 2008 F RNRIAREERSE
TEREZEREEAEREER
A EHEBEEELERRE
FRE)EHETBEMETH
Bl P RARAEEEER
EHETIXEREEREBAR
EFRQRERKE - BERY

The Company sold goods at market value amount
of RMB1,076,923.08 and RMB12,994,107.69 to
related party Shenyang Machine Tool Import &
Export Co., Ltd. for the six months ended 30th June
2010 and the year of 2009 respectively.

The Company sold goods at market value amount of
RMB1,837.61 and RMB252,136.75 to related party
Yunnan Yunji Group Import & Export Co., Ltd. for
the six months ended 30th June 2010 and the year
of 2009 respectively.

The Company received a processing fee and spare
parts amount from the related party Yunnan CY
Group Co., Ltd. of RMB6,811.59 and RMB176,897.02
for the six months ended 30th June 2010 and the
year of 2009 at the prevailing market price.

(2) Provision and Receipt of Services

1

On 15th November 1993, the Company entered into
an agreement with Kunji Group Company relating to
the provision of certain services to each other after
the reorganization. Pursuant to this agreement, the
Company agreed to provide certain public utility
services available to the Company such as water and
electricity to Kunji Group Company, while Kunji Group
agreed to provide certain services to the Company
including property management, employee’s medical
services, education and administration of retired
staff. Service fee is reviewed by both parties on an
annual basis and is determined by reference first
to the standards set by the relevant government
department for that particular service. If there are
no applicable state standards, the Company and
Kunji Group Company will determine the service
fee at arm’s length negotiation between the parties.
At the 2008 general meeting of the Company, the
subsidiaries under Yunnan Industrial Investment
Holding Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Yunnan
State-owned Assets Operation Company Limited)
underwent a restructuring. The above administrative
fee for retired staff was directly charged by Yunnan
Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.,
whereas the medical services were undertaken by
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its subsidiary Kunji Group Company and the property
management was undertaken by its subsidiary
Yunnan State-owned Assets Property Management
Co., Ltd. The above transactions of the Company
for the six months ended 30th June 2010 and the

BA MR SEMAT year of 2009 are as follows:
2010F L¥F 20095 &
For the six months
REER Transaction ended 30th June 2010 2009
MEMERENEER Property management fee
BRARENNEEES paid to Yunnan State-owned

MERERERER
INEIRERBE

MEFTEREAEREE
BERBEEARAITE
RAANEERE

AEHEENEERAR
RAXNEIERES

| /26,224,999.807T
5,735.927T ;

Ul
—
w oo

,0

2) AR20104F E¥4 - 2009F F
MEFCYEESIIEREHEE
BEMEE DR A1,678,784.37
7T~ 1,152,014.197C ©

3) RAAHREREKEREE
EY(ME) &% A377,979.52

JC ©

Assets Property Management

Co., Ltd. 145,927.02 613,510.26
Staff medical service fee

paid to Kunji Group

Company 98,000 99,000.00
Administrative fee for retired

staff paid to Yunnan Industrial

Investment Holding Group

Co., Ltd. - 178,166.67
Staff quarters rentals paid to

Yunnan State-owned Assets

Property Management

Co., Ltd. 100,000.00 18,00.00

Total 343,927.02 908,676.93

(3) Purchase of Goods

1) The Company purchased goods of RMB26,224,999.80
and RMB51,035,735.92 from related party TOS
Kunming Machine Tool Manufacturing Co., Ltd for
the six months ended 30th June 2010 and the year
of 2009 respectively.

2)  The Company purchased goods of RMB1,678,784.37
and RMB1,152,014.19 from Yunnan CY (Group)
Company Jinhui Spraying Factory for the six months
ended 30th June 2010 and the year 2009.

3) The Company purchased goods (materials) of
RMB377,979.52 from Kunming Kunji Group for
the period.
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i)

20104 EF5HEH T F A
W4 A2,122,543.007C °

(4)

Leases

1)

The 16th meeting of the 4th session of the Board
held on 18th April 2004 approved that “The Premise
Rental Agreement” and “The Land Use Rental
Agreement” signed in 2001 between the Company
and Kunming Kunji Group Company (“Kunji Group”)
and would be continued. According to the resolution
passed at 26th meeting of 4th session of the Board,
on 17th August 2005, the Company and Kunji
Group Company entered into the agreements “The
Rent Amendment Agreement of the Premises” and
“The Rent Amendment Agreement of the Land Use
Right”, which stated that Kunming Kunji Group
Company Limited was authorized by the People’s
Government of Yunnan Province to succeed the
rights and obligations of the “The Premise Renta
Agreement” and “The Land Use Rental Agreement”
signed between the People’s Government of Yunnan
Province and the Company on 12th November 2001.
The assets mentioned in the above agreements
involved the leaseback of part of the premises and
land use right from the People’s Government of
Yunnan Province after the capital restructuring in
2001. At the 44th meeting of the 5th session of
the Board held on 27th August 2008, the chairman
of the operations was authorized to negotiate
with Yunnan State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission (Kunji Group Company)
in respect of the above premises and land rentals.
On 12th August 2009, the Company entered into an
agreement supplemental to the “The Premise Rental
Agreement” and “The Land Use Rental Agreement”
with Kunming Kunji Group to adjust the annual rent
of the above premises and land rentals.

For the six months ended 30th June 2010, the
rentals for the land use rights amounted to
RMB2,122,543.00.
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(5) Accounts receivable and payable from/to related

parties

A Bk B2 BEHmKEA AR A REME

Closing Opening
Related parties Items balance balance Nature
BHABHTHARARAF JEfTARE 22,943,626.40  14,858,154.60 '
TOS Kunming Machine Tool Accounts payable Payment for
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. goods
FEUBRZR  2,815,714.20  2,042,770.94 'K
Accounts receivable Payment for
goods
H R 220,275.92 194,506.14 BN
Other receivables Current account
EHCYERERAAKEERE ST D JE Y BR 7R - 7,116.00 'K
Yunnan CY (Group) Company Products  Accounts receivable Payment for
Trading Centre goods

FRUERR 122,000.00 -

Receipts in advance
EHCYEERRSBERRRK TR R 507,062.26 327,061.16 '
Yunnan CY (Group) Company Jinhui Accounts payable Payment for
Spraying Factory goods
EHEE HMEM  2,122,543.00 - tTMkFEEMS
Kunji Group Other payables Land and
property rentals
R B FAUIR R - - B%
Czech Tos Vansdorf Co.,Ltd. Receipts in advance Payment for
goods
hERREEODBRETAR R 4,000.00  1,260,000.00 '
Shenyang Machine Tool Import & Receipts in advance Payment for
Export Co., Ltd. goods
e BR 7R 4,000.00 - '
Accounts receivable Payment for
goods
(N BB : (VII)SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
i Nil
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(1X) CONTINGENCIES

1.

Contingencies involved in the pending litigations
and their financial impacts

The Company signed a sales contract with Yancheng Xinde Oil
Machine Company (“Xinde Machine”) in June 2002 for sales
of four machine tools with a contract amount of RMB11.9
million. Related four machine tools have been delivered to
Xinde Machine before October 2003. In June 2009, Xinde
Machine filed a lawsuit against the Company alleging that the
goods delivered by the Company were unqualified and sought
for return of goods, refund of advances paid of RMB10.7
million and payment of penalty and compensation of RMBO0.3
million and RMB3.7 million respectively. In consultation with
legal counsels, the Company has denied the claim and filed
a counter claim against Xinde Machine alleging that it was
unreasonable for Xinde Machine to claim for return of goods
after use of the Company’s products for more than 6 years
and requesting Xinde Machine to repay the unpaid amount of
RMB1.3 million for the goods. In February 2010, the Company
and Xinde Machine agreed to mediate the disputes through
the court.

Up to the date of the interim financial statements, the above
case is still under the mediation stage. Management considered
that the outcome of the above mediation would not have any
material impact on the financial statements of the Group.
Therefore no provision has been made in respect of such
litigation in the financial statements.

Contingencies involved in the provision of
guarantee to other business units and their financial
impacts

As at the balance sheet date, Xi'an Ser, a subsidiary of the
Company, provided guarantee for its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Changsha Ser in respect of a bank loan with a guarantee period
until 31st December 2010. As at 30th June 2010, the maximum
liabilities of Xi'an Ser were loans withdrawn by Changsha
Ser amounting to RMB20 million (31st December 2009:
RMB20 million).

The loan is also secured by mortgages over Changsha Ser’s
land use right and buildings). The mortgage and guarantee
are at the same rank for the repayment of bank loan.
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2009F EFEAR AR HIRBRAEE
424,864,883 AEE  HI0RIKZEAR
BOSTIR A (ER)  IRERSAFIE
S AR#E21,243,244.157T - HAARRAR R
FRREARRE REES  GBIBEIIEE
BREEMNHEEBRS10RIEEAREQ0.45
THRE - HREMIEFERDENARBR -
RARARRMRBAEH - AR AL
B A MW -

2010722 HMAR A EZE B (20104
7R158) B EM A R B AR 3 2 R
LA c RAZAFRBHFERLLEEAR
EERAILEBD RAIBENEREGEENR
BABRKREMIRSLAF  EEEREREK
HRBARIEMNIRSLF

(X)

(x1)
1.

COMMITMENTS
Nil
EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

Proposal on profit distribution of the Company
for the year of 2009

As proposed by the sixth session of the board of directors at
its 15th meeting, the proposal on profit distribution of the
Company for the year of 2009 was approved at the 2009 annual
general meeting of the Company held on 23rd June 2010. In
accordance with the PRC GAAP, in 2009, the Company recorded
a net profit of RMB215,848,000 and, after deducting the
amount of RMB21,652,000 transferred to the surplus reserves,
a distributable profit and an accumulated distributable profit
of the Company for the year amounted to RMB194,196,000
and RMB568,379,000 respectively. In particular, the parent
company recorded a net profit of RMB216,519,000 and,
after deducting the amount of RMB21,652,000 transferred
to surplus reserves, a distributable profit and an accumulated
distributable profit of the parent company for the year amounted
to RMB194,867,000 and RMB506,167,000 respectively. In
accordance with the Hong Kong Accounting Standards, the
Company recorded a net profit of RMB215,709,000, and after
deducting the amount of RMB21,652,000 transferred to the
surplus reserves, a distributable profit and an accumulated
distributable profit recorded of the Company in 2009 amounted
to RMB194,058,000 and RMB566,593,000 respectively.

Proposal on the proposed distribution of profit for the year
of 2009: a cash bonus dividend of RMBO0.5 (tax inclusive)
is proposed for every 10 shares held by Shareholders of
the Company based on the existing total share capital of
424,864,883 shares, totaling RMB21,243,244.15 in cash.
The actual cash dividend after tax to be distributed to the
individual shareholders, investment fund and qualified overseas
institutional investors for A Shares would be RMB0.45 for
every 10 shares held. For other holders of A Shares who are
non-resident enterprises, no withholding tax is deducted by
the Company and such tax be paid by the shareholders of the
relevant jurisdictions.

On 22nd July 2010, the Company paid cash bonus dividend
to holders of A Shares whose names appeared on the register
of members of the Company on the record date (i.e. 15th July
2010). The Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corp. Ltd. was entrusted by the Company to
pay the cash dividend on its behalf to the holders of the A
Shares without selling restrictions. With respect to the A Shares
subject to selling restrictions, the cash dividend was directly
paid to the holders of such shares.

Il ¢ iusmesarnoaRAA 200 FEES
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SEERANAIE)  BERRRRKRAREE
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NIETEIE -
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AB2010F7 8198 » ¥EHKFH A E B I
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On 28th July 2010, the Company paid final cash dividends to
the holders of H Shares whose names appeared on the register
of holders of H Shares of the Company on the record date (i.e.
24th May 2010). The final dividends payable to the holders
of H Shares were denominated and declared in Renminbi
and were paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate was
HK$100 to RMB87.655, which was based on the average value
of the benchmark exchange rates for Hong Kong dollar to
Renminbi as announced by the People’s Bank of China for one
calendar week prior to the date of approval for the payment
of such dividends (i.e. 23rd June 2010). The final dividend
per H Share was HK$0.057042 (including tax). ICBC (Asia)
Trustee Company Limited was appointed by the Company as
the receiving agent (the “Receiving Agent”) in Hong Kong to
receive the dividends on behalf of the holders of H Shares. The
Company would pay the final dividends declared in respect of
H Shares of the Company to the Receiving Agent, who would
hold such dividends in trust on behalf of the relevant holders
of H Shares until the payment is received.

Resolution on the capitalization of capital reserve
to increase share capital

As at 31st December 2009, the share premium under capital
reserve of the Company amounted to RMB125,422,997.12
under the PRC GAAP and RMB113,886,855 under the Hong
Kong Accounting Standards. According to the Hong Kong
Accounting Standards, based on the share premium under
capital reserve of RMB113,886,855, the Board proposed to
capitalize the capital reserve to share capital on the basis of
2.5 New Shares for every 10 shares held based on the existing
total issued share capital of 424,864,883 Shares (comprising
312,149,033 A Shares and 112,715,850 H Shares). After
the implementation of the proposal, the total share capital
of the Company would be 531,081,103 Shares (comprising
390,186,291 A Shares and 140,894,812 H Shares).

On 2nd July 2010, the Company received the Letter of Approval
from the Department of Commerce of Yunnan Province
Concerning its Consent on the Proposal for Bonus Issue by
Capitalization of Capital Reserve of Shenji Group Kunming
Machine Tool Company Limited (Yun Nan Sheng Shang Wu Ting
Shang Zi [2010] No. 130), under which the total share capital of
the Company was approved to be increased from 424,864,883
shares to 531,081,103 shares and the registered capital would
be increased from RMB424,864,883 to RMB531,081,103. The
increased capital would be financed by the capitalization of
the capital reserve.

The new A Shares without selling restrictions have been listed
for trading on 19th July 2010 and the trading of new H Shares
commenced on 18th August 2010.
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(XII)SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

1. Non-recurring gains and losses for the period

By o HE: ARK

Unit: RMB

ok}

FREMBRER Items of non-recurring gains and losses Amount

R EEREER Gain or loss on disposal of non-current assets (259,940.42)
U= <) Other non-operating income and expenses

HAth & EIMRA R X other than above (699,057.95)

st & Effect of income tax 143,849.76

CE Total (815,148.61)

2 RANEFEATEFBBEEER 2. DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE PRC GAAP AND HONG

KONG ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(1) [AIBIZ AR E 9N & &1 2E Bl B ¥ i B (1) Difference in net profits and net assets under the Hong

2 ot A K FE 19 BT 75 58 & A E

BFFEEZEZER

EERELRNFRE

Net profits attributable
to the parent company

Kong Accounting Standards and the PRC GAAP

By T BE ARK

Unit: RMB’000
FRRBARNRRES
Shareholders’ equity
attributable to
the parent company

biN: LY BREY BOY
For the six For the six
months ended  months ended Closing Opening
5H Items 30th June 2010 30th June 2009 balance balance
PEEHERTHEE Under the PRC GAAP 82,219 116,107 1,277,990 1,217,014
REBETEANRE Adjustment under
the Hong Kong
Accounting Standards:
REGELERNRE R Gain on investment in
jointly controlled entities - - (8,869) (8,869)
HE#H Amortization of goodwill - - (1,428) (1,428)
Hoth Others - - 139 139
EAGHRATHEE Under the Hong Kong
Accounting Standards 82,219 116,107 1,267,832 1,206,856

3° REEWBERESRKESE

3. Return on net assets and earnings per share

SR
Earnings per share
MEFHREEREE(%) EXERhE HESRKE
Return on Basic Diluted
Profit during the weighted average earnings earnings
&R Reporting Period net assets (%) per share per share
HER DAL RRRRAFHE Net profits attributable to the
ordinary shareholders of
the Company 6.54 0.1548 0.1548
MERFELF B R Net profits attributable to the
BBAAALBRRR T shareholders of the Company
excluding non-recurring gains
and losses 6.66 0.1563 0.1563
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B FEEsER B. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH HONG KONG ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

EHEZEERER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

BE_Z-—ZTFEXA=THIENEAR—KRLHEZ  For the six months ended 30 June 2010 - Unaudited

(AAR®EZIR) (Expressed in Renminbi)

BEAA=1+HILAEA
Six months ended 30 June

—E-ZF ZTENF
2010 2009
REER REERZ
Unaudited Unaudited
ik AR¥TFT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
AN Turnover 3 749,851 660,504
1A Cost of sales (526,345) (424,853)
EF Gross profit 223,506 235,651
HAbug A Other revenue 4 3,514 19,957
Hin)F & A Other net expense 4 (889) (62)
HEER Distribution costs (56,290) (33,147)
EEEMA Administrative expenses (76,480) (97,025)
HibgsE &M Other operating expenses - (222)
LR Profit from operations 93,361 125,152
5 E A Finance costs 5(a) (2,157) (2,542)
JE(EHS & A A& Share of losses of an associate (245) (131)
&5 & & R Rl FE Share of profits of a jointly
controlled entity 2,132 6,179
Bt Al R E Profit before taxation 5 93,091 128,658
PS5 Income tax 6 (12,762) (12,274)
AERHEG S W Profit and total comprehensive
income for the period 80,329 116,384
A ER Attributable to:
—ARRARE - Equity shareholders of the Company 82,219 116,107
— AR AR IR — Non-controlling interests (1,890) 277
80,329 116,384
BREF : Earnings per share
— BRARZF A — Basic and diluted earnings per share
FRwERR 7 0.155 0.219

NEI13MBEEE156A 2 TB AT I EHE  The notes on pages 134 to 156 form part of this interim financial
BB ER D o AN TIHERIRFEEIGFEE SN 2 E  report. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
R B FHIBE R IRE17 o Company are set out in note 17.
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EHEERER CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

RZE—TFA=+H - REEX At 30 June 2010 - Unaudited
(LAAERBER) (Expressed in Renminbi)
R-ZZE—FF | RZZETNF
ANA=+H | tZHA=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
RSB KEZ
Unaudited Audited
HtaF AR¥EFT ARBT T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RBEE Non-current assets
Y - REMEE Property, plant and equipment 8 458,234 470,910
EEIRE Construction in progress 109,690 99,822
FENLTHHEER Lease prepayments 23,177 23,508
FERNMEHREE Prepaid property lease rights 3,131 3,178
EREE Intangible assets 1,991 2,590
[ Goodwill 5,844 5,844
E"Hﬁ’ﬁ%’&jﬁ’\]%ﬁé Interest in an associate 13,985 14,230
AE &N A Interest in a jointly controlled entity 29,942 33,100
BETIEEE Deferred tax assets 45,318 42,100
,,,,,,, 691,312 | 695,282
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 9 644,764 610,288
FH&ZEE XN W & Trade and bills receivable 10 377,374 362,032
< Eofib U SR IE Deposits, other receivables
&%ﬁiﬁ%& and prepayments 11 101,466 60,574
SENRS IS Prepaid tax 1,039 954
FEJ%ZE\..%*’& Iéi Amount due from a jointly
controlled entity 19(b) 3,035 2,237
SR EIHERITF K Restricted bank deposits 12 3,612 5,165
Be MRITER Cash at bank and in hand 13 357,757 274,938
,,,,, 1,489,047 | 1,316,188
REEE Current liabilities
—FAEHMIRITER Bank loans — due within one year 14 70,000 70,000
FES IR R R ER R IR Trade and bills payable 15 242,447 175,491
H b e 53R Other payables 16 441,527 436,066
JE 1~ R 1) Dividend payable 17 21,243 -
Bt & &R RIFKIAE Amount due to a jointly controlled entity 19(b) 22,945 14,858
—FR 'Jﬁﬂmmﬂﬁfﬂ Z¥&  Obligations under finance leases
due within one year 213 213
—FREENANEETHE  Early retirement benefits obligation
due within one year 2,976 2,881
PEIE A Deferred income 17,660 9,500
Fﬁﬁﬁ SR Income tax payable 4,678 6,336
B Provisions 15,480 11,885
,,,,,,, 839,169 | 727,230
REBEEFE Net current assets | 649,878 | 588,958
REERABAEE Total assets less current liabilites | 1,341,190 | 1,284,240
NEIBAEEE156E 7T B AP HBBRE  The notes on pages 134 to 156 form part of this interim financial
BB E S o report.
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EHEEEBRE) CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

RIE—ZFFENA=TH - AEEX At 30 June 2010 — Unaudited
(AARETR) (Expressed in Renminbi)
R-ZE—ZF RZEZENF
~NE=+AH |+t—A=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
RICEZX KEZ
Unaudited Audited
BaE AREFT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
BbE T E AR Obligations under finance leases 2,410 2,345
WIR B T M Early retirement benefits obligation 8,568 10,666
EE N Deferred gain 2,365 2,468
,,,,,,,,, 13,343 | 15,479
FEE NET ASSETS 1,327,847 1,268,761
R AR & CAPITAL AND RESERVES
[N Share capital 424,865 424,865
fE Reserves 842,967 781,991
ARRBRRELES Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 1,267,832 1,206,856
R IR RE S Non-controlling interests 60,015 61,905
fEmeE TOTAL EQUITY 1,327,847 1,268,761

REI1B4EEF 1568 7T EA NP HEIB RS  The notes on pages 134 to 156 form part of this interim financial
RIKER B 5 o report.
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BHfEESBR
BE—T-ZFEXNA=-THLEAEA - REER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the six months ended 30 June 2010 — Unaudited

(AAREBIITR) (Expressed in Renminbi)
RARRERE AL
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
g% EX EE FERK
BA& wE QB LB BEEAN ax RRER by
Statutory Non-
Share  Share Capital surplus Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve  profits Total interests  equity
AREFTANRETEAREFEARETTARETEAREFLARETTARE T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
12009F1A1R At 1 January 2009 424,865 113,887 10,225 69,635 412,598 1,031,210 64,626 1,095,836
EZ2009%6A30A Changes in equity for the six
LAEAEGEE months ended 30 June 2009:
AEARFERF Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year - - - - (40,064) (40,064) - (40,064)
TGalE Total comprehensive income for
the period - - - - 116,107 116,107 277 116,384
12009664300 K At 30 June 2009 and
2009%7R1A 1 July 2009 424,865 113,887 10,225 69,635 488,641 1,107,253 64,903 1,172,156
BZ2009F12A31R Changes in equity for the six
EABAEELE months ended 31 December 2009:
KERAKRE Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - 99,603 99,603  (2,998) 96,605
NERRER Appropriations - - - 21,652 (21,652) - - -
1#2009%12A31A At 31 December 2009 424,865 113,887 10,225 91,287 566,592 1,206,856 61,905 1,268,761
®20101A1A At 1 January 2010 424,865 113,887 10,225 91,287 566,592 1,206,856 61,905 1,268,761
EZ201056A30A Changes in equity for the six
LAEAEEEE months ended 30 June 2010:
PERAEIFERERT Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year - - - - (21,243) (21,243) - (21,243)
TG E R Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - 82219 82,219  (1,890) 80,329
1201056 A30A At 30 June 2010 424,865 113,887 10,225 91,287 627,568 1,267,832 60,015 1,327,847

REIBAEEFI56 A ZZ B /UM B RS

EAERER D

report.

The notes on pages 134 to 156 form part of this interim financial
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HHEHAESRER

BE_T-"ZTFERA=ZTHLEAER - REBX

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the six months ended 30 June 2010 — Unaudited

(AAREEZ|R) (Expressed in Renminbi)
BEAA=+HLAXEA
Six months ended 30 June
= i —e
2010 2009
RBER REEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
Haz AR Fr ARBTFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REEBEENES Cash generated from operations 108,562 75,423
e FEH Tax paid (17,662) (9,337)
EEEHRBNREREFHE Net cash generated from
operating activities 90,900 66,086
BRETEFANREREFHE Net cash used in investing activities (5,424) (23,256)
METEFMANREREFHE Net cash used in financing activities (2,157) (2,542)
RERESEEYEMTFE Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents 83,319 40,288
R—A—HZEERELEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January 272,278 322,699
SIEERSBHTE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes - (703)
RARA=+HZzRE Cash and cash equivalents
RBETEEY at 30 June 13 355,597 362,284
}%%’134,\ 156 B AT HB B E®E  The notes on pages 134 to 156 form part of this interim financial
BB RN B report.
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL
REPORT

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1.

Basis of preparation

This interim financial report has been prepared in accordance
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, including compliance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (HKAS) 34 “Interim financial reporting”, issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA). It was authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 16 August 2010.

The interim financial report has been prepared in accordance
with the same accounting policies adopted in the 2009 annual
financial statements of Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool
Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “the Group"”), except for the accounting policy
changes that are expected to be reflected in the 2010 annual
financial statements. Details of these changes in accounting
policies are set out in note 2.

The preparation of an interim financial report in conformity
with HKAS 34 requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses on a year to date basis. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

In preparing this interim financial report, the significant
judgements made by management in applying the Group’s
accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty
were the same as those that applied to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.

This interim financial report contains condensed consolidated
financial statements and selected explanatory notes. The notes
include an explanation of events and transactions that are
significant to an understanding of the changes in financial
position and performance of the Group since the 2009 annual
financial statements. The condensed consolidated financial
statements and notes thereon do not include all of the
information required for full set of financial statements prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs). The interim financial report is unaudited.

The financial information relating to the financial year ended 31
December 2009 that is included in the interim financial report
as being previously reported information does not constitute
the Company'’s statutory financial statements for that financial
year but is derived from those financial statements. Statutory
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 are
available from the Company’s registered office. The auditors
have expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial
statements in their report dated 24 March 2010.
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Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations
Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements

Amendments to HKFRS 5, Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations — plan to sell the controlling

interest in a subsidiary

Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

The developments resulted in changes in accounting policy but
none of these changes in policy have a material impact on the
current or comparative periods, for the following reasons:

The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKFRS 3,
HKAS 27 and HKFRS 5 have not yet had a material effect
on the Group’s financial statements as these changes will
first be effective as and when the Group enters into a
relevant transaction (for example, a business combination
or a disposal of a subsidiary) and there is no requirement
to restate the amounts recorded in respect of previous
such transactions.

The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in respect of
recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) and HKAS
27 (in respect of allocation of losses to non-controlling
interests (previously known as minority interests) in excess
of their equity interest) have had no material impact as
there is no requirement to restate amounts recorded in
previous periods and no such deferred tax assets or losses
arose in the current period.
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Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Further details of these changes in accounting policy are as
follows:

3 As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 3 (revised 2008),
any business combination acquired on or after 1 January
2010 will be recognised in accordance with the new
requirements and detailed guidance contained in HKFRS
3 (revised 2008). These include the following changes
in accounting policies:

- Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection
with a business combination, such as finder’s fees,
legal fees, due diligence fees, and other professional
and consulting fees, will be expensed as incurred,
whereas previously they were accounted for as part
of the cost of the business combination and therefore
impacted the amount of goodwill recognised.

- If the Group holds interests in the acquiree
immediately prior to obtaining control, these
interests will be treated as if disposed of and re-
acquired at fair value on the date of obtaining
control. Previously, the step-up approach would have
been applied, whereby goodwill was computed as
if accumulated at each stage of the acquisition.

- Contingent consideration will be measured at fair
value at the acquisition date. Any subsequent
changes in the measurement of that contingent
consideration will be recognised in profit or
loss, unless they arise from obtaining additional
information about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date within 12 months
from the date of acquisition (in which case they
will be recognised as an adjustment to the cost of
the business combination). Previously, contingent
consideration was recognised at the acquisition date
only if payment of the contingent consideration
was probable and it could be measured reliably.
All subsequent changes in the measurement of
contingent consideration and from its settlement
were previously recognised as an adjustment to
the cost of the business combination and therefore
impacted the amount of goodwill recognised.
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- If the acquiree has accumulated tax losses or other

temporary deductible differences and these fail to
meet the recognition criteria for deferred tax assets
at the date of acquisition, then any subsequent
recognition of these assets will be recognised in
profit or loss, rather than as an adjustment to
goodwill as was previously the policy.

- In addition to the Group’s existing policy of measuring
the non-controlling interests (previously known as
the “minority interests”) in the acquiree at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net identifiable assets, in future the
Group may elect, on a transaction by transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interest at
fair value.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
3 (revised 2008), these new accounting policies will be
applied prospectively to any business combinations in the
current or future periods. The new policy in respect of
recognition in the movement of deferred tax assets will
also be applied prospectively to accumulated tax losses
and other temporary deductible differences acquired in
previous business combinations. No adjustments have been
made to the carrying values of assets and liabilities that
arose from business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded the application of this revised standard.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 27 (amended 2008),
the following changes in policies will be applied as from
1 January 2010:

- If the Group acquires an additional interest in
a non-wholly owned subsidiary, the transaction
will be accounted for as a transaction with equity
shareholders (the non-controlling interests) in their
capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill will be
recognised as a result of such transactions. Similarly,
if the Group disposes of part of its interest in a
subsidiary but still retains control, this transaction
will also be accounted for as a transaction with
equity shareholders (the non-controlling interests)
in their capacity as owners and therefore no profit
or loss will be recognised as a result of such
transactions. Previously the Group treated such
transactions as step-up transactions and partial
disposals, respectively.
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2.

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
transaction will be accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with any
remaining interest retained by the Group being
recognised at fair value as if reacquired. In addition,
as a result of the adoption of the amendment to
HKFRS 5, if at the balance sheet date the Group
has the intention to dispose of a controlling interest
in a subsidiary, the entire interest in that subsidiary
will be classified as held for sale (assuming that the
held for sale criteria in HKFRS 5 are met) irrespective
of the extent to which the Group will retain an
interest. Previously such transactions were treated
as partial disposals.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKAS 27, these new accounting policies will be
applied prospectively to transactions in current or
future periods and therefore previous periods have
not been restated.

° In order to be consistent with the above amendments to
HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27, and as a result of amendments
to HKAS 28, Investments in associates, and HKAS 31,
Interests in joint ventures, the following policies will be
applied as from 1 January 2010:

If the Group holds interests in the acquiree
immediately prior to obtaining significant influence
or joint control, these interests will be treated as if
disposed of and re-acquired at fair value on the date
of obtaining significant influence or joint control.
Previously, the step-up approach would have been
applied, whereby goodwill was computed as if
accumulated at each stage of the acquisition.

If the Group loses significant influence or joint
control, the transaction will be accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
any remaining interest being recognised at fair value
as if reacquired. Previously such transactions were
treated as partial disposals.

Consistent with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 3 and
HKAS 27, these new accounting policies will be applied
prospectively to transactions in current or future periods
and therefore previous periods have not been restated.
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Other changes in accounting policies which are relevant to
the Group's financial statements are as follows:

As a result of the amendments to HKAS 27, as from 1
January 2010 any losses incurred by a non-wholly owned
subsidiary will be allocated between the controlling and
non-controlling interests in proportion to their interests
in that entity, even if this results in a deficit balance
within consolidated equity being attributed to the non-
controlling interests. Previously, if the allocation of losses
to the non-controlling interests would have resulted in a
deficit balance, the losses were only allocated to the non-
controlling interests if the non-controlling interests were
under a binding obligation to make good the losses. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS 27,
this new accounting policy is being applied prospectively
and therefore previous periods have not been restated.

As a result of the amendment to HKAS 17, Leases, arising
from the “Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)” omnibus
standard, the Group has re-evaluated the classification of
its interests in leasehold land as to whether, in the Group’s
judgement, the lease transfers significantly all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the land such that the Group
is in a position economically similar to that of a purchaser.
The Group has concluded that the classification of such
leases as operating leases continues to be appropriate
and the amendment to HKAS 17 have had no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by business line all through.
As a result of adoption of HKFRS 8, Operating Segments
and in manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified the following
three reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

the design, manufacture and sale of boring machines;

the design, manufacture and sale of sensors and turbo
tables, and computerised embroidery machines;

the design, manufacture and sale of turbo machines.
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Segment reporting (Continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most executive management for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the period is set out below:

ERER
BARE il
BK EaTH BUOBGH &t
Sensor and
turbo tables
Boring and computerised Turbo
machines embroidery machines machines Total
BERAZTHLARA For the six months ended 30 June | —%-%F | “T50F | 5-8F | ZS90F | C8-%F | CEINE | ZB-3EF | CIENE
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
g | AEEY | AEEE | AEER | AEEBM | AEEN | AEBK | AUER
Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited
AREFR | AFETT | AREFR | ARETT | ARBFR | ARETT | AREFR | \BETT
RMB'000 |  RMB'000 | RMB'000 |  AMB'000 | RMB'000 |  RMB'O00 | RMB'000 |  AMB'000
IIRPEENA Revenue from extemnal customers 646,020 | 573875 ] LTIT | 103384 | 81912 [ TA9851 | 660,504
APERA Inter-segment revenue 3,80 2,980 - - - - 3,280 2,980
ABUA Reportable segment revenue 649,300 | 576,85 47 G117 | 103384 | 81912 | TS| 663484
4818/ (BR) Reportable segment profit / (loss)
(BfAEIN (adjusted EBITDA)
#ehze) 13193 | 143562 (481) (3,146) 1616 497 | 114328 | 145383
HE Impairment of
-h%  FRR%E - property plant and equipment - - - (13) - - - (123)
A98E Reportable segment assets 1,693,014 | 1,570,670 6,154 7205 | 406,250 | 360303 | 2105418 | 1938218
b7 3k Addition to non-current segment
AHEE assets during the period 1500 4653 - - 611 1480 | 15808 | 48017
L Reportable segment liabilities 561,733 | 502,05 17,856 18,465 | 305406 | 256,388 | 884995 | 776,905

(b) BHETHBYWA - FBHEE -

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,

EEREENARE profit or loss, assets and liabilities
BEAAB=1tHIAEA
Six months ended 30 June
—E-=F —ZEENF
2010 2009
RIBER REEEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
AR¥TF T AR FT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ON Revenues
WED R LAWK A Total revenues for reportable segments 753,131 663,484
7 5B A B H Elimination of inter-segment revenue (3,280) (2,980)
BB U A Consolidated revenue 749,851 660,504
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BEAA=tHILLAMEA

Six months ended 30 June

—E-=F —ETNF
2010 2009
REEER REEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FI5E Profit
D EFEE FT Total profit for reportable segments 114,328 145,383
P EBEE B E Elimination of inter-segment loss = =
FIRRINEB = #Y Reportable segment profit derived
’\‘IWJ/F'EJ from Group's external customers 114,328 145,383
JEhE & Share of profits of a jointly
NIV controlled entity 2,132 6,179
FEAG B2 A B E 18 Share of losses of an associate (245) (131)
HRITHE A E WA Interest income from bank deposits 867 839
P B B Depreciation and amortization (19,373) (18,817)
F B2 E A Interest expenses (2,157) (2,542)
IEREBEERBEERKX Impairment losses on non-current assets - (123)
ROBMBIHERE Unallocated head office and
corporate expense (2,461) (2,130)
& OF R R A Consolidated profit before taxation 93,091 128,658
R-ZE—Z2F | RZZTTNF
AA=+H |tZA=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
RISER Kz
Unaudited Audited
AR¥FT ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
DEREE Total assets for reportable segments 2,105,418 1,938,218
7 B0 FE W GRIE R 1 Elimination of inter-segment receivable (32,483) (34,196)
2,072,935 1,904,022
K2 QBRI Interest in an associate 13,985 14,230
REERAMNER Interest in a jointly controlled entity 29,942 33,100
EEFIEEE Deferred tax assets 45,318 42,100
RO B EE Unallocated head office and
corporate assets 18,179 18,018
EHBEEE Consolidated total assets 2,180,359 2,011,470
=R Liabilities
HEBAE Total liabilities for reportable segments 884,995 776,905
73 #B I FE S SRIB Y HEH Elimination of inter-segment payables (32,483) (34,196)
apftEaE Consolidated total liabilities 852,512 742,709
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4~ HWAEHEMFER 4. Other revenue and net expense
BEARA=1THLAXEAR
Six months ended 30 June
—E-2F —ZETNF
2010 2009
REER REEEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
AR#FT ARKTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hug A Other revenue
RITFFAFEHA Interest income from bank deposits 867 839
RIS 8L (2 Z 0 710)) Government grants (i) = 17,738
SHE RMEHRA Sales of raw materials 1,451 867
EAh Others 1,196 513
3,514 19,957
Bta - Notes:
(i) BNEDETE IR EEAERNE (i)  Government grants represent various forms of incentives and
BR AN EE @B o subsidies given to the Group by the local PRC government.
BEAA=t+HLAAEA
Six months ended 30 June
—E-=5F —ZEENF
2010 2009
RCEX REEEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
AR¥TF T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
HittF&H Other net expense
HENE - BEX Net gain / (loss) on sales of property,
FERF W, (BX) plant and equipment 512 (62)
H A Others (1,401) -
(889) (62)
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5+ FAIFHE
BATAED R

(a) MBEH

5. Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a) Finance costs

BEAA=tHLLAMEA

Six months ended 30 June

—E-2F —ETNF
2010 2009
RBEX AEEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
ARMFT ARET T
RMB'000 RMB’000
RITERFE Interest on bank loans 1,758 2,233
BMEREAENMBER Finance charges on obligations
under finance leases 64 64
WEREBIHMHNPBER Finance charges in respect of
early retirement benefits obligation 335 245
2,157 2,542

(b) HfEE

(b) Other items

HEAA=tTRHILLAEA

Six months ended 30 June

—E-2F —EThEF
2010 2009
RISER REEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
ARKETFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEH Amortisation
—TENYEREEEH — lease prepayment 331 310
—-EBAE - intangible assets 599 582
—JERT T S B — prepaid property lease rights 47 46
ME -~ BREREZETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 18,396 17,879
VEREY R Impairment losses
— JiE R R K L i LAUER — trade and other receivables 14,139 15,715
—ME - BERZE - property, plant and equipment - 123
B E R R EE B AR Research and development costs 8,434 33,951
B Warranty expenses 7,770 6,811
IT&ERHAMET Salary and staff related costs 100,437 95,492
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6.

Income tax

BZEAA=1tHILAEAR
Six months ended 30 June

—E—-EF —ETAF

2010 2009

RICEX RIEEZ

Unaudited Unaudited

AR¥TF T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

B ATIS L PRC income tax 15,980 16,515
ERERIE Deferred taxation (3,218) (4,241)
12,762 12,274

A A EE R BRI EBRIRE S SR
ERFEHN AT AREBFEHTIR
B - HLE22010F6 30 E6MEA + AR
BAIRAARRFBENFRARNFEEAR
15%Z25% /) 5 B AT 15 B B & (8 £2009
F6H30HE6MEA : 15%%F25%) °

RIEE2008F 1 A1THEBEITACREAR
HMBEMEMETRE) BRAAG RELT
RAIZZEMESHERHR RN AEHE
BRITERAREEMESHEB2008F1H1H
@@2\%250/0 °

RIERAMBEREBN2007F12H25H
LRI E[2007]1835BAN - AN AR R FIE
THIREERASTEGHEERABBENL
BIEBIB T70% @ A& Q AR KA 3 AR 28
HHRWKE - B2004FEEZEF15% D%
FI3BiE ZEEINERRFTEFETT
EFELT - AR 2011FERKK -

REFEBREERAE  ARRHR L
FRAREIARMESE - FXI15%HNEE
FISHEERE -

No provision has been made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the
Group did not have assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax during the period. Profits of the Company and the
Company'’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC income
taxes at rates ranging from 15% to 25% for the six months
ended 30 June 2010 (six months ended 30 June 2009: 15%
to 25%).

The statutory income tax rate currently adopted by the Group,
except that for the Company and certain of its subsidiaries
which are entitled to preferential tax policies mentioned below,
has changed to 25% from 1 January 2008 in accordance with
the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC.

Based on Notice [2007] No.183 dated 25 December 2007
issued by the Kunming State Tax Bureau, the Company is
entitled to a corporate income tax rate of 15% commencing
from 2004 under the Preferential Tax Policies for the Extensive
Development of the Western Regions because the proportion
of the Company’s sales of digital machine tools exceed 70%
of its total revenue. This preferential tax policy is subject to
annual assessment and renewal, and the policy will officially
expire in 2011.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to a state
income tax rate of 15% under the preferential tax policies for
Advanced and New Technology Enterprises.
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BREF

HZE2010%F6 A30H L6 AN FRELRER
FERBEARRLBRREZRE ABGED
AEAR®S82,219,0007T (B E200946 A
308 k61 A : AR%116,107,0007T ) &
HZE201096 A30H 161 AMWARQRRE
T it 38 RS 7 2R A R 1k A X AR DN A 15 B
531,081,103/%( & =200946 A30H 1-6
&R : &ZEB2010F & AN g B E G AR A& 8
A% 8r531,081,1030% )51 & -

20107 A28 » AR RIME AN i@ B8
RT5ERES T AR B BT SR P e HE o o
REZEXRXBEERAFTER  F10RE
BLBREIE) SRR - XA REHIE -
AR A H B 424,864,883 i =
531,081,103/% - M & 220105467
30H F2009%6 A30H k61l A M & K&
MERRBRENGEEERAFRFAEED
531,081,103 LB AERAER -

#H £201096A30H K20094F6A30H It
B ARABRITNFEEBERERS @ Bitk
ERHERFNEGRERZFER -

(a) ®BMERE

20106 A30H 1E6Mf AR - A&
EME BELAREBELEE(REHRE
EIREEA) A ARME6,009,0005T
(& £2009F6A30H 1E61E A © A
R #20,189,0007T ) » & £2010%6
A30HIL6E AR BEEMNYE -
MELEBEAFEAEAARE
483,0007T( & £20094%6 A30H Ik6
@A : AR¥2,625000T), EXE
AR #512,0007( # £2009%6
A30H k6@ A : EiE AR®62,000

JT) °

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the six months
ended 30 June 2010 is based on the profit attributable to
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of RMB82,219,000
(six months ended 30 June 2009: RMB116,107,000) and the
weighted average number of 531,081,103 ordinary shares of
the Company outstanding during the six months ended 30
June 2010 after adjusting for the bonus issue as set out below
(six months ended 30 June 2009: 531,081,103 after adjusting
for the bonus issue in 2010).

On 2 July 2010, the Company’s bonus issue plan of increasing its
shares through transfer of share premium was approved by the
relevant government authorities in the PRC. In accordance with
the plan, 2.5 new ordinary shares would be allotted for every 10
existing ordinary shares. After the implementation, the number of
ordinary shares of the Company would increase from 424,864,883
to 531,081,103. Accordingly, the earnings per share for the six
months ended 30 June 2010 and 2009 is calculated based on
the 531,081,103 ordinary shares of the Company outstanding
during the period after adjusting for the bonus issue.

The diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic
earnings per share, because the Company does not have any
potential dilutive shares in issue during the period ended 30
June 2010 and 2009.

Property, plant and equipment
(@) Acquisitions and disposals

During the six months ended 30 June 2010, the addition
of property, plant and equipment (including transfer
from construction in progress) of the Group amounted
to RMB6,009,000 (six months ended 30 June 2009:
RMB20,189,000). Items of property, plant and equipment
with net book value totalling RMB483,000 were disposed
of during the six months ended 30 June 2010 (six months
ended 30 June 2009: RMB2,625,000), resulting in a gain
on disposal of RMB512,000 (six months ended 30 June
2009: loss of RMB62,000).
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(b) BWEEX (b)

MN201056A30H (L6 A A - A&
EAREWE  BE LR ETIRRESE
& o

MR2009F6 A30H IE6fE A R A&
EREARKESEY —HoiEE R
EMHERBTRAEEEBARRE
123,000c( BIEEI e & B A |
W) AEBMBNEEN KD &5
EEFEERFRHEEMETNRS
oo fERHAFE A EER - BERKRR
MBS A AR E B 5 E
BrE R E ES T RR AT G AT
BRIRE - BRIREEIR(E -

Impairment losses

During the six months ended 30 June 2010, no impairment
has been made for property, plant and equipment.

During the six months ended 30 June 2009, a number of
machines were physically damaged. The Group assessed
the recoverable amounts of those machines and as a result
the carrying amount of the machines was written down by
RMB123,000 (included in “Other operating expenses”). The
estimate recoverable amount is the greater of net selling price
and value in use, discounted to present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

9 FE 9. Inventories
R-ZB-FF | RZTNF
~B=+H |+t=-—A=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
REEX e
Unaudited Audited
AR¥TF T ARMTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R A1 Raw materials 115,536 101,644
M Work in progress 331,383 338,011
BIRY G Finished goods 197,845 170,633
644,764 610,288

M2010%F6 8308 Ik61E A A - NE BB
BHEREMNEEHRBOR LN B A
BB AERALNEFEEEAI B FEZS

M2009%6 8308 IE6ME AR » REEER
EhnEE AR 1,317,000 ¢ Bl A EIR
LEERMBBFEZ L -

During the six months ended 30 June 2010, the Group did
not recognise any reduction or addition in the amount of
inventories, being a write-down or reversal of write-down of
inventories to estimated net realisable value.

During the six months ended 30 June 2009, the Group recognised
an addition in the amount of inventories of RMB1,317,000,
being a reversal of write-down of inventories to estimated
net realisable value.
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10 - EWERF REWRERE 10. Trade and bills receivable

FBUREZ R EREZER(ENRREREEES)N An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable (net of

BRER D ATANT ¢ impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts) is as follows:

R=B—-ZF | RZZTTNF

ARA=tH | TZH=+—H

At At

30 June 31 December

2010 2009

Unaudited Audited

AREFT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

A Current 327,393 | 328,285

wmEL 1 EA Less than 1 month past due 7,302 6,602

A1 E3ME A 1 to 3 months past due 8,032 8,607
EHA3ZE 1218 A More than 3 months but less than

12 months past due 25,280 16,450

BER121E A LA & Past due over 12 months 9,367 2,088

BH e Amounts past due 49,981 | 33,747

377,374 362,032

FEUWWE R N EWR BT R —FRIK Trade and bills receivable are expected to be recovered within

Ble—fME BRTERSI  SEEX one year. In general, debts other than amounts relating to

HERGENEREERESN - XEH quality guarantee deposits are due for payment after the

BBEZEFPUNENNREHEMNZZRERTE negotiated credit terms, which are decided within a range of

ETHERE —RA—Z=@H - ER one to three months on the basis of historical payment record

SRR RFARA—FERIE - and performance of customers. The quality deposits are due

for payment upon one year from date of installation.
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1M -E2 - HERRERBEARE

11. Deposits, other receivables and prepayments

R=-ZB—-Z2F | RZZTNF
AVE = =R S
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
RBEZX L&z
Unaudited Audited
AR¥ T ARKETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEAST 4L FE R F0E Advances to suppliers 76,863 36,496

BIgE - TRREER Deposits for bidding, construction work
HEREEHANTES and equipment purchase 7,822 8,994
JE U B T 378 Staff advances 5,047 4,479
IR BRI Taxes recoverable 1,009 1,114
HAt Others 10,725 9,491
101,466 60,574

12 - ZRFINBITER 12. Restricted bank deposits

$’$ EHEHARARFENZRANBITFRA The amount represents restricted bank deposits for performance
=8 A A& B BAR R (AR BB £ AR 1T AL guarantees and bills payable with maturity of more than three

ERRES -

13- BERBITEXK

months.

13. Cash at bank and in hand

R-ZB—-Z2F | RZZTNF

AB=+H |TZA=+—H

At At

30 June 31 December

2010 2009

RIEER KEZ

Unaudited Audited

AR¥TFT ARETFT

RMB’'000 RMB’000

RERBECFEY Cash and cash-equivalents 355,597 272,278
B3 = 1 A 2 HARY F BRI K Time deposits with original maturity

over three months 2,160 2,660

357,757 274,938
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14 —FREHBNB/ITER 14. Bank loans - Due within one year

R-ZE—ZF RZZEZNF

7UE Sar'El | e =g

At At

30 June 31 December

2010 2009

RIEER KEZ

Unaudited Audited

AR¥Fx AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—F LR BEMIRITER Within 1 year or on demand 70,000 70,000
7201066 A30R - & 2 /5 A K %20,000,000 At 30 June 2010, the bank loans of RMB20,000,000 (31
JC HY 3R 17 & FR(2009F12A31H : A R #& December 2009: RMB20,000,000) were secured by mortgages
20,000,0007T ) © BA &K £ A+ i (#E over land use right and buildings with an aggregate
REMEFEERZEYREEREMR HE carrying amount of RMB24,718,000 (31 December 2009:
S E@EEE A A K #24,718,0007T RMB25,121,000). The annual rate of interest charged on the
(200912 A31H : ARE#25,121,0007T) ° bank loans ranged from 4.78% to 5.31% for the six months
REZE2010F6 A308 1E6EA @ $R1TTER ended 30 June 2010 (six months ended 30 June 2009: 5.02%

B ER R BALT78%ZE5.31% (H 20094 to 5.31%).
6A30H1E6MAA : 5.02%%E5.31%) °

15 ENERRREMARE 15. Trade and bills payable
R=Z—-ZF RN_ZETNF
~A=+H |+t=ZA=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
RBEX REZ
Unaudited Audited
ARMFT ARET T
RMB'000 RMB’'000
JE TR FK Trade payables 212,190 167,121
e RIE Bills payable 30,257 8,370
242,447 175,491
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15 BENRARENRE(E)

2N 55 1B A PR R K RN AR RO Rk 0 AT 40

15. Trade and bills payable (Continued)

An ageing analysis of trade and bills payable of the Group

TS5 is as follows:
R-ZE—ZF RZZEZNF
~B=+H |+t=ZA=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
RISERZ 1R A%
Unaudited Audited
AR¥EFT AR Fr
RMB’'000 RMB’000
1AREIHs AR ERFEER Due within 1 month or on demand 84,468 99,260
1MEA =318 A Due after 1 month but within 3 months 86,432 25,800
31E A =61E A Due after 3 months but within 6 months 71,547 50,431
242,447 175,491

ERMNERLENZEERAEN —FR

BE -

16 ~ A

within one year.

16. Other payables

All of the trade and bills payable are expected to be settled

R-ZBE-ZFF | RZTTNF

AB=+H |TZA=+—H

At At

30 June 31 December

2010 2009

RICEX Az

Unaudited Audited

AR¥TF T AREFT

RMB’'000 RMB’000

FEUR FRIA Advance from customers 392,905 373,782
FEAT TR Payable for construction work - 832
e H AB TR IE Other taxes payable 1,678 17,348
JEfTE T4 MEF Employees’ bonus and welfare 17,810 26,208
H A, Others 29,134 17,896
441,527 436,066
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17 - RE 17. Dividends

(a) MREEBBEXRBEMHEMNERZERA (a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
ANAIRRA AR R ESNT - attributable to the period
EFEgRAEDTIKEE E2010566H The Directors of the Company did not recommend the
30 1E6fE A EAf B A BARR B (B &2 payment of an interim dividend for the six months ended
200946 A30H IE6EAR : £) - 30 June 2010 (six months ended 30 June 2009: Nil).
(b) AHERAHEE N RIRE T AR RIREER (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
BRI FEEREMT : attributable to the previous financial year, approved and

unpaid during the period

BEAA=1tHLA<HEA
Six months ended 30 June

—E-EF —ETNF
2010 2009
REERX REEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
AR¥FT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB’'000
A B E R B R Final dividend in respect of the
PARTFERARE previous financial year, approved
Bl AR®0.057T during the following interim period
(#Z=2009%6 A30H of RMBO0.05 per share
1E6fE A - &k (six months ended 30 June
AR¥0.09437T) 2009: RMB0.0943 per share) 21,243 40,064
Ri%2010F6 A23H B FMM2009F E KR Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval at the Annual General
RE @ ARHHAE T BERN2009FENE Meeting held on 23 June 2010, a final dividend of RMB0.05
[%0.057C © #2& % /521,243,000 LS per share amounting to RMB21,243,000 in respect of the year
(H=2009F6 A30R k6@ A : AR¥ ended 31 December 2009 was approved (six months ended
40,064,0007T) - 30 June 2009: RMB40,064,000).
BIEFHEEEZE AR FHARE Of the dividend of RMB21,243,000, RMB541,000 and
21,243,000t B & IR B 9 5l AHAR iR R RMB638,000 need to be withheld by the Company for payment
MARBBEABRRRIDRHEFAEHEAR of withholding tax on dividend payable to the shareholders of
#541,0007T A638,0007T © A QA E R H shares and individual shareholders of A shares respectively in
2010F 7 A BB S B MR B X4 accordance with relevant PRC regulations, and the remainder
A& o has been paid off to the shareholders in July 2010.
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18- R=ZE—FBFEARNA=1THARATDHE

18. Capital commitments outstanding not provided

BREBENEREE for in the interim financial report
R=-ZE-—ZF A-TT AN
AB=+8 |[+=A=+-H
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
REEX T
Unaudited Audited
AR FT ARETFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
=EES) Contracted for 48,301 49,062
EREBRITLY Authorised but not contracted for 37,340 40,675
85,641 89,737

19 - ERBEELIRS 19. Material related party transactions
(a) HEB QT RHMBEBMINTS (a) Transactions with a jointly controlled entity and
other related parties
(i) HEZEQAINRS (i)  Transactions with a jointly controlled entity
BEASA=tHLXEA
Six months ended 30 June
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
RIEEX REEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
BESEE REME ARBEFT ARETF T
Name of party Nature of transactions RMB’'000 RMB’000
FLER 78 AT IR SHE M
BRAT] Sales of materials (1) 2,512 4,508
([3&8HT]) BAE
TOS Kunming Machine Consultancy fees - 360
Tool Company 5iE
Limited ("TOS™) Purchases (2) 26,225 31,030
Rz Notes:

(1) WRZIHERMEHGEER

AREE -

(2) WXRZHBHHEKHES

KEE -

(1)  These mainly represent the sales of materials to
TOS for production purposes.

(2)  These mainly represent the sales of machine tools
by TOS to the Group.
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3 H A BB T IR 5 (i) Transaction with other related parties

BEA~A=1THIEAEA
Six months ended 30 June

—g-%F| -TING
2010 2009
RARER REERZ
Unaudited Unaudited
BELE8 REUE ARBFT ARETFT
Name of party Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB’000
B WAL O HEEM (1) 1,077 8,341
BREMAERA Sales of products
(Mt Ln )
Shenyang Machine Tool
Import and Export Co., Ltd.
(“Shenji EXIM")
EHEREEELD HEEM (1) 2 252
BREMTAT Sales of products
(TEHELND D)
Yunan Machine Tool Group
Import and Export Co., Ltd.
(“Yunji EXIM™)
ERECYSERA HEEM 7 22
(fcYysH)) Sales of products
Yunnan CY (Group) Co., Ltd. R 1,679 -
(“CY Group”) Purchases
ERRREELR ik (2) 2,123 -
([RH#EE]) Rental
Kunming Kunji Group Rig 378 -
Co., Ltd. ( “Kunji Group” ) Purchases
AR Notes:
(1) WXSTHEERKBIL# (1) These mainly represent the sales of machine tools
EHORE#ELD - AAQ to Shenji EXIM and Yunji EXIM. The Company
A EL D M O B G entered into distribution agreements with Shenji
DG o MR ERKER EXIM and Yunji EXIM respectively. Pursuant to the
E oo NDNREFILHE LD agreements, the Company agreed to authorize
N B L Qo #RANR Shenji EXIM and Yunji EXIM to distribute and export
B AL EER O REH certain products from 1 April 2008 to 31 December
#EEOREARA D E m 2010.
ML AEE  REHBTEHR
20084 A1H %2010
12H318 °
(2) WRBNHIHNHERERDN (2)  This mainly represents the rental fee of premises
BMERLHFERENHEES and land use rights to Kunji Group. Kunji Group
A -BEREELCEREAR was authorized by Yunnan Government to succeed
MITHEE  REZTmMAAR the rights and obligations of the “The Premise
HAF2001E11 A12A AR Rental Agreement” and “The land use right Rental
AIEZBMKEEHRESRIM Agreement” signed by Yunnan Government on
(Lt EREREARIFH 12th November 2001 with the Company. On
ERFEE o 227 H2009 12th August 2009, the Company entered into
F8HI2H MR & B % 5] a supplementary agreement with Kunji Group to
WaRmE  ARLTHESK adjust the annual rent of land use right from
ANR#1,320,000LE AR RMB1,320,000 to RMB4,245,086 and the annual
4,245,0867C * ARKEHES rent of premises from RMB832,228 to RMB754,914
wAR®ES32,228E AR for the three year periods from 12 November 2007
¥754,91470 - B £ & 1% to 11 November 2010.
BeHMITHR B B2007F
11HB12H #& Z2010511 4
MABILE-
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19 - EXBEERRZ (&) 19. Material related party transactions (Continued)

b) EeERAREMBEBRITN (b) Balances with a jointly controlled entity and other
B Eg related parties
(iy HEZAFHSBRE (i)  Balances with a jointly controlled entity
R-ZE—ZF NZETNF
AA=+H |TZA=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
RIBER KEZ
Unaudited Audited
BELER RaME AR¥TT ARMTF T
Name of party Nature of transactions RMB’'000 RMB’000
U, (FEfS) #4%8
Balance due from / (to)
BHr JrE Ui Kz L b e Uk B 2B
TOS — trade and other receivables 3,035 2,237
FET K Eoth FE <] B4 58
— trade and other payables (22,945) (14,858)
(19,910) (12,621)
(i) EEMEIHE A EREE (i) Balance with other related parties
R-E—ZF RZEZNF
ANA=+H |+t=ZA=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
REEER KEIZ
Unaudited Audited
BEFEHE REME AR%Fr ARMTF T
Name of party Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB’000
CYEE JE U % E At FE Y B BE
CY Group Trade and other receivables - 334
FEAT B2 EoAth FE A 858
Trade and other payables (629) —
(629) 334
PO HE O FET K Bt FE 1< B 5R
Shenji EXIM Trade and other payables - (1,260)
=2 ] FET K Bt fE 1<) 8458
Kunji Group Trade and other payables (2,123) —
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(c)

RABNHEMBEELENRZS

ARAIR—HKEARE - A& —fEdH
FERFEBEBRTHE L - B
JB XA R B R B s IR AR Y
EE(TBEBEE]) RSB H) 758
NETEE BEBBEALENRS
BIEETERR :

- BE HELRHEMEREM
BE: R

- REXERXARS&E MR
& o

BURZIINAERENEEERBE
FABUBRREFEALRETRS
PTZERSETT - ARBETEMER
2 mn M IRAE BT B E B M E LR
N ZEEERRREFMLIZALTE
RREFPREEALE - ERIZE
BENEE  ARAREFARELR
52 5 R FE A B R A
5 o

20 LEEE

(a) BRERFRNIEEE

NN B EL BRIk TS 15 A i B R R (A
TREITEIEE M) R20029F6 A %
ETHENARKRBSHENAEAR
B1,1908 T AER - AEM A K
2 R2003F 10 B EEEEHM -
20096 A ' EREEBERATER
EREEBRZBRRAFEELE E
KEEEY RNENERARE
1,0708 7T - WX HHEBIERARE
308 LA EARKITOE T - £
HEAEBER  ARRAERT ZIBEL
REFIES WA - FE8E B 7 AR A8
BeFR A BEFRENEIETEE
WERZRARBENGBERARE
13085 7L - 201028 » AR Al H {5
BSHEWEEEAEEFTAREUD -

EXAPHIMBEHRRREE - A LFE
MERBEzT - ERERRALFR
MERUAEENTBERRBEERY
2 RS RKRHZFRETBRRE
TEIR (I -

(c) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the
PRC

The Group operates in an economic regime currently
dominated by entities directly or indirectly controlled by
the PRC government through its government authorities,
agencies, affiliations and other organisations (“state-
owned entities”). Transactions with other state-owned
entities include but are not limited to the following:

- purchase, sale and leases of property and other
assets; and

- rendering and receiving of utilities and other
services.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business on terms similar to those that would
have been entered into with non-state-owned entities.
The Group has also established its pricing strategy and
approval processes for major products and services. Such
pricing strategy and approval processes do not depend on
whether the customers are state-owned entities or not.
Having due regard to the substance of the relationship,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
none of these transactions are related party transactions
that require separate disclosure.

20. Contingent liabilities

(a) Contingent liability in respect of legal claim

The Company signed a sales contract with Yancheng Xinde
Oil Machine Company (“Xinde Machine”) in June 2002 for
sales of four machine tools with contract amount of RMB11.9
million. Related four machine tools have been delivered to
Xinde Machine before October 2003. In June 2009, Xinde
Machine filed a lawsuit against the Company alleging that the
goods delivered by the Company were unqualified and sought
for return of goods, refund of advances paid of RMB10.7
million and payment of penalty and compensation of RMBO.3
million and RMB3.7 million respectively. In consultation with
legal counsels, the Company has denied the claim and filed
a counter claim against Xinde Machine alleging that it was
unreasonable for Xinde Machine to claim for return of goods
after use of the Company’s products for more than 6 years
and requesting Xinde Machine to repay the unpaid amount of
RMB1.3 million for the goods. In February 2010, the Company
and Xinde Machine agreed to mediate the disputes through
the court.

Up to the date of the interim financial statements, the above
case is still under the mediation stage. Management consider
the result of the above pending case will not have significant
impact on the financial statements. No provision has therefore
been made in respect of this claim.
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Contingent liabilities (Continued)
Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company’s subsidiary Xi‘an
Ser has issued a single guarantee in respect of bank facilities
to its wholly owned subsidiary Changsha Ser which expires
on 31 December 2010. The maximum liability of Xi‘an Ser at
30 June 2010 under the single guarantee issued is the facility
drawn down by Changsha Ser of RMB20,000,000 (31 December
2009: RMB20,000,000).

The loan is also secured by mortgages over Changsha Ser’s
land use right and buildings (see note 14). The mortgage and
guarantee are at the same rank for the repayment of bank
loan.

Post balance sheet events

On 2 July 2010, the Company’s bonus issue plan of increasing
its shares through transfer of share premium was approved
by the relevant government authorities in the PRC. After
the implementation, the number of ordinary shares of the
Company would increase from 424,864,883 to 531,081,103
(see note 7).

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

1. Financial statements signed and stamped by legal
representative and financial officer of the Company

2. Original copy of all documents and the announcements
as disclosed in newspapers as specified by the CSRC
during the Reporting Period

3. 2010 Interim Report

4. Written confirmation for the 2010 Interim Report by
Directors and senior management officers

5.  Written approval by Supervisory Committee for 2010
Interim Report prepared by the Board

By Order of the Board
Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
Gao Minghui
Chairman
16th August 2010
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